
           
  AGENDA 

ORO VALLEY TOWN COUNCIL
REGULAR SESSION
November 16, 2016

ORO VALLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
11000 N. LA CAÑADA DRIVE

             
REGULAR SESSION AT OR AFTER 6:00 PM
 
CALL TO ORDER
 
ROLL CALL
 

1.   Minutes - October 19, 2016
 

2. Presentation of Plaques of Appreciation to Out-going Councilmembers
 

3.   Swearing in of three new Councilmembers with terms effective November 16, 2016
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 
UPCOMING MEETING ANNOUNCEMENTS
 
COUNCIL REPORTS
     •   Spotlight on Youth
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS
 
The Mayor and Council may consider and/or take action on the items listed below:

ORDER OF BUSINESS: MAYOR WILL REVIEW THE ORDER OF THE MEETING
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
 
CALL TO AUDIENCE – At this time, any member of the public is allowed to address the Mayor and Town Council
on any issue not listed on today’s agenda. Pursuant to the Arizona Open Meeting Law, individual Council
Members may ask Town Staff to review the matter, ask that the matter be placed on a future agenda, or respond to
criticism made by speakers. However, the Mayor and Council may not discuss or take legal action on matters
raised during “Call to Audience.” In order to speak during “Call to Audience” please specify what you wish to
discuss when completing the blue speaker card.
 
PRESENTATIONS
 

1.   Presentation - Youth Art Program by the Arts and Culture Ambassadors
 



 
2.   Proclamation - American Diabetes Month, November 2016
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
(Consideration and/or possible action)
 

A.   Fiscal Year 2016/17 Financial Update through September 2016
 

B.   Resolution No. (R)16-51, authorizing and approving Grant Contract No. 2017-405d-022 between the
Oro Valley Police Department and the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety (GOHS) for funding
Impaired Driver/DUI Alcohol Enforcement overtime and employee-related expenses

 
C.   Resolution No. (R)16-52, authorizing and approving Grant Contract No. 2017-AL-029 between the Oro

Valley Police Department and the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety (GOHS) for funding
DUI/Impaired Driving Enforcement-related equipment

 
D.   Resolution No. (R)16-53, authorizing and approving Grant Contract No. 2017-PT-034 between the Oro

Valley Police Department and the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety (GOHS) for funding of Selective
Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) equipment

 
E.   Resolution No. (R)16-54, approving the donation of a scoreboard from CDO Little League to be

installed on Field 3 at James D. Kriegh Park
 

F.   Resolution No. (R)16-55, authorizing and approving amendment number 4 to addendum 1 of the
intergovernmental agreement between the Town of Oro Valley and the City of Tucson relating to
effluent and reclaimed water

 
REGULAR AGENDA
 

1. PUBLIC HEARING: AMENDING THE GENERAL PLAN LAND USE MAP AND RANCHO VISTOSO
PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT FOR A PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF
RANCHO VISTOSO BOULEVARD AND VISTOSO HIGHLANDS DRIVE

 
a.   RESOLUTION NO. (R)16-48, AMENDING THE GENERAL PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP FROM

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL/OFFICE TO MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL FOR A 17.8 ACRE
PROPERTY, LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF RANCHO VISTOSO BOULEVARD AND
VISTOSO HIGHLANDS DRIVE

 
b.   ORDINANCE NO. (O)16-12, AMENDING THE RANCHO VISTOSO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT

FROM COMMERCIAL (C-1) TO MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL AND ALLOWING THE USE OF
AN ESL FLEXIBLE DESIGN OPTION FOR A MODIFIED REVIEW PROCESS FOR A 17.8 ACRE
PROPERTY, LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF RANCHO VISTOSO BOULEVARD AND
VISTOSO HIGHLANDS DRIVE

 
2.   DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING A PROPOSED CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN,

LANDSCAPE PLAN AND MASTER RECREATION AREA PLAN FOR THE ALTERRA AT VISTOSO
TRAILS SUBDIVISION, LOCATED APPROXIMATELY 1/2 MILE EAST OF THE INTERSECTION OF
RANCHO VISTOSO BOULEVARD AND MOORE ROAD ALONG THE FUTURE MOORE ROAD
LOOP EXTENSION

 
3.   PUBLIC HEARING: DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING A PROPOSED GRADING



3.   PUBLIC HEARING: DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING A PROPOSED GRADING
EXCEPTION FOR THE SANCTUARY AT SILVERHAWKE SUBDIVISION, LOCATED NEAR THE
NORTHEAST CORNER OF 1ST AVENUE AND NARANJA DRIVE

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION AT OR AFTER 7:00 PM
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION - Pursuant to ARS 38-431.03(A)(1) and (A)(3) for discussion and consultation with its
attorneys regarding the Town Manager recruitment/selection process
 
REGULAR SESSION AT OR AFTER 7:30 PM
 
CALL TO ORDER
 
ROLL CALL
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS (The Council may bring forth general topics for future meeting agendas. Council may
not discuss, deliberate or take any action on the topics presented pursuant to ARS 38-431.02H)
 
CALL TO AUDIENCE – At this time, any member of the public is allowed to address the Mayor and Town Council
on any issue not listed on today’s agenda. Pursuant to the Arizona Open Meeting Law, individual Council
Members may ask Town Staff to review the matter, ask that the matter be placed on a future agenda, or respond to
criticism made by speakers. However, the Mayor and Council may not discuss or take legal action on matters
raised during “Call to Audience.” In order to speak during “Call to Audience” please specify what you wish to
discuss when completing the blue speaker card.
 
ADJOURNMENT
 
 
POSTED: 11/9/16 at 5:00 p.m. by pp

When possible, a packet of agenda materials as listed above is available for public inspection at least 24 hours prior
to the Council meeting in the office of the Town Clerk between the hours of 8:00 a.m. – 5:00p.m.

The Town of Oro Valley complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). If any person with a disability needs
any type of accommodation, please notify the Town Clerk’s Office at least five days prior to the Council meeting at
229-4700. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS TO SPEAKERS

Members of the public have the right to speak during any posted public hearing. However, those items not
listed as a public hearing are for consideration and action by the Town Council during the course of their
business meeting. Members of the public may be allowed to speak on these topics at the discretion of the
Chair.

If you wish to address the Town Council on any item(s) on this agenda, please complete a speaker card located on
the Agenda table at the back of the room and give it to the Town Clerk. Please indicate on the speaker card
which item number and topic you wish to speak on, or if you wish to speak during “Call to Audience”,
please specify what you wish to discuss when completing the blue speaker card.

Please step forward to the podium when the Mayor announces the item(s) on the agenda which you are interested
in addressing.

1. For the record, please state your name and whether or not you are a Town resident.



2. Speak only on the issue currently being discussed by Council. Please organize your speech, you will only be
allowed to address the Council once regarding the topic being discussed.
3. Please limit your comments to 3 minutes.
4. During “Call to Audience” you may address the Council on any issue you wish.
5. Any member of the public speaking must speak in a courteous and respectful manner to those present. 

Thank you for your cooperation.



   
Town Council Regular Session Item #    1.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2016  
Requested by: Mike Standish  Submitted By: Michelle Stine, Town

Clerk's Office
Department: Town Clerk's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
Minutes - October 19, 2016

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
N/A

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
N/A

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to approve, (approve with the following changes) the October 19, 2016 minutes. 

Attachments
10-19-16 Draft Minutes 



10/19/16 Minutes, Town Council Regular Session 1

MINUTES
ORO VALLEY TOWN COUNCIL 

REGULAR SESSION 
October 19, 2016 

ORO VALLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
11000 N. LA CANADA DRIVE

REGULAR SESSION AT OR AFTER 5:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Hiremath called the meeting to order at 5:01 p.m.

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Satish Hiremath, Mayor 
Lou Waters, Vice Mayor 
Bill Garner, Councilmember 
Joe Hornat, Councilmember 
Mary Snider, Councilmember 
Mike Zinkin, Councilmember 

ABSENT: Brendan Burns, Councilmember 

1. Motion to remove the following item from the table to place the matter on the 
executive session agenda: Discussion and possible direction from the Town 
Attorney regarding the Town’s involvement in the Overlook Restaurant located at 
10555 N. La Canada Drive, including the possibility of contracting the services or 
closing the restaurant.

Councilmember Zinkin made a motion to remove item #1 from the table. 

MOTION failed, due to lack of second.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Mayor Waters and seconded by Councilmember 
Snider to go into Executive Session at 5:03 p.m. pursuant to ARS 38-431.03 (A)(3) for 
discussion or consultation for legal advice with the Town Attorney regarding public 
access to the WAPA trailhead. 

MOTION carried, 6-0.

Mayor Hiremath said the following staff members would join Council in Executive 
Session: Interim Town Manager Danny Sharp, Legal Services Director Tobin Sidles, 



10/19/16 Minutes, Town Council Regular Session 2

Town Attorney Gary Verburg, Parks and Recreation Director Kristy Diaz-Trahan, 
Planning Manager Bayer Vella and Town Clerk Mike Standish.

REGULAR SESSION AT OR AFTER 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Hiremath called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Satish Hiremath, Mayor 
Lou Waters, Vice Mayor 
Bill Garner, Councilmember 
Joe Hornat, Councilmember 
Mary Snider, Councilmember 
Mike Zinkin, Councilmember 

ABSENT: Brendan Burns, Councilmember 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Hiremath led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

UPCOMING MEETING ANNOUNCEMENTS

Communications Administrator Misti Nowak announced the upcoming Town meetings 
and events.

COUNCIL REPORT

Councilmember Zinkin reflected on his years of service as an elected official and 
thanked the Oro Valley citizens for allowing him to have represented them during his 
time as a Councilmember.

Councilmember Snider recognized Pranoy Solomon, a student from Copper Creek 
Elementary School, for his advocacy for inclusion in the community as well as 
acceptance and celebration of diverse individuals. 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS

Parks and Recreation Director Kristy Diaz-Trahan gave an update regarding the WAPA 
easement gate installation by Honey Bee Ridge Estates Home Owners 
Association. Due to the WAPA easement gate installation, Town staff have met with 
various stakeholders to develop an alternative trailhead access point to State Trust 
Land. As a result of these meetings the Town and stakeholders were working to 



10/19/16 Minutes, Town Council Regular Session 3

develop the Big Wash Trailhead easement located near the bridge on 
Vistoso Boulevard and Big Wash. The Big Wash trailhead easement is intended to be 
part of the proposed Pima County 180 mile Tribute Trail loop trail around Tucson.

ORDER OF BUSINESS

Mayor Hiremath reviewed the order of business and stated the order would stand as 
posted.

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

1. Councilmember Zinkin - 2016 National League of Cities University Leadership 
Summit Trip Report

CALL TO AUDIENCE

Oro Valley resident Steve Solomon expressed his concerns regarding travel and 
training expenditures by an individual Councilmember. 

PRESENTATIONS

1. Proclamation - National Cyber Security Awareness Month

Mayor Hiremath proclaimed the month of October, 2016 as National Cyber Security 
Awareness Month. 

Information Technology Director, Chuck Boyer, accepted the proclamation.

CONSENT AGENDA

Councilmember Zinkin requested that item (B) be removed from the Consent Agenda 
for discussion.

Councilmember Hornat requested that item (F) be removed from the Consent Agenda 
for discussion.

A. Minutes - October 5, 2016

C. Reappointment to the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) Local 
Board

D. Resolution No. (R)16-50, authorizing and approving an Intergovernmental 
Agreement between the Town of Oro Valley and Pima County for Election 
Services

E. Cancellation of the November 2, 2016 regular Town Council meeting



10/19/16 Minutes, Town Council Regular Session 4

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Zinkin and seconded by 
Councilmember Snider to approve Consent Agenda items (A) and (C - E). 

MOTION carried, 6-0. 

B. Fiscal Year 2016/17 Financial Update through August 2016

Councilmember Zinkin asked for clarification regarding the Community Center Fund.

Finance Director Stacey Lemos clarified the Community Center Fund.

Discussion ensued amongst Council and staff regarding the Fiscal Year 2016/17 
Financial Update through August 2016.

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Zinkin and seconded by Vice Mayor 
Waters to approve item (B). 

MOTION carried, 6-0. 

F. Request for approval of a two year extension of the Big Horn Commerce Park 
Development Plan located at the Southeast corner of Rams Field Pass and Oracle 
Road

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Hornat and seconded by Vice Mayor 
Waters to approve the request for a two year extension of the Big Horn Commerce Park 
Development Plan to September 19, 2018, subject to the condition that the
Development Plan must be revised to meet all ordinances in effect prior to building 
permit issuance. 

MOTION carried, 6-0. 

REGULAR AGENDA

1. PUBLIC HEARING: DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING AN 
APPLICATION FOR A SERIES 12 (RESTAURANT) LIQUOR LICENSE FOR 
GOYITA’S RESTAURANT, LOCATED AT 10420 N. LA CANADA DR. #170

Town Clerk Mike Standish presented item #1.

Mayor Hiremath opened the public hearing.

No comments were received. 

Mayor Hiremath closed the public hearing.



10/19/16 Minutes, Town Council Regular Session 5

MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Mayor Waters and seconded by Councilmember 
Snider to approve the issuance of a Series 12 Liquor License to the Arizona Department 
of Liquor Licenses and Control for Jose Luis Meza for Goyita's, located at 10420 N. La 
Canada Dr. #170. 

MOTION carried, 6-0. 

2. PUBLIC HEARING: DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING AN 
APPLICATION FOR A SERIES 12 (RESTAURANT) LIQUOR LICENSE FOR 
ROSATI’S PIZZA SPORTS PUB, LOCATED AT 12152 N. RANCHO VISTOSO 
BLVD. #C170

Mr. Standish presented item #2.

Mayor Hiremath opened the public hearing.

No comments were received. 

Mayor Hiremath closed the public hearing.

MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Mayor Waters and seconded by Councilmember 
Garner to approve the issuance of a Series 12 Liquor License to the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for Jeanette Bush for Rosati's Pizza Sports 
Pub, Located at 12152 N. Rancho Vistoso Blvd. #C170. 

MOTION carried, 6-0. 

Councilmember Hornat questioned the validity of agenda items (3 - 7) appearing on the 
current agenda and therefore requested a motion to adjourn the meeting.

3. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE DIRECTION REGARDING A BIKE SHARE 
PROGRAM

4. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE DIRECTION REGARDING TOWN CODE 
SECTION 10-1-5 NUISANCES

5. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE DIRECTION REGARDING BONDING OPTIONS 
FOR THE STORMWATER UTILITY

6. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE DIRECTION REGARDING ALLOWING 
ALCOHOL SALE AND CONSUMPTION IN ALL ORO VALLEY PARKS

7. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE DIRECTION TO INITIATE AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING CHAPTER 31 OF THE ORO VALLEY ZONING CODE REGARDING 
DEFINITIONS FOR AUTOMOBILE AND TRUCK



10/19/16 Minutes, Town Council Regular Session 6

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

No future agenda items were requested.

CALL TO AUDIENCE 

No comments were received.

ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Hornat and seconded by Vice Mayor 
Waters to adjourn the meeting at 6:32 p.m. 

MOTION carried, 4-2 with Councilmember Garner and Councilmember Zinkin opposed. 

Prepared by:

__________________________
Michelle Stine, CMC
Deputy Town Clerk  

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of 
the regular session of the Town of Oro Valley Council of Oro Valley, Arizona held on the 
19th day of October, 2016.  I further certify that the meeting was duly called and held 
and that a quorum was present.

Dated this _____ day of ____________________, 2016.

___________________________
Michael Standish, CMC
Town Clerk



   
Town Council Regular Session Item #   3.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2016  
Requested by: Mike Standish  Submitted By: Mike Standish, Town

Clerk's Office
Department: Town Clerk's Office

Information
SUBJECT:
Swearing in of three new Councilmembers with terms effective November 16, 2016

RECOMMENDATION:
At the regular meeting on September 21, 2016, Council adopted the Official Canvass of
the Vote for the August 30, 2016 Primary Election, at which all three available Council
seats were filled.  The Oath of Office will be administered by the Town Clerk to the three
newly elected Councilmembers: Rhonda Pina, Bill Rodman and Steve Solomon.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The new Councilmembers will serve four year terms effective November 16, 2016 to
November 3, 2020.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
N/A

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
N/A

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Town Council Regular Session Item #   1.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2016  
Presentation of the Youth Art Program

Information
Subject
Presentation - Youth Art Program by the Arts and Culture Ambassadors

Summary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Town Council Regular Session Item #   2.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2016  
Proclamation - American Diabetes Month, November 2016

Information
Subject
Proclamation - American Diabetes Month, November 2016

Summary

Attachments
Proclamation 





   
Town Council Regular Session Item #   A.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2016  
Requested by: Stacey Lemos  Submitted By: Wendy Gomez, Finance
Department: Finance

Information
SUBJECT:
Fiscal Year 2016/17 Financial Update through September 2016

RECOMMENDATION:
This item is for information only.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
In the General Fund (see Attachment A), revenues collected through September totaled
$7.5 million or 22.8% of the budget amount of $33.1 million. Year-to-date expenditures
through September totaled $6.6 million or 20.0% of the budget amount of $33.1 million.

In the Highway Fund (see Attachment B), revenues collected through September totaled
$771,410 or 21.5% of the budget amount of $3.6 million. Year-to-date expenditures
through September totaled $770,408 or 16.3% of the budget amount of $4.7 million.

In the Bed Tax Fund (see Attachment C), revenues collected through September totaled
$192,625 or 17.6% of the budget amount of $1.1 million. Year-to-date expenditures
through September totaled $304,874 or 25.5% of the budget amount of $1.2 million.

In the Community Center Fund (see Attachments D-1, D-2 and D-3), revenues collected
through September totaled $1.2 million or 17.8% of the budget amount of $6.6 million.
Year-to-date expenditures through September totaled $1.5 million or 22.4% of the
budget amount of $6.9 million.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
GENERAL FUND

Attachment A shows General Fund revenues and expenditures through September, as
well as year-end estimates for each category. The estimated year-end projections in the
General Fund are as follows:

Revenues                                                     $33,357,947



Revenues                                                     $33,357,947

Less:
Expenditures                                               ($33,025,780)

Less:
Council-Approved Use of Contingency:
   -Town Manager Recruitment Process           ($30,000)    Approved July 6, 2016

Estimated Increase in Fund Balance          $   302,167

General Fund Revenues 

Local sales tax collections in the General Fund total $3.4 million or 21.5% of the
budget amount of $15.7 million. Please see Attachment F for a monthly,
year-over-year tracking of General Fund local sales tax collections, including
construction and utility sales tax. 

License and permit revenues total $474,381 or 29.4% of the budget amount of $1.6
million. These revenues are estimated to come in over budget by $49,000 or
3.0% based on trending actual collections through year-end.

State shared revenues total $2.7 million or 24.9% of the budget amount of $10.8
million. These revenues are estimated to come in over budget by about $150,000 or
1.4% due to state-shared income taxes. This budget was set conservatively due to
the unknown impact of special census efforts undertaken across numerous Phoenix
Valley communities last year.      

Charges for Services revenues total $599,349 or 28.2% of the budget amount of
$2.1 million. These revenues are estimated to come in over budget by about
$19,000 or 0.9% based on trending actual collections through year-end.  

All other General Fund revenues are projected to come in on budget at this time.
Please note that year-end estimates are subject to change.

General Fund Expenditures 

Expenditures are projected to come in under budget by about $81,000 or 0.2% due
to estimated personnel savings. Please note these figures are subject to change.

HIGHWAY FUND

Highway Fund Revenues 

State shared highway user funds total $740,675 or 24.7% of the budget amount of
$3.0 million.

All Highway Fund revenues are projected to come in on budget at this time.



Highway Fund Expenditures

Expenditures are projected to come in under budget by about $22,000 or 0.5% due
to estimated personnel savings. Please note these figures are subject to change.

BED TAX FUND

Bed Tax Revenues

Bed tax revenues total $189,770 or 17.5% of the budget amount of $1.1 million.

Bed Tax Fund revenues are projected to come in over budget by $3,500 or 0.3%
due to a donation for the Town's annual tree lighting event.

Bed Tax Fund Expenditures 

Expenditures are projected to come in on budget at this time.

COMMUNITY CENTER FUND

Attachment D-1 shows the consolidated financial status of the Community Center Fund
with all revenues and expenditures from Troon and Town-managed operations.

Attachment D-2 shows the monthly line item detail for the Troon-managed operations,
specifically revenues and expenditures associated with the golf, tennis, food and
beverage and lifeguard operations. The totals in the revenue and expenditure categories
in Attachment D-2 tie to the Contracted Operating Revenues and Expenditures in
Attachment D-1.

Attachment D-3 shows the revenues and expenditures for the Troon-managed food and
beverage operations only. 

Community Center Fund Revenues 

Revenues in the Community Center Fund total $1,180,166 or 17.8% of the budget
amount of $6.6 million. Contracted operating revenues from Troon total $507,039
and Town operating revenues total $183,216. Local sales tax revenues from the
dedicated half-cent sales tax total $485,428 or 23.1% of the budget amount of $2.1
million.

Local sales tax revenues from the dedicated half-cent sales tax are estimated to
come in on budget at this time.

Contracted operating revenues from Troon are estimated to come in under budget
by about $115,000 or 3.1%, based on Troon's forecast through the remainder of the
fiscal year.



Town operating revenues are estimated to come in over budget by $8,000 or 1.1%,
due to swim team and swim lesson revenues.

Community Center Expenditures 

Expenditures in the Community Center Fund total $1,543,204 or 22.4% of the
budget amount of $6.9 million. Contracted operating expenditures from Troon total
$1,267,108 and Town operating expenditures total $228,187. Capital outlay
expenditures through September total $47,909 for the golf course cart path
improvements.

Contracted operating expenditures from Troon are estimated to come in under
budget by about $110,000 or 2.1%, based on Troon's forecast through the
remainder of the fiscal year.

Town operating expenditures are projected to come in on budget at this time.

Capital outlay is projected to come in under budget by $167,000 or 31.7%, due to
the timing of the ADA improvements budgeted at the Community Center. Staff is
awaiting completion of the Townwide ADA transition study before beginning
construction on these improvements.

Please see Attachments A, B, and C for additional details on the General Fund, Highway
Fund and Bed Tax Fund. See Attachments D-1, D-2 and D-3 for additional details on the
Community Center Fund. See Attachment E for a fiscal year-to-date consolidated
summary of all Town Funds. See Attachment F for a breakdown of monthly,
year-over-year local sales tax collections for the General Fund.
 

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
This item is for information only.

Attachments
Attachment A - General Fund 
Attachment B - Highway Fund 
Attachment C - Bed Tax Fund 
Attachment D-1 Community Center Fund 
Attachment D-2 Troon Cash Flow 
Attachment D-3 Troon F&B 
Attachment E - Summary All Funds 
Attachment F - Gen Fund Local Sales Tax 



ATTACHMENT A
September YTD Financial Status

General Fund
% Budget Completion through September  ---  25.0%

% Actuals YE % Variance
to Budget to Budget

REVENUES:
LOCAL SALES TAX                3,361,042           15,653,000        21.5% 15,653,000         0.0%
LICENSES & PERMITS                 474,381              1,615,500          29.4% 1,664,500           3.0%
FEDERAL GRANTS                     88,914                478,284            18.6% 478,284              0.0%
STATE GRANTS                       274,623              1,662,563          16.5% 1,662,563           0.0%
STATE/COUNTY SHARED                2,695,161           10,824,605        24.9% 10,973,271         1.4%
OTHER INTERGOVERNMENTAL         18,072                115,000            15.7% 115,000              0.0%
CHARGES FOR SERVICES               599,349              2,128,601          28.2% 2,147,129           0.9%
FINES                              32,536                130,000            25.0% 130,000              0.0%
INTEREST INCOME                    (2,478)                89,200              -2.8% 89,200                0.0%
MISCELLANEOUS                      1,592                 140,000            1.1% 140,000              0.0%
TRANSFERS IN -                     305,000            0.0% 305,000              0.0%

TOTAL REVENUES 7,543,192         33,141,753      22.8% 33,357,947       0.7%

% Actuals YE % Variance
to Budget to Budget

EXPENDITURES:
COUNCIL 82,498                220,559            37.4% 220,559              0.0%
CLERK 89,881                458,863            19.6% 403,211              -12.1%
MANAGER 154,272              801,540            19.2% 801,540              0.0%
HUMAN RESOURCES 64,735                368,605            17.6% 368,605              0.0%
FINANCE 164,592              773,591            21.3% 773,591              0.0%
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 358,373              1,691,676          21.2% 1,691,676           0.0%
GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 420,279              1,736,450          24.2% 1,736,450           0.0%
LEGAL 147,827              773,003            19.1% 773,003              0.0%
COURT 165,919              845,938            19.6% 845,938              0.0%
COMM. DEV. & PUBLIC WORKS 1,210,221           5,990,029          20.2% 5,964,957           -0.4%
PARKS & RECREATION 424,486              1,977,326          21.5% 1,977,326           0.0%
POLICE 3,130,420           15,643,620        20.0% 15,643,620         0.0%
TRANSFERS OUT 205,304              1,825,304          11.2% 1,825,304           0.0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,618,806         33,106,504      20.0% 33,025,780       -0.2%

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) 924,386            35,249             332,167             

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE ** 10,524,552       

Plus:  Surplus / (Deficit) 332,167            

Less:
Approved Use of Contingency Reserves during FY 16/17:

Town Manager Recruitment Process (30,000)             

ENDING FUND BALANCE ** 10,826,719       

* Year-end estimates are subject to further revision

** Beginning and ending fund balance amounts are estimates and are subject to further revision

FY 2016/2017

 Year End 
Estimate * 

Budget
 Year End 
Estimate * 

 Actuals 
thru 9/2016 

 Actuals 
thru 9/2016 

Budget

F:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2016-2017\1Q\Sep\Sep FY 17 Monthly Report 11/07/2016



ATTACHMENT B

September YTD Financial Status FY 2016/2017

% Budget Completion through September  ---  25.0%

 Actuals 
thru 9/2016 Budget

% Actuals 
to Budget 

 Year End 
Estimate * 

YE % Variance 
to Budget

REVENUES:
LICENSES & PERMITS                 24,918          52,500           47.5% 52,500              0.0%
STATE GRANTS 5,761            195,000         3.0% 195,000            0.0%
STATE/COUNTY SHARED                740,675         3,000,000      24.7% 3,000,000         0.0%
CHARGES FOR SERVICES -                   134,000         0.0% 134,000            0.0%
INTEREST INCOME                    (91)                28,600           -0.3% 28,600              0.0%
MISCELLANEOUS                      147               80,000           0.2% 80,000              0.0%
TRANSFERS IN -                   100,000         0.0% 100,000            0.0%

TOTAL REVENUES 771,410        3,590,100    21.5% 3,590,100        0.0%

 Actuals 
thru 9/2016 Budget

% Actuals 
to Budget 

 Year End 
Estimate * 

YE % Variance 
to Budget

EXPENDITURES:
ADMINISTRATION 233,362         831,188         28.1% 820,512            -1.3%
TRANSPORTATION ENGINEERING 116,525         584,522         19.9% 584,522            0.0%
PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT 25,748          1,278,095      2.0% 1,278,095         0.0%
STREET MAINTENANCE 267,983         1,205,718      22.2% 1,199,509         -0.5%
TRAFFIC ENGINEERING 126,790         814,412         15.6% 809,596            -0.6%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 770,408        4,713,935    16.3% 4,692,234        -0.5%

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) 1,002           (1,123,835)   (1,102,134)      

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE ** 2,075,616       

Plus:  Surplus / (Deficit) (1,102,134)      

ENDING FUND BALANCE ** 973,482          

* Year-end estimates are subject to further revision

** Beginning and ending fund balance amounts are estimates and are subject to further revision 

Highway Fund

F:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2016-2017\1Q\Sep\Sep FY 17 Monthly Report 11/07/2016



ATTACHMENT C

September YTD Financial Status

% Budget Completion through September  ---  25.0%

% Actuals YE % Variance
to Budget to Budget

REVENUES:
BED TAXES 189,770         1,085,805   17.5% 1,085,805      0.0%
INTEREST INCOME                    (645)              6,200          -10.4% 6,200             0.0%
MISCELLANEOUS 3,500            -             0.0% 3,500             0.0%

TOTAL REVENUES 192,625        1,092,005 17.6% 1,095,505    0.3%

% Actuals YE % Variance
to Budget to Budget

EXPENDITURES:
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 79,680          684,689      11.6% 684,689         0.0%
TRANSFERS OUT 225,194         510,194      44.1% 510,194         0.0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 304,874        1,194,883 25.5% 1,194,883    0.0%

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) (112,248)      (102,878)   (99,378)        

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE ** 492,377       

Plus:  Surplus / (Deficit) (99,378)       

ENDING FUND BALANCE ** 392,999       

* Year-end estimates are subject to further revision

** Beginning and ending fund balance amounts are estimates and are subject to further revision

FY 2016/2017

 Year End 
Estimate * 

Budget
 Year End 
Estimate * 

Bed Tax Fund

Budget
 Actuals 

thru 9/2016 

 Actuals 
thru 9/2016 

F:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2016-2017\1Q\Sep\Sep FY 17 Monthly Report 11/07/2016



ATTACHMENT D-1

September YTD Financial Status

% Budget Completion through September  ---  25.0%

% Actuals YE % Variance
to Budget to Budget

REVENUES:

CONTRACTED OPERATING REVENUES
Golf Revenues 109,380           1,193,656     9.2% 1,156,874              -3.1%
Member Dues (Golf) 186,537           1,153,655     16.2% 1,055,948              -8.5%
Tennis Revenues 68,932             322,640       21.4% 332,232                 3.0%
Food & Beverage 117,854           813,575       14.5% 832,029                 2.3%
Merchandise & Other 24,336             261,489       9.3% 253,397                 -3.1%

507,039          3,745,014  13.5% 3,630,480            -3.1%
TOWN OPERATING REVENUES

Daily Drop-Ins 6,247               25,000         25.0% 25,000                   0.0%
Member Dues 159,256           606,000       26.3% 606,000                 0.0%
Recreation Programs 15,200             101,500       15.0% 101,500                 0.0%
Swim Team/Swim Lessons 1,593               -                  0.0% 8,000                     0.0%
Facility Rental Income 771                  3,700           20.8% 3,700                     0.0%
Concession Sales 149                  1,000           14.9% 1,000                     0.0%

183,216          737,200      24.9% 745,200               1.1%
OTHER REVENUES

Local Sales Tax 485,428           2,105,163     23.1% 2,105,163              0.0%
Real Property Rental Income -                   27,861         0.0% 27,861                   0.0%
Miscellaneous 4,372               -              0.0% 4,372                     0.0%
Sale of Assets 111                  -              0.0% 111                      0.0%

489,911          2,133,024  23.0% 2,137,507            0.2%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,180,166    6,615,238 17.8% 6,513,187         -1.5%

% Actuals YE % Variance
to Budget to Budget

EXPENDITURES:

CONTRACTED OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Personnel 468,581           2,110,584     22.2% 2,082,598              -1.3%
Operations & Maintenance 709,252           2,818,367     25.2% 2,735,992              -2.9%
Equipment Leases 89,275             350,568       25.5% 350,568                 0.0%

1,267,108       5,279,519  24.0% 5,169,158            -2.1%
TOWN OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Personnel 178,969           736,944       24.3% 736,944                 0.0%
Operations & Maintenance 49,218             223,740       22.0% 223,740                 0.0%

228,187          960,684      23.8% 960,684               0.0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 47,909            527,200      9.1% 360,200               -31.7%

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND -                  120,000      0.0% 120,000               0.0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,543,204    6,887,403 22.4% 6,610,042         -4.0%

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) (363,038)      (272,165)  (96,855)             

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE ** 161,744           

Plus:  Surplus / (Deficit) (96,855)            

ENDING FUND BALANCE ** 64,889              

* Year-end estimates are subject to further revision

** Beginning and ending fund balance amounts are estimates and are subject to further revision

FY 2016/2017

Actuals 
thru 9/2016 

Budget
 Year End 
Estimate * 

Community Center Fund

Actuals 
thru 9/2016 Budget

 Year End 
Estimate * 

F:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2016-2017\1Q\Sep\Sep FY 17 Monthly Report 11/07/2016



ATTACHMENT D-2
TROON
El Conquistador Cash Flow Statement

Actual Actual Actual Actual Original Budget Forecast
Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

Revenues:
Golf Fees, net of discounts 13,421             12,438               29,818             55,677                1,003,084             949,149              
Trail Fees & Member Cart Fees 13,183             13,026               17,540             43,749                144,772                159,721              
Golf - Group Services -                  -                    366                  366                     825                      641                    
Range, Rentals, Other Golf related 2,137               2,819                 2,802               7,758                  36,200                 39,158               
Golf Lessons 220                  350                   330                  900                     7,575                   6,075                 
Income - Golf Schools -                  -                    930                  930                     1,200                   2,130                 
Total Member Dues 65,770             63,223               57,544             186,537               1,153,655             1,055,948           
Swim/Tennis Revenues 28,760             16,054               24,118             68,932                322,640                332,232              
Income - Other (non - golf) 15                   4                       -                  19                       -                      19                      
Merchandise, net of discounts 8,602               6,399                 9,316               24,317                261,489                253,378              
Food and Beverage, net of discounts 38,616             32,146               47,092             117,854               813,575                832,029              

Total Revenues 170,724          146,459            189,856          507,039              3,745,014           3,630,480         

Cost of Sales:
COS - Golf -                  -                    -                  -                     660                      -                    
COS - Group Services Golf 414                  -                    304                  718                     -                      938                    
COS - Golf Lessons 100                  299                   -                  399                     6,818                   5,057                 
COS - Service Commissions 15,157             13,664               21,884             50,705                185,460                198,645              
COS - Merchandise, net of discounts 6,471               8,132                 7,074               21,677                163,923                162,319              
COS - Food & Beverage 18,423             14,376               18,247             51,046                273,305                291,399              

Total Cost of Sales 40,565            36,471              47,509            124,545              630,166              658,358            

Gross Profit 130,159          109,988            142,347          382,494              3,114,849           2,972,122         

Operating Expenses:
Payroll 122,653            120,370             134,959            377,982               1,667,026             1,655,071           
Employee Benefits 28,945             26,612               27,453             83,010                394,021                383,713              
Employee Related 2,203               2,964                 2,422               7,589                  49,537                 43,814               
Professional Fees -                  -                    -                  -                     300                      -                    
Advertising & Marketing 5,325               6,284                 5,908               17,517                47,900                 53,491               
Repair & Maintenance 26,096             37,763               66,619             130,478               545,025                479,728              
Operating Expenses 26,874             19,567               17,787             64,228                304,467                259,681              

Total Operating Expenses 212,096          213,560            255,148          680,804              3,008,275           2,875,498         

Operating Profit (81,937)           (103,572)          (112,801)        (298,310)             106,573              96,624              

Leases - Carts 8,250               -                    16,500             24,750                99,000                 99,000               
Leases - Equipment 20,377             23,771               20,377             64,525                251,568                251,568              
Utilities 112,444            111,463             111,776            335,683               1,144,898             1,135,071           

Fixed Operating Expenses 141,071          135,234            148,653          424,958              1,495,466           1,485,639         

Gross Operating Profit (223,008)        (238,806)          (261,454)        (723,268)             (1,388,892)         (1,389,015)        

Insurance 88                   88                     97                   273                     1,613                   1,485                 
Property Taxes -                  -                    -                  -                     -                      3,650                 
Fees, Permits & Licenses 84                   102                   -                  186                     -                      186                    
Base Management Fees 12,000             12,000               12,000             36,000                144,000                144,000              
Bad Debt 300                  -                    42                   342                     -                      342                    

Total Other Expenses 12,472            12,190              12,139            36,801               145,613              149,663            

Net Operating Income (Loss) (235,480)        (250,996)          (273,593)        (760,069)             (1,534,505)         (1,538,678)        

11/07/2016 



ATTACHMENT D-3

ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
MONTH MONTH Y-T-D Y-T-D

 
FOOD & BEVERAGE REVENUE 47,092 34,950 117,854 99,400
 

TOTAL REVENUES 47,092 34,950 117,854 99,400
 
 
COST OF SALES 18,247 11,408 51,039 32,952
 
 
PAYROLL & BENEFITS 36,014 33,352 100,604 100,057
 
 
OPERATING EXPENSES 4,575 10,050 15,113 21,400
 

 

NET INCOME (LOSS) (11,744) (19,860) (48,902) (55,009)

EL CONQUISTADOR
INCOME STATEMENT CONSOLIDATED - RESTAURANT/GRILLE - SEPTEMBER 2016

11/07/2016



ATTACHMENT E

Consolidated Year-to-Date Financial Report through September, 2016 FY 2016/2017

FY 16/17 Capital Leases/ Left in Accounts
Begin Bal. Transfer Out Thru Sep 2016

General Fund - Unassigned 9,082,690            7,543,192          -                      7,543,192              205,304              4,654,681               1,730,545              28,276                     -                   -                           6,618,806               10,007,077           
General Fund - Assigned 1,441,862            -                             1,441,862             

Highway Fund - Restricted 2,075,616            771,410            -                      771,410                 38,032                398,401                  247,773                86,201                     -                   -                           770,408                  2,076,618             

Seizure & Forfeiture - Justice/State 10,540                 34,413              -                      34,413                   -                         31,375                    1,086                    -                              -                   -                           32,461                    12,491                  

Bed Tax Fund - Committed 492,377               192,625            -                      192,625                 225,194              53,367                    26,313                  -                              -                   -                           304,874                  380,128                

Impound Fee Fund 45,813                 11,400              -                      11,400                   -                         12,064                    -                            -                              -                   -                           12,064                    45,149                  

Community Center Fund 161,744               1,180,166          -                      1,180,166              89,275                178,969                  1,227,051              47,909                     -                   -                           1,543,204               (201,293)               

Municipal Debt Service Fund 62,486                 62,514              471,472         533,986                 -                         -                             3,300                    -                              -                   478,889               482,189                  114,282                

Oracle Road Debt Service Fund 6,968                   538                   -                      538                         -                         -                             -                            -                              -                   -                           -                             7,506                    

Alternative Water Resources Dev Impact Fee Fund 5,040,292            367,335            -                      367,335                 -                         -                             3,561                    -                              -                   -                           3,561                      5,404,066             

Potable Water System Dev Impact Fee Fund 5,068,238            181,372            -                      181,372                 -                         -                             -                            -                              -                   247,510               247,510                  5,002,100             

Townwide Roadway Development Impact Fee Fund 3,167,824            132,523            -                      132,523                 -                         -                             -                            -                              -                   -                           -                             3,300,347             

Parks & Recreation Impact Fee Fund 322,358               82,764              -                      82,764                   -                         -                             -                            -                              -                   -                           -                             405,122                

Library Impact Fee Fund 49,680                 150,000            -                      150,000                 -                         -                             -                            178,030                   -                   -                           178,030                  21,651                  

Police Impact Fee Fund 333,541               60,366              -                      60,366                   -                         -                             -                            -                              -                   -                           -                             393,906                

General Government Impact Fee Fund 3,515                   4                       -                      4                            -                         -                             -                            -                              -                   -                           -                             3,519                    

General Government CIP Fund 719,009               -                        -                      -                            -                         1,388                      -                            352,726                   -                   -                           354,114                  364,894                

PAG/RTA Fund 621,982               187,450            -                      187,450                 -                         13,692                    -                            181,969                   -                   -                           195,661                  613,772                

Water Utility 14,138,749          4,431,804          -                      4,431,804              2,942                 603,912                  1,794,881              221,156                   -                   3,500,676            6,123,567               12,446,986           

Stormwater Utility 272,747               318,737            -                      318,737                 -                         79,081                    57,775                  83,224                     -                   -                           220,080                  371,404                

Fleet Fund 569,439               336,934            -                      336,934                 -                         17,456                    109,225                120,995                   -                   -                           247,675                  658,697                

Benefit Self Insurance Fund 31,200                 584,683            -                      584,683                 -                         -                             746,623                552                         -                   -                           747,175                  (131,292)               

Recreation In-Lieu Fee Fund 15,718                 -                        -                      -                            -                         -                             -                            -                              -                   -                           -                             15,718                  

Energy Efficiency Project Fund -                         -                        -                      -                            -                         -                             -                            -                              -                   -                           -                             -                            

Capital Project Bond Fund -                         -                        -                      -                            -                         -                             -                            -                              -                   -                           -                             -                            

Total 43,734,388   16,630,229 471,472   17,101,701    560,747       6,044,385       5,948,134      1,301,038       -              4,227,075     18,081,378     42,754,710    

Total OutPersonnel O&M Capital ContingencyFund Revenue
Other Fin 

Sources/Tfrs
Total In Debt Service

F:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2016-2017\1Q\Sep\Attachment E - Summary All Funds 11/07/2016



ATTACHMENT F

General Fund Local Sales Tax Collections

FY 2016/17
CATEGORY JULY AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE TOTAL

Construction Sales Tax 199,573           188,622         464,738         852,933         
Utility Sales Tax 259,897           319,698         294,983         874,578         
Retail Sales Tax 498,390           460,006         467,191         1,425,588      

All Other Local Sales Tax * 191,490           170,598           181,484           543,571         

TOTAL 1,149,350$    1,138,924$   1,408,396$   3,696,670$    

FY 2015/16
CATEGORY JULY AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE TOTAL

Construction Sales Tax 193,497           160,759         190,812         234,763         222,548         254,307         260,568         107,429     263,734     235,835       109,928       173,567       2,407,746      
Utility Sales Tax 257,552           312,494         304,666         286,667         243,827         195,345         242,200         268,984     222,718     193,630       196,712       205,330       2,930,124      
Retail Sales Tax 441,557           415,209         393,690         403,193         413,231         525,645         688,527         426,418     433,139     511,289       472,688       411,589       5,536,174      

All Other Local Sales Tax * 239,739           229,766           182,484           216,361           270,637           276,937           295,738           201,982       259,537       325,493        273,582       263,425       3,035,681      

TOTAL 1,132,346$    1,118,228$   1,071,652$   1,140,984$   1,150,242$    1,252,234$   1,487,032$   1,004,813$ 1,179,127$ 1,266,247$  1,052,910$ 1,053,911$ 13,909,725$  

* Note:  Does not include cable franchise fees or sales tax audit revenues

F:\BUDGET ANALYST\Financial Reports 2016-2017\1Q\Sep\Attachment F - Gen Fund Local Sales Tax 11/07/2016



   
Town Council Regular Session Item #   B.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2016  
Requested by: Daniel G. Sharp  Submitted By: Colleen Muhr, Police

Department
Department: Police Department

Information
SUBJECT:
Resolution No. (R)16-51, authorizing and approving Grant Contract No. 2017-405d-022
between the Oro Valley Police Department and the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety
(GOHS) for funding Impaired Driver/DUI Alcohol Enforcement overtime and
employee-related expenses

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
On March 11, 2016, an application was submitted to the GOHS for DUI enforcement
overtime and employee-related expenses.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
The Police Department received two (2) originals of Contract No. 2017-405d-022,
entitled "DUI/Impaired Driving Enforcement" awarding $30,000 in grant funding for
overtime and employee-related expenses.

This contract funding can be utilized after October 1, 2016, which is the beginning of the
2017 federal fiscal year.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The approved FY 2016/17 budget includes the capacity, in the appropriate category, for
this awarded funding.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to (adopt, adopt with conditions, or deny) Resolution No. (R)16-51, authorizing
and approving Grant Contract No. 2017-405d-022 between the Oro Valley Police
Department and the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety for funding Impaired Driver/DUI
Alcohol Enforcement overtime and employee-related expenses



Attachments
(R)16-51 DUI Enforcement Overtime 
Grant Agreement 



C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@A029C600\@BCL@A029C600.doc

RESOLUTION NO. (R)16-51

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING A GRANT CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ORO 
VALLEY POLICE DEPARTMENT TO THE GOVERNOR’S 
OFFICE OF HIGHWAY SAFETY (G.O.H.S.) FOR FUNDING 
DUI/IMPAIRED DRIVING ENFORCMENT OVERTIME AND 
EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES

WHEREAS, Highway Safety Funds are used to support State and community programs 
to reduce deaths and injuries on the highways.  Section 402 of the Highway Safety Act 
sets forth the minimum requirements with which each state’s highway safety program 
must comply, and provides a minimum level of funding for local programs each fiscal 
year; and

WHEREAS, the Town applied for and was granted a G.O.H.S. grant contract from 
federal 405d funds to fund personnel services overtime and employee related expenses to 
enhance DUI/Impaired Driving Enforcement; and

WHEREAS, it is in the interest of the Town of Oro Valley approve the G.O.H.S. grant 
contract, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference, for the 
purposes of furthering public safety within the Town of Oro Valley.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Oro Valley, Arizona, that the Town Manager is authorized to enter into and execute 
the attached Governor’s Office of Highway Safety Highway Safety Grant Contract, 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference, on behalf of the 
Town of Oro Valley.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Oro Valley, 
Arizona, this 16th day of November, 2016.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA

Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor



C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@A029C600\@BCL@A029C600.doc

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Michael Standish, Town Clerk Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director

Date: Date: 



C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@A029C600\@BCL@A029C600.doc

EXHIBIT “A”

















































   
Town Council Regular Session Item #   C.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2016  
Requested by: Daniel G. Sharp  Submitted By: Colleen Muhr, Police

Department
Department: Police Department

Information
SUBJECT:
Resolution No. (R)16-52, authorizing and approving Grant Contract No. 2017-AL-029
between the Oro Valley Police Department and the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety
(GOHS) for funding DUI/Impaired Driving Enforcement-related equipment

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
On March 11, 2016, an application was submitted to the GOHS for DUI enforcement
capital equipment to enhance DUI/impaired driving enforcement throughout the Town of
Oro Valley.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
The Police Department received two (2) originals of Contract No. 2017-AL-029, entitled
"DUI/Impaired Driving Enforcement Related Equipment" awarding $3,000.00 in grant
funding for six (6) preliminary breath testing devices.

This contract funding can be utilized after October 1, 2016, which is the beginning of the
2017 federal fiscal year.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The approved FY 2016/17 budget includes the capacity, in the appropriate category, for
this awarded funding.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to (adopt, adopt with conditions, or deny) Resolution No. (R)16-52, authorizing
and approving Grant Contract No. 2017-AL-029 between the Oro Valley Police
Department and the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety (GOHS) for funding
DUI/Impaired Driving Enforcement Related Equipment



Attachments
(R)16-52 Grant Contract DUI Equipment 
Grant Agreement 



C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@BC25DAD3\@BCL@BC25DAD3.doc

RESOLUTION NO. (R)16-52

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING A GRANT CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ORO 
VALLEY POLICE DEPARTMENT TO THE GOVERNOR’S 
OFFICE OF HIGHWAY SAFETY (G.O.H.S.) FOR FUNDING SIX 
(6) PORTABLE BREATH TEST DEVICES TO ENHANCE DUI/ 
IMPAIRED DRIVING ENFORCEMENT

WHEREAS, Highway Safety Funds are used to support State and community programs 
to reduce deaths and injuries on the highways.  Section 402 of the Highway Safety Act 
sets forth the minimum requirements with which each state’s highway safety program 
must comply, and provides a minimum level of funding for local programs each fiscal 
year; and

WHEREAS, the Town applied for and was granted a G.O.H.S. grant contract from 
Section 402 funds to fund six (6) portable breath test devices to enhance DUI/Impaired 
Driving Enforcement; and

WHEREAS, it is in the interest of the Town of Oro Valley approve the G.O.H.S. grant 
contract, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference, for the 
purposes of furthering public safety within the Town of Oro Valley.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Oro Valley, Arizona, that the Town Manager is authorized to enter into and execute 
the attached Governor’s Office of Highway Safety Highway Safety Grant Contract, 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference, on behalf of the 
Town of Oro Valley.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Oro Valley, 
Arizona, this 16th day of November, 2016.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA

Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor



C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@BC25DAD3\@BCL@BC25DAD3.doc

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Michael Standish, Town Clerk Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director

Date: Date: 



C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@BC25DAD3\@BCL@BC25DAD3.doc

EXHIBIT “A”



















































   
Town Council Regular Session Item #   D.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2016  
Requested by: Daniel G. Sharp  Submitted By: Colleen Muhr, Police

Department
Department: Police Department

Information
SUBJECT:
Resolution No. (R)16-53, authorizing and approving Grant Contract No. 2017-PT-034
between the Oro Valley Police Department and the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety
(GOHS) for funding of Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) equipment

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
On March 11, 2016, an application was submitted to the GOHS for STEP equipment
with the goal of reducing the incidence of traffic fatalities and injuries resulting from
speeding, aggressive driving, red light running and other forms of risky driving behavior
through enforcement, education and public awareness throughout the State of Arizona
and the Town of Oro Valley.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
The Police Department received two (2) originals of Contract No. 2017-PT-034, entitled
"STEP Enforcement Related Equipment" awarding $17,000.00 in grant funding for four
(4) Raptor RP-1 Radars to enhance STEP enforcement through the Town of Oro Valley.

This contract funding can be utilized after October 1, 2016, which is the beginning of the
2017 federal fiscal year.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The approved FY 2016/17 budget includes the capacity, in the appropriate category, for
this awarded funding.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to (adopt, adopt with conditions, or deny) Resolution No. (R)16-53, authorizing



I MOVE to (adopt, adopt with conditions, or deny) Resolution No. (R)16-53, authorizing
and approving Grant Contract No. 2017-PT-034 between the Oro Valley Police
Department and the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety (GOHS) for funding of
Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) equipment

Attachments
(R)16-53 STEP Grant 
Grant Agreement 



C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@8C291215\@BCL@8C291215.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/062712

RESOLUTION NO. (R)16-53

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING A GRANT CONTRACT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF 
ORO VALLEY POLICE DEPARTMENT AND THE GOVERNOR’S 
OFFICE OF HIGHWAY SAFETY (G.O.H.S.) TO PURCHASE 
EQUIPMENT TO ENHANCE THE SPECIAL TRAFFIC 
ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM

WHEREAS, Highway Safety Funds are used to support State and community programs 
to reduce deaths and injuries on the highways.  Section 402 of the Highway Safety Act
sets forth the minimum requirements with which each state’s highway safety program 
must comply, and provides a minimum level of funding for local programs each fiscal 
year; and

WHEREAS, the Town applied for and was granted a G.O.H.S. grant contract from 
Section 402 funds to purchase two (2) Lidars and four (4) radars to enhance the Special 
Traffic Enforcement Program: and

WHEREAS, it is in the interest of the Town of Oro Valley approve the G.O.H.S. grant 
contract, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference, for the 
purposes of furthering public safety within the Town of Oro Valley.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Oro Valley, Arizona that, the Highway Safety Grant Contract between the 
Governor’s Office of Highway Safety and the Town of Oro Valley, attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference, is hereby authorized and approved.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Oro Valley, 
Arizona, this 16th day of November, 2016.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA

Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor



C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@8C291215\@BCL@8C291215.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/062712

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Michael Standish, Town Clerk Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director

Date: Date: 



C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@8C291215\@BCL@8C291215.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/062712

EXHIBIT “A”























































   
Town Council Regular Session Item #   E.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2016  
Requested by: Kristy Diaz-Trahan 
Submitted By: Kristy Diaz-Trahan, Parks and Recreation
Department: Parks and Recreation

Information
SUBJECT:
Resolution No. (R)16-54, approving the donation of a scoreboard from CDO Little
League to be installed on Field 3 at James D. Kriegh Park

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
James D. Kriegh Park has been home to the Canyon Del Oro (CDO) Little League since
1975. The league has a long tradition of volunteerism and fundraising. Long time
volunteer, Tracy Mitchell, was diagnosed with ALS on October 9, 2015, and as a result,
the league wanted to recognize Tracy for his dedication by purchasing and installing a
scoreboard in his honor. 

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
The CDO Little League has been playing at JDK Park since 1975. Over the
years, league volunteers have built the snack bar, announcers booth, and store room.
They have raised funds for batting cages, field improvements, and have secured grants
for scoreboards and uniforms. With these funds and "sweat equity" they
consistently make facility improvements that benefit the Park, their league, and their
volunteers.

Long-time volunteer, Tracy Mitchell, was diagnosed with ALS on October 9, 2015, who
later passed away recently on October 19, 2016. The League wanted to recognize Tracy
for his dedication by purchasing a scoreboard in his honor. This scoreboard will be
placed on Field 3 at James D. Kriegh Park and will consist of the dimensions 10 ft. x 4 ft.
x 8 in. Mr. Mitchell's wife, children, and CDO Little League family will be present to see
the scoreboard go up.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The estimated operating cost is approximately $100 per year, which is based on one,



The estimated operating cost is approximately $100 per year, which is based on one,
five-month session at $20 per month.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to (approve or deny) Resolution No. (R)16-54, approving the donation of a
scoreboard from CDO Little League to be installed on Field 3 at James D. Kriegh Park.

Attachments
(R)16-54 JDK Park Scoreboard Donation 



RESOLUTION NO. (R)16-54

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING AND ACCEPTING A 
DONATION FROM CDO LITTLE LEAGUE FOR A SCOREBOARD TO 
BE INSTALLED ON FIELD THREE AT JAMES D. KRIEGH PARK

WHEREAS, The Town of Oro Valley desires one electronic scoreboard to be installed on Field 
Three at James D. Kriegh Park; and

WHEREAS, The CDO Little League desires to donate o ne scoreboard as herein described to 
the Town as provided for in Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Town of Oro Valley to accept the donation of one 
electronic scoreboard from CDO Little League to be installed on Field Three at James D. Kriegh 
Park.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Oro 
Valley, Arizona, that:

1. The Park and Recreation Director and other administrative officials, or their designees, 
are hereby authorized to take such steps as necessary to accept the donation and 
installation of the electronic scoreboard from CDO Little League to be installed on Field 
Three of James D. Kriegh Park.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona, this
16th day of November, 2016.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA

Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Michael Standish, Town Clerk Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director

Date Date



EXHIBIT “A”

2



   
Town Council Regular Session Item #   F.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2016  
Requested by: Philip Saletta  Submitted By: Peter Abraham, Water
Department: Water

Information
SUBJECT:
Resolution No. (R)16-55, authorizing and approving amendment number 4 to addendum
1 of the intergovernmental agreement between the Town of Oro Valley and the City of
Tucson relating to effluent and reclaimed water

RECOMMENDATION:
The Water Utility Commission reviewed the amendment at their meeting on October 10,
2016, and unanimously recommended Town Council approval. Staff also recommends
approval.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The Oro Valley Water Utility desires to make capital improvements to the Northwest
reclaimed system in the form of installing a fourth pump at Tucson Water's Thornydale
Reclaimed Water Pumping Station. Amendment 4 to addendum 1 will allow for the
installation of a fourth pumping unit to increase operational flexibility and improve
efficiency to ensure that the Town continues to receive reclaimed water deliveries.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
Amendment Number 4 to Addendum 1 amends the existing Intergovernmental
Agreement between the Town of Oro Valley and the City of Tucson relating to effluent
and reclaimed water. It allows for the installation and operation of a fourth pumping unit.

The original design of the reclaimed booster pumping station contemplated and allowed
for the addition of a fourth pumping unit as the facilities aged and pumps needed to be
replaced in the future. Currently, the pump station is equipped with three booster pumps.
Under high demand conditions, all three pumps are in operation. If there is a pump or
motor failure, the Water Utility will not be able to meet the reclaimed demand without
supplementing with potable water. A fourth pumping unit will provide pumping capacity
redundancy when an existing older pump needs replacement. This will also increase
operational flexibility for delivery of reclaimed water. Increased rotation of the pump
operations can also extend the life of the pump and motor. Addition of another pump and
motor will improve efficiency with the installation of a new and more efficient electric
motor.



motor.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This project is estimated to cost $200,000 and funds have been budgeted for fiscal year
2016/17. 

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to (approve or deny) resolution No. (R)16-55, authorizing and
approving amendment number 4 to addendum 1 of the intergovernmental agreement
between the Town of Oro Valley and the City of Tucson relating to effluent and reclaimed
water.

Attachments
(R)16-55 Reclaimed Water IGA 
Amendment 



C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@080982FB\@BCL@080982FB.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/081910

RESOLUTION NO. (R)16-55

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ORO 
VALLEY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AMENDMENT 
NUMBER 4 TO ADDENDUM 1 OF THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY AND THE CITY OF 
TUCSON RELATING TO EFFLUENT AND TO RECLAIMED WATER

WHEREAS, pursuant to ARS § 11-952, the Town of Oro Valley is authorized to enter 
Intergovernmental Agreements for joint and cooperative action with other public agencies; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to ARS § 9-511, et seq., the Town has the requisite statutory authority to 
acquire, own and maintain a water utility for the benefit of the landowners within and the 
without the Town’s corporate boundaries; and

WHEREAS, the Town entered into Addendum 1 of the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) 
between the Town and the City of Tucson relating to the effluent and to reclaimed water on 
October 27, 2003; and

WHEREAS, the Town and the City of Tucson desire to enter into Amendment Number 4 to 
Addendum 1 of the IGA to install an additional pump and motor for efficient delivery of 
reclaimed water; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Town to enter into Amendment Number 4 to 
Addendum 1 of the Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Tucson, attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference, in order to set forth the terms and 
conditions of extending the terms of the Agreement another five (5) years.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Oro 
Valley, Arizona, that:

1. Amendment Number 4 to Addendum 1 of the Intergovernmental Agreement between 
the Town of Oro Valley and the City of Tucson, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”,
allowing for the installation of an additional pump and motor for reclaimed water 
deliveries.

2. The Mayor and any other administrative officials of the Town of Oro Valley are 
hereby authorized to take such steps as necessary to execute and implement the terms 
of the Amendment.



C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@080982FB\@BCL@080982FB.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/081910

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Oro Valley, 
Arizona this 16th day of November, 2016.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY

__________________________
Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________
Michael Standish, Town Clerk Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director



C:\Windows\TEMP\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@080982FB\@BCL@080982FB.doc Town of Oro Valley Attorney’s Office/ca/081910

EXHIBIT “A”



EX _____ TO RESOLUTION NO. ____________
CITY OF TUCSON CONTRACT NO. 0355-04

Exhibit A to Resolution No. __________

AMENDMENT NUMBER 4 TO ADDENDUM 1 TO THE CITY OF TUCSON – TOWN OF 
ORO VALLEY INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS RELATING TO EFFLUENT 
AND TO RECLAIMED WATER

Amendment Number 4

WHEREAS, the City of Tucson (“City”) and the Town of Oro Valley (“Town”) entered into Addendum 1 
to an Intergovernmental Agreement (“IGA”) relating to effluent and to reclaimed water on October 27, 
2003, attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” and recorded at Docket 12177, Page 442 through 449;

WHEREAS, the Town wishes to make Capital Improvements to the Northwest System in the form of 
installation of a fourth pump at the Thornydale Reclaimed Reservoir pump station; and

WHEREAS, Section 3.C. of the Addendum stipulates Capital Improvements to the Northwest System 
shall be memorialized in an addendum to the Effluent IGA;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein, set forth and for 
other good and valuable consideration, the parties agree to amend the IGA as follows:

3. Reservation of Capacity within Tucson’s Reclaimed Water Distribution System.

C. Capital Improvements for Interruptible rate: Oro Valley may make improvements to the NW 
System in order to provide sufficient capacity to allow Oro Valley to continue to receive Oro 
Valley's Reclaimed Water at the Interruptible Rate. Tucson and Oro Valley shall memorialize the 
precise terms of such improvements in a subsequent addendum to the Effluent IGA.

1. Town shall provide the necessary equipment, pay City the established Tucson Water fees
for design, and reimburse the City for the actual installation cost of a fourth pump at the 
Thornydale Reclaimed Reservoir pump station, which connects to Tucson’s NW System at
the Thornydale Reservoir.  Oro Valley shall have the right to review and approve the cost 
proposal prior to Tucson Water commencing with the installation of the fourth pump. 
Following installation of the additional pump, City will maintain any infrastructure west of 
the interface point, defined as the west right-of-way line of Thornydale Road, and Town 
will maintain any infrastructure east of that point.

All other provisions of the IGA not specifically revised by this Amendment shall remain in effect and be 
binding upon the parties. This amendment may be adopted in counterparts with copies of each executed 
document provided to the other party subsequent to adoption by each respective elected body.



{A0101796.DOC/} 2

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties do hereby affix their signatures and do hereby agree to carry out 
the terms of this amendment to the original IGA.

CITY OF TUCSON

Jonathan Rothschild, Mayor

ATTEST:

Roger Randolph, City Clerk

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY

______________________________
Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________________
Michael Standish, Oro Valley Town Clerk

Date: __________________________ Date: __________________________

Intergovernmental Determination

The foregoing Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Tucson and the Town of Oro Valley has 
been reviewed pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952 by the undersigned, who have determined that it is in proper 
form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws of the State of Arizona to those parties 
to the Intergovernmental Agreement represented by the undersigned.

City Attorney Town Attorney 



   
Town Council Regular Session Item #   1. a.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2016  
Requested by: Rosevelt Arellano 
Submitted By: Rosevelt Arellano

Development Infrastructure Services
Department: Development Infrastructure Services

Information
SUBJECT:
RESOLUTION NO. (R)16-48, AMENDING THE GENERAL PLAN FUTURE LAND USE
MAP FROM NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL/OFFICE TO MEDIUM DENSITY
RESIDENTIAL FOR A 17.8 ACRE PROPERTY, LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST
CORNER OF RANCHO VISTOSO BOULEVARD AND VISTOSO HIGHLANDS DRIVE

RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The purpose of this request is to consider a Major General Plan Amendment application
to change the existing land use designation from Neighborhood Commercial/Office
(NCO) to Medium Density Residential (MDR) (Attachment 1). The proposed residential
development is on a 17.8-acre site located at the northwest corner of Rancho Vistoso
Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive (Attachment 2).

This application (Attachment 3) is a second attempt to change the existing land use
designation on the property from NCO to MDR. The first request was denied in 2013 on
the basis that a neighborhood-level commercial use would better serve the community.
As it appears today, a commercial use is no longer viable on this property because there
is not enough homes or vehicular traffic to support a future commercial development.

Since the denial of the last amendment, several surrounding subdivisions have been
approved or proposed with far fewer homes than the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area
Development envisioned. The underdevelopment of these parcels is considered a
significant change in the community since the last amendment.

On September 16, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval based
on the findings that the request meets the Zoning Code and the General Plan. The
application was agendized for the September 21, 2016 Town Council meeting. At the
applicant’s request, Council voted to continue this item and the accompanying PAD



applicant’s request, Council voted to continue this item and the accompanying PAD
Amendment to their November 16 meeting.
 

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
Land Use Context

The property is vacant and has a General Plan designation of Neighborhood
Commercial/Office. The existing land uses and General Plan designations for the
surrounding area are provided in Attachments 2 and 4.

Site Conditions 

17.8 acres
Property is vacant with exception of an HOA monument sign
Two existing curb cuts, each located on Vistoso Highlands Drive and Rancho
Vistoso Boulevard

Approvals-to-date 

June 1987: Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development, Commercial (C-1) zoning

Analysis of Request

The proposed amendment has been reviewed for conformance with the evaluation
criteria found in the Zoning Code and the recently adopted General Plan. These criteria
do not match. To align both documents and create a single set of provisions, the
Planning and Zoning Commission has initiated a Zoning Code Amendment at their
November 2, 2016, meeting. Until the Zoning Code is updated, the old criteria are still
applicable.

Below is an analysis of the proposed amendment in regards to the evaluation criteria
found in the Zoning Code. A more detailed analysis of the project’s conformance with the
Zoning Code and the Your Voice Our Future General Plan is provided in Attachments 5
and 6, respectively.

Amendment Criteria in the Zoning Code

The proposed amendment conforms with the evaluation criteria of the Zoning Code.
These provisions deal with changes in the community, socio-economic betterment,
market demand, and compatibility with the surrounding area. Below is a summary of the
project’s conformance with each of the criterion. 

1. Changes in the Community 

In 2013, the Town Council denied a similar request on the property on the basis that the
retention of a neighborhood-level commercial use would better serve the community.
Since the denial, there have been several surrounding subdivisions approved or
proposed with far fewer homes than the Rancho Vistoso PAD envisioned. According to



staff’s research, only one-third (888 out of 2,638) of the entitled homes will be
developed. The underdevelopment of these parcels is considered a significant change
since the last application.

It is readily apparent that a neighborhood-level commercial use is no longer viable on
the property because there are not enough homes or vehicular traffic in the surrounding
area to support a future commercial development. The locations and total number of
dwelling units for the surrounding subdivisions are shown in Attachment 7.
 
It is worth noting that a commercial use on this property may detract from the success of
other existing and future commercial developments in Rancho Vistoso (e.g., Mountain
Vista Plaza on the northeast corner of Sun City and Rancho Vistoso Boulevards, Rancho
Vistoso Center on the northwest corner Oracle Road and Rancho Vistoso Boulevard,
and the vacant commercial parcel on the southeast corner of Ranch Vistoso Boulevard
and Moore Road, etc.).
 
Although the proposed residential development is compatible with the surrounding area,
careful consideration should be given to the proposed lower density (2.19 homes per
acre) which can have a long-term negative impact on the viability of other commercial
properties in Rancho Vistoso. Attachment 8 shows an inventory of developed and vacant
commercial properties in this area.

2. Socio-Economic Betterment 

The proposed amendment to MDR contributes to the betterment of the adjacent
neighbors by allowing the construction of a residential development with lesser impacts
than those uses permitted under the existing commercial zoning.

3. Market Demand 

The applicant’s request appears to be in response to the current market demand for
single-family detached homes. This is evident by the total number of building permits
issued for new homes and the recently approved subdivisions in the surrounding area.

4. Compatibility with the Surrounding Area 

The above criterion is met on the basis that the impacts of the proposed subdivision will
be mitigated through the Town’s rezoning and design process. Specific mitigation
measures have been proposed as part of the rezoning application, such as a one-story
building height restriction.

General Plan Conformance

The proposed amendment is consistent with the Vision, Goals and Policies of both
General Plans (former and current). The applicable Goals and Policies relate to
compatibility, environmental protection and housing type. A more detailed analysis is
provided in Attachments 5 and 6.



Planning and Zoning Commission Review

The proposed amendment was considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission
(PZC) at their August 23 and September 6, 2016 meetings. The main topic discussed at
the meetings included the viability of other vacant commercial properties in Rancho
Vistoso.
 
At their September 6 meeting, the Commission recommended approval based on the
finding that the proposed amendment is consistent with the General Plan (former and
current) and conforms with the amendment criteria found in the Zoning Code and the 
Your Voice Our Future General Plan. The PZC staff reports and meeting minutes are
included as Attachments 9 and 10.

Public Notification and Comments

The following public notification has been provided: 

All property owners within 1,000 feet
Additional interested parties who signed in at neighborhood meetings
Homeowners Association mailing
Advertisement in The Daily Territorial and Arizona Daily Star newspapers
Post on property
Post at Town Hall and on Town website
Outside review agencies

Two neighborhood meetings were held on April 25 and June 30, 2016, with
approximately 40 residents at each meeting. The main topics discussed at the meetings
included preserving the existing views to the east, traffic circulation, architecture and wall
design.

In response to the neighbors’ concerns for view preservation, the applicant has agreed
to limit the proposed building height to 25’, one-story for pitch roof homes and 22’
one-story for flat roof homes. The applicant has also agreed to design a perimeter wall in
conformance with the Rancho Vistoso HOA Design Guidelines. These agreements are
included as conditions in the accompanying rezoning application.

A copy of the neighborhood meeting summary notes are provided as Attachment 11, and
five letters of concern are included as Attachment 12.
 

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to adopt Resolution No. (R)16-48, approving a Major General Plan Amendment



I MOVE to adopt Resolution No. (R)16-48, approving a Major General Plan Amendment
from Neighborhood Commercial/Office (NCO) to Medium Density Residential for Parcel
10J, Rancho Vistoso, finding that the proposed amendment is consistent with the
General Plan and conforms with the amendment criteria.
 
OR
 
I MOVE to deny the requested Major General Plan Amendment from Neighborhood
Commercial/Office (NCO) to Medium Density Residential for Parcel 10J, Rancho
Vistoso, finding that _________________________.

Attachments
(R)16-48 General Plan Future Land Use Map 
Attachment 2 - Location Map 
Attachment 3 - Application 
Attachment 4 - General Plan Future Land Use Map 
Attachment 5 - Old General Plan Amendment Criteria Analysis 
Attachment 6 - New General Plan Amendment Criteria Analsysis 
Attachment 7 - Map of Surrounding Subdivisions 
Attachment 8 - Map of Commercial Properties 
Attachment 9 - PZC Staff Report 
Attachment 10 - PZC Meeting Minutes 
Attachment 11 - Neighborhood Meeting Summary Notes 
Attachment 12 - Correspondences 



RESOLUTION NO. (R)16-48

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING THE GENERAL PLAN TO CHANGE THE LAND USE 
DESIGNATION FROM NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL/OFFICE 
(NCO) TO MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (MDR), FOR THE 17.8 
ACRE SITE LOCATED ON THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF RANCHO 
VISTOSO BOULEVARD AND VISTOSO HIGHLANDS DRIVE

WHEREAS, the Town of Oro Valley residents ratified the Oro Valley General Plan on 
November 8, 2005; and

WHEREAS, Paul Oland of WLB Group, Inc, (“applicant”) is requesting a Major General Plan 
Amendment to change the land use designation from Neighborhood Commercial/Office (NCO)
to Medium Density Residential (MDR) for the 17.8 acre site located on the northwest corner of 
Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-461, et seq. and OVZCR, Section 22.2, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission held two (2) duly noticed public hearings, the first on August 23, 2016, and
the second on September 6, 2016, at which the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended
approval of the application requesting Major General Plan Amendment to change the land use 
designation from Neighborhood Commercial/Office (NCO) to Medium Density Residential 
(MDR) for the 17.8 acre site located on the northwest corner of Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and 
Vistoso Highlands Drive as depicted on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
this reference; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Oro Valley Zoning Code Revised, Section 22.2, General Plan 
Amendment Procedures, upon recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission of any 
amendment to the General Plan, a public hearing before the Mayor and Council shall be 
scheduled; and 

WHEREAS, Mayor and Council duly considered the proposed Major General Plan Amendment to 
change the land use designation from Neighborhood Commercial/Office (NCO) to Medium 
Density Residential (MDR) for the 17.8 acre site located on the northwest corner of Rancho 
Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive; at a public hearing on November 16, 2016.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of 
Oro Valley that:

SECTION 1. The Mayor and Council hereby adopts the Major General Plan Amendment to 
change the land use designation from Neighborhood Commercial/Office (NCO) to Medium 
Density Residential (MDR) for the 17.8 acre site located on the northwest corner of Rancho 
Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive as depicted on Exhibit “A”.

SECTION 2. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of the resolution or 
any part of the General Plan Amendment adopted herein is for any reason held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof.



2

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona this
16th day of November, 2016.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY

Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Michael Standish, Town Clerk Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director

Date: Date: 



3

Exhibit “A” 

Ra
nc
ho

Vistoso

Visto
so Highlands

LOCATION



 
 
 
 
 
 

Ran
ch

o
Vistoso

Vistoso Highlands

LOCATION

 

 

LOCATION MAP
VISTOSO HIGHLANDS (OV1601094)

                                                                                               Attachment 2



 
 
 
 
 

 
QUIKTRIP STORE #1481 
ORACLE/ORANGE GROVE 
Pima County, AZ 
 
DUE DILIGENCE PACKAGE 
06.22.2011 
 

 
 

Prepared For 
Vistoso Highlands Property LLC 

6420 E. Tanque Verde Road 
Tucson, Arizona 85715 

 
 
 

Prepared By 
The WLB Group, Inc. 

4444 East Broadway Blvd. 
Tucson, Arizona 85711 

Contact: Paul Oland 
520.881.7480 

gpoland@wlbgroup.com 
 
 

WLB No. 185050-VH-01

 
OV1601-094 

Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10-J 
Oro Valley, Arizona 
Narrative for Major General Plan 
Amendment Application 
2nd Submittal 
 
July 21, 2016 Revised: 8.8.2016 

 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 3



  
 i 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 
A. Project Summary   ............................................................................................................. 1 
B. Property Data   .................................................................................................................. 1 
C. General Plan 2020 Amendment Criteria  ......................................................................... 2 
D. Your Voice, Our Future General Plan Amendment Criteria............................................. 4 
E. General Plan Policy Conformance .................................................................................... 6 
 
 

Exhibits 
 

• Location Map 
• Existing General Plan Land Use Designations 
• Proposed General Plan Land Use Designations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
 1 

A. Project Summary 
 
Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 10 Parcel J is a proposed residential subdivision located at the 
northwest corner of Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive.  As a master 
planned community, Rancho Vistoso appropriately included abundant commercial land to meet 
the needs of its anticipated population.  However, over the years Rancho Vistoso has developed 
at roughly two-thirds of its originally envisioned residential density.  A commensurate drop in 
need for commercial land has resulted, which has caused this property to remain undeveloped.  
As Rancho Vistoso rapidly approaches build-out, the prospects grow dim that enough additional 
homes will be built in the area to support the development of the smaller, neighborhood-level 
commercial lands such as this one within the PAD.  Of course, the General Plan’s future land use 
designations reflect the original PAD design, and not the market reality that has manifested 
since then.  This General Plan amendment request proposes to allow residential land uses to 
replace the current commercial entitlements due to the longstanding lack of commercial 
interest in this property’s immediate vicinity. 
 
The subject property is approximately 17.8± acres, and this amendment proposal is to change 
the designated land use from Neighborhood Commercial / Office (NCO) to Medium Density 
Residential (MDR).  The proposed amendment in land uses is supported by several factors, 
including its proximity to existing commercial developments, compatibility with surrounding 
land uses, and adjacency to two arterial roadways.  The anticipated overall gross density of 
Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10-J will be approximately 2.2 dwelling units per acre. 
 
In order to make this project a reality, the appropriate land entitlements must be acquired for 
the property. The property owner is focused on acquiring the necessary entitlements in the 
Town of Oro Valley, and the first step in achieving these necessary land entitlements involves a 
major amendment to the Oro Valley General Plan.  The current Oro Valley General Plan land 
use designation for this property is not consistent with historic, current, or anticipated market 
demand; as such, this application for a major amendment is being submitted.   
 
B. Property Data 
 
Location:  The property is located at the northwest corner of the intersection of Rancho Vistoso 
Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive. 
 
Area of Property: 17.8± acres. 
 
Area of General Plan Amendment: 17.8± acres. 
 
Assessor Parcel Number: 219-20-004M and 219-20-0041L. 
 
Legal Description: A portion of the SW ¼ of Section 24, Township 11 south, Range 13 east. 
 



  
 2 

Existing Land Uses: The property is vacant. 
 
Existing Zoning: The property is currently zoned as Rancho Vistoso PAD: C-1 Commercial. 
 
Existing Oro Valley General Plan Designations: The property is designated as Neighborhood 
Commercial / Office due to the fact that the PAD’s zoning pre-dates the General Plan.  The 
General Plan’s land uses are based on the PAD’s original design.   
 
Requested Oro Valley General Plan Designations: The requested land use designation for the 
property is Medium Density Residential (MDR) which is similar to surrounding developments. 
 
C. General Plan 2020 Amendment Criteria 

In accordance with Section 22 of the Oro Valley Zoning Code Revised, the disposition of the 
General Plan amendment proposed shall be based on consistency with the vision, goals, and 
policies of the General Plan 2020, with special emphasis on compliance with the following 
criteria: 

1. The proposed change is necessary because conditions in the community changed to 
the extent that the plan requires amendment or modification. 
 

• The language of this criterion presupposes that the General Plan’s land uses pre-
date and are the basis for the property’s current entitlement when, in reality, it is 
entirely the opposite.  It is therefore ironic that we must now provide evidence as to 
what conditions have changed since “the plan” was formed.  This longstanding and 
unfortunate paradox could easily be rectified if the whole PAD were appropriately 
redesignated as Master Planned Community (MPC).  If not for successful master 
plans such as Rancho Vistoso, for what then was the General Plan’s MPC designation 
intended?  Regardless this property has been zoned commercial since the mid-
eighties when the Rancho Vistoso P.A.D. was adopted.  The demand for commercial 
in this immediate area has not materialized since that time, and consequently the 
land sits un-utilized.  Over the years Rancho Vistoso has developed at roughly two-
thirds of its originally envisioned residential density, and as such there is less 
commercial demand than originally anticipated for this area. 

• Rancho Vistoso started out with above average commercial entitlements.  For 
example, the PAD included 4,020 square feet of commercial land per residential 
unit, whereas Oro Valley overall only has roughly 1,740 square feet of commercial 
land per residential unit.  In the years since the General Plan was approved, and 
especially since the previous amendment request on this property, low to mid-
density development is proceeding on the parcels representing the last opportunity 
for significant density to be achieved in the area (Maracay & Mattamy).  With the 
relative underdevelopment of these parcels the last hope is lost for commercial 
viability in the area.  

 



  
 3 

2. The proposed change is sustainable by contributing to the socio-economic betterment 
of the community, while achieving community and environmental compatibility. 
 

• This property has sat vacant since Rancho Vistoso’s inception.  If rezoned for 
residential land use, this property will be designed and constructed to the same high 
standards as the surrounding Rancho Vistoso neighborhoods.  Public facilities and 
infrastructure already exist nearby, so this development will not place additional 
burden on public infrastructure.  In fact, this development will contribute to the 
long-term socio-economic betterment of the community by providing convenient 
high quality housing for employees of Oro Valley’s businesses. 

• This proposed residential development will achieve community and environmental 
compatibility in several ways.  This development will contain landscape buffers and 
provide open space along the wash to the west.  In addition, this development will 
be tied into the nearby sidewalks and bicycle lanes, allowing residents to easily 
access Oro Valley’s bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure. 

• The guidelines of the Rancho Vistoso PAD will apply to this development. It will 
therefore look and feel very similar to the surrounding Rancho Vistoso 
neighborhoods.  This includes similar landscaping, architectural themes, and open 
space treatment. 

 
3. The proposed change reflects market demand which leads to viability and general 
community acceptance. 
 

• As discussed above, changing the designated land use of the property from 
commercial to residential will result in utilization of this infill site.  This is a viable 
residential land use that is similar to, and compatible with, the surrounding uses.  
The existing commercial designation has never been, is not, and now appears 
unlikely ever to be viable. 

 
4. The amendment will not adversely impact the community as a whole, or a portion of 
the community without an acceptable means of mitigating these impacts through the 
subsequent zoning and development process. 
 

• This General Plan amendment request seeks to change the existing land use 
designation from commercial to residential.  Currently, the site has been vacant 
since its creation.  This proposal is to allow residential uses similar to the existing 
residential properties neighboring the site.  Any impacts will be addressed during the 
P.A.D. amendment phase or during subsequent detailed development proposals. 

• This sort of residential development as proposed is generally accepted to be less 
impactful to nearby homeowners than such commercial developments as could be 
built under the existing zoning. 
 



  
 4 

• Demand for single-family detached housing is strong in Oro Valley.  This property is 
ideal for residential use since residential land uses already border the site, and were 
developed according to the same PAD standards to which this project will be held. 

• The accompanying rezoning application includes conditions of approval that were 
developed throughout the neighborhood meeting process including: restricting 
homes to single-story with a 25’ height limit for pitched roofs and a 22’ height limit 
for flat roofs; and that all perimeter walls will meet the Rancho Vistoso HOA Design 
Guidelines. 

 
D. Your Voice, Our Future General Plan Amendment Criteria 

In accordance with Section 7.4.2 of the Your Voice, Our Future General Plan, the disposition of 
the General Plan amendment proposed shall be consistent with the vision, guiding principles, 
goals and policies of the General Plan, and the request shall not: 

1.a. Significantly alter existing development character and land use patterns without 
adequate and appropriate buffers and graduated transitions in density and land use. 
 

• The guidelines of the Rancho Vistoso PAD will apply to this development. It will 
therefore look and feel very similar to the surrounding Rancho Vistoso 
neighborhoods.  This includes similar landscaping, architectural themes, and open 
space treatment.  This development will contain landscape buffers around the 
entirety of the project and will provide open space, including 100 percent 
preservation of the onsite Critical Resource Area.  In addition, this development will 
be tied into the nearby sidewalks and bicycle lanes, allowing residents to easily 
access Oro Valley’s bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure.  The proposed density of 
2.2 Du/Ac. is comparable with surrounding developments and will provide a nice 
density transition between the higher density developments to the south and east 
and the lower density developments to the north and west. 
 

1.b. Impact existing uses with increased infrastructure without appropriate improvements 
to accommodate planned growth. 
 

• With this development being on the corner of Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso 
Highlands Drive, utility infrastructure is already in place to accommodate this 
project.  There are existing sewer and water stub-outs in place to serve this 
property, and the developer will pay for any required infrastructure extensions.  As 
such, this development will have a net positive long-term fiscal impact to the Town 
and its taxpayers.  The proposed ingress/egress points are located at existing curb 
cuts and are aligned with existing median cuts to allow for basic traffic movements 
into and out of the site.  Impacts to existing infrastructure are expected to be 
minimal, especially considering that the roads and utilities in Rancho Vistoso were 
designed to accommodate significantly greater intensity development.    
 



  
 5 

1.c.  Impact other public  services  including police,  fire, parks, water and drainage unless 
careful analysis and explanation of anticipated impacts is provided to the Town. 
 

 The  location of  this development and  the proposed home sites will not negatively 
impact public  services such as police,  fire and parks.   Once developed the site will 
have several small detention basins that will retain storm water runoff and meter it 
out  at  pre‐developed  conditions.    The  site  has  also  been  designed  to  take  full 
advantage of existing  storm water  culverts beneath Vistoso Highlands Drive which 
have the capacity to carry storm water runoff from this site.  

 
1.d. Impact the natural beauty and environmental resources without suitable mitigation. 

 

 Prior to development, this site will be inventoried for all significant vegetation.  Plant 
material  that  meets  the  requirements  of  the  Oro  Valley  Zoning  Code  will 
transplanted on site and be included within the buffer yards and other open spaces 
of  the  site.    Plants  that  are  not  suitable  for  transplanting  will  be mitigated.    The 
entire Critical Resource Area on the west side of site will be preserved in its natural 
condition. 

In accordance with Section 7.4.2 of the Your Voice, Our Future General Plan, the disposition of 
the General Plan amendment proposed shall be consistent with the vision, guiding principles, 
goals and policies of the General Plan, with special emphasis on compliance with the following 
criteria: 

2. Implement  effective  public  outreach  efforts  to  help  identify  neighborhood  concerns 
and  respond by  incorporating measures  to avoid or minimize development  impacts, 
and mitigate unavoidable adverse impacts.  

 Since  the  start  of  this  project  we  have  held  several  meetings  with  surrounding  HOA 
boards in the project vicinity, including the Vistoso Highlands HOA, Monterey at Vistoso 
HOA,  and  the  Stone  Village  HOA.    These  meetings  were  held  prior  to  the  required 
neighborhood  meetings  in  order  to  increase  public  awareness  of  the  proposal  and 
identify  any  initial  concerns  that  surrounding  neighborhoods  may  have  with  the 
development  of  this  property.    Generally  all  the  feedback  received  so  far  has  been 
supportive of this project.  It is generally accepted that a commercial corner in this area 
is  no  longer  practical;  and  that  by  amending  the  General  Plan  to  allow  for  medium 
density residential, this property will fit the character of the area very well.   

 The  first  formal  neighborhood meeting was  held  on April,  25th  2016,  and  a  follow up 
neighborhood meeting was held on June, 30th 2016.  These two neighborhood meetings 
were very productive and gave surrounding neighbors a chance  to provide  their  input 
about  the  proposed  project.    Minor  issues  that  arose  during  both  neighborhood 
meetings  included  building  heights  in  direct  relation  to  viewsheds,  perimeter  wall 
designs and ingress/egress locations of the site.  The accompanying rezoning application 
includes  conditions  of  approval  that  were  developed  throughout  the  neighborhood 



  
 6 

meeting process including: restricting homes to single-story with a 25’ height limit for 
pitched roofs and a 22’ height limit for flat roofs; and that all perimeter walls will meet 
the Rancho Vistoso HOA Design Guidelines. 

 
E. General Plan Policy Conformance 
 
A number of Oro Valley’s General Plan policies will be met by this development.  Below are a 
few key points: 
 

1. Land Use 
 

• This proposed residential development will have direct access to at least one of two 
arterial roads: Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive.  (Policy 1.3.2) 

• This development looks comprehensively at the subject property and all adjacent 
areas.  The proposed residential use of this property will be completely compatible 
with the surrounding Rancho Vistoso neighborhoods.  (Policy 1.3.5)  

• There is a demand for single-family detached housing in Oro Valley.  Conversely, the 
demand for commercial development in this immediate area is non-existent.  (Policy 
1.4.3) 

• According to the General Plan, the Town shall ensure that areas appropriately zoned 
and planned for neighborhood commercial use are developed.  This property has 
been zoned for commercial uses for over 30 years without achieving development.  
In addition, the General Plan states that the Town needs to consider the financial 
stability and infrastructure efficiency.  As such, the subject property and the Town 
will benefit from the proposed high-quality residential development.  (Policy 1.2.1 
and Policy 1.5.4) 

 
2. Community Design 
 

• This development will be designed and constructed to the existing Rancho Vistoso 
PAD guidelines.  This will be aesthetically pleasing and compatible with surroundings 
by using natural desert colors.  (Policy 2.1.1) 

• This development will conform to the landscape guidelines in the Rancho Vistoso 
PAD guidelines.  This will provide and maintain landscaping that is consistent within 
the community.  This will include similar entry monuments to the surrounding 
Rancho Vistoso neighborhoods.  (Policy 2.1.9) 

• This proposed development will use the existing architectural guidelines approved in 
the Rancho Vistoso P.A.D.  This will provide a consistent architectural character in 
the community while encouraging creative architectural expression for the 
development.  (Policy 2.1.11) 

• To ensure the maintenance of dark skies in Oro Valley and the safety of all residents, 
this new residential development will meet the provisions listed in the requirements 



  
 7 

of the Rancho Vistoso PAD in addition to the Town of Oro Valley Outdoor Lighting 
Code.  (Policy 2.3.1) 

• The PAD’s architectural design guidelines are foundational to the Town’s 
architectural character.  (Policy 2.1.11) 

 
3. Economic Sustainability 
 

• The demand for single-family detached housing and the lack of commercial interest 
in this subject property since first zoned in the 1980’s reflects the community’s 
economic desires.  The future population of this proposed development will also 
help attract and retain desirable business in the surrounding area.  (Policy 3.1.1) 

 
4. Cost of Development 
 

• The infrastructure is already provided near the site, and the developer will pay for 
any required infrastructure extensions.  As such, this development will have a net 
positive long-term fiscal impact on the Town and its taxpayers.  (Policy 4.1.1 and 
Policy 4.1.4) 

 
5. Public Facilities, Services, and Safety 
 

• This proposed residential development is filling in a gap between existing residential 
developments.  Municipal facilities are already located nearby, and therefore are 
cost effectively able to service this development.  (Policy 6.1.1 and Policy TS.6) 

o Below are the driving distances to public facilities from the subject property: 
 Fire Stations 

• 1.5 miles northeast  - Golder Ranch Fire Station 374  
• 2.0 miles south  - Golder Ranch Fire Station 375 
• 4.3 miles southwest  - Golder Ranch Fire Station 376 

 Police Stations 
• 3.5 miles southwest - Oro Valley Main Police Station 
• 1.5 miles northeast - Sun City Vistoso Police Station 

 Schools 
• 3.6 miles northeast  - Coronado K-8 School 
• 1.3 miles south - Painted Sky Elementary School 
• 2.5 miles south - Copper Creek Elementary School 
• 3.5 miles southwest - Wilson K-8 School 
• 4.5 miles southwest - Ironwood Ridge High School 
• 3.7 miles southeast - Basis Oro Valley 

 Town Hall 
• 3.5 miles south 

o Additionally, utilities are already available to the property. 
 



  
 8 

6. Housing 
 

• This development will be a high quality neighborhood while simultaneously 
protecting the integrity and context of the existing neighborhoods.  This proposed 
residential development will include a landscape buffer, and allow the same uses as 
the adjacent residential properties.  In addition, this development will comply with 
the guidelines set forth in the Rancho Vistoso PAD.  (Policy 7.1.1) 

• This development provides safe vehicular access for residents at its ingress/egress 
point(s) as well as giving adequate distances between access drives.  In addition to 
motor vehicles, this proposed development ties into the sidewalks and bicycle lanes 
on Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive.  (Policy 7.1.5) 

• This development will complement the diverse range of housing types and price 
ranges within the Oro Valley community. (Policy CC.7) 

• This development provides existing and future Oro Valley businesses with nearby 
high quality housing for their employees and customers.  (Policy 7.3.1 and Policy 
CC.8) 

 
7. Parks and Recreation 
 

• This proposed residential development contains sidewalks that will tie into the 
existing sidewalk system on Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive.  
In addition, the subject property also ties into the existing bicycle lanes on Rancho 
Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive.  By providing this convenient 
connectivity, future residents of this development can easily access municipal and 
regional parks located along the pedestrian and bicycle network.  (Policy 8.2.1 and 
Policy CC.3) 

 
8. Open Space and Natural Resources Conservation 
 

• This development will preserve 100% of the Critical Resource Area onsite in its 
natural condition. It will also set aside portions of the property for open space, in 
addition to approximately 50% open space already set aside in Rancho Vistoso.  
(Policy 11.1.11 and Policy SD.2) 

• This proposed development will only use the landscape material approved in the 
Rancho Vistoso PAD.  Drought-tolerant vegetation is included in the Rancho Vistoso 
Recommended Plant List, as well as prohibiting certain invasive, allergenic, and 
nuisance species in the development.  (Policy 11.2.15) 

• This development will meet the Native Plant Preservation Plan guidelines from the 
Town and conserve healthy native vegetation during the development process.  
(Policy 11.2.16 and Policy SD.4) 

• This proposed development maintains the character of the scenic corridors and 
viewsheds along Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive by providing 
landscape buffers and underground utilities.  (Policy 11.3.2 and Policy SD.6) 



  
 9 

• To ensure this proposed development blends and/or enhances the natural 
environment, all utilities will be placed underground.  This will help protect the 
views from surrounding properties and roads.  (Policy 11.3.3) 

• This development can supply workers to the nearby employment centers in Oro 
Valley, resulting in less automobile emissions.  (Policy 11.3.4 and Policy CC.8) 

• To protect the scenic night sky in the community, this proposed development will 
meet the stringent lighting requirements of the Oro Valley Outdoor Lighting Code.  
Restrictions will include minimizing wasted energy while not compromising the 
safety, security, and well-being of residents engaged in night-time activities.  To 
control obtrusive aspects of outdoor lighting usage, this proposed development will 
have reduced and/or shielded lighting. 

 
9. Water Resources 
 

• This proposed development will utilize an alternative to groundwater by connecting 
to Oro Valley Water Utility, which participates in the Central Arizona Project (C.A.P.).  
(Policy 12.2.1 and Policy WR.3) 

• This development will include water conservation features, including a water 
efficient irrigation system and drought tolerant vegetation.  There will be two types 
of irrigation systems in this development: one system for the common areas, and 
individual irrigation systems on the lots.  This project will meet the water 
conservation standards in the Rancho Vistoso P.A.D. as well as the water 
conservation standards in the Oro Valley Town Code, Chapter 15, Section 18.  (Policy 
12.3.2) 

• This development will have a series of small first flush detention basins to help 
protect the public and environment from stromwater surges and contaminants from 
runoff.  (Policy SD.10) 

 



  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

EXHIBITS 









 
 
 

                         

 

EXISTING / PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN
VISTOSO HIGHLANDS (OV1601094)

                                                                                               Attachment 4



Attachment 5 
Staff Analysis 

Amendment Criteria of the Zoning Code  
2005 General Plan  

 
A. Amendment Criteria Analysis  
 

General Plan Amendments are evaluated for consistency with the General Plan Amendment 
criteria in the Zoning Code. It is the burden of the applicant to present facts and other 
materials to support their request. The applicant’s full response to each of the criteria is 
included in Attachment 3. Below is a summary of the applicant’s responses (in italics) followed 
by staff’s analysis of each criterion:  

 
1. The proposed change is necessary because conditions in the community have 

changed to the extent that the plan requires amendment or modification. 
 

Applicant’s Response – See Page 2 of Attachment 3 
 
…This property has been zoned commercial since the mid-eighties when the Rancho Vistoso 
Planned Area Development (PAD) was adopted. The demand for commercial in this 
immediate area has not materialized since that time, and consequently the land sits un-
utilized. Over the years Rancho Vistoso has developed at roughly two-thirds of its originally 
envisioned residential density, and as such there is less commercial demand than originally 
anticipated for this area. 
 
Rancho Vistoso started out with above average commercial entitlements. For example, the PAD 
included 4,020 square feet of commercial land per residential unit, whereas Oro Valley overall 
only has roughly 1,740 square feet of commercial land per residential unit. In the years since the 
General Plan was approved, and especially since the previous amendment request on this 
property, low to mid-density development is proceeding on the parcels representing the last 
opportunity for significant density to be achieved in the area (Maracay & Mattamy). With the 
relative underdevelopment of these parcels the last hope is lost for commercial viability in the 
area. 
 
The Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development (PAD) was adopted nearly 25 years ago with 
the vision that there would be a sufficient number of homes to support the planned 
commercial parcels within the community. The applicant’s response indicates that the 
underdevelopment of the Rancho Vistoso PAD has created a decrease in commercial 
demand.   
 
The following data is intended provide information regarding the total number of dwelling units 
and commercial properties in Rancho Vistoso. The data source is the Oro Valley Permitting 
System and the Rancho Vistoso PAD.  
 
Dwelling units in Rancho Vistoso 
 
The Rancho Vistoso PAD was approved for 13,862 dwelling units. To date, approximately 8,340 
units have been constructed (60% of original entitlement).  

 

Rancho Vistoso Residential Development   

Entitled Units Developed Units % Developed 

13,862 8,340 60% 



In 2013, the Town Council denied a similar amendment on this property on the basis that the 
existing commercial land use designation (NCO) would better serve the community. Since the 
denial, several surrounding subdivisions have or will be platted with far fewer lots than the 
PAD envisioned. The locations and total number of dwelling units for these subdivision are 
shown in Attachment 7. 
 
The underdevelopment of the surrounding residential parcels is considered a significant 
change in conditions. This change in conditions results in a decrease in commercial demand 
based on the reduced number of homes.  

 
Commercial properties in Rancho Vistoso 
 
The Rancho Vistoso PAD planned 344 acres of commercial property. Since the PAD’s 
adoption, approximately 239 acres have been rezoned or developed for a residential or 
commercial use. Approximately 30% of the planned commercial properties (105 acres) are 
remaining. Attachment 8 shows the inventory of developed and vacant commercial properties. 
 

Rancho Vistoso Commercial Areas (in acres)  

Planned in Original PAD Currently Zoned % Remaining 

344 105 30% 
 

In general, the proposed amendment conforms with the above criterion on the basis that a 
commercial use doesn’t appear to be viable on this property because it has sat vacant for over 
30 years. The Town should consider a higher density based on the location of the property 
and future commercial properties in this area.  
 

2.  The proposed change is sustainable by contributing to the socio-economic betterment 
of the community, while achieving community and environmental compatibility. 

 
Applicant’s Response – See Page 3 of Attachment 3 
 
This property has sat vacant since Rancho Vistoso’s inception. If rezoned for residential land 
use, this property will be designed and constructed to the same high standards as the 
surrounding Rancho Vistoso neighborhoods. Public facilities and infrastructure already exist 
nearby, so this development will not place additional burden on public infrastructure. In fact, 
this development will contribute to the long-term socio-economic betterment of the community 
by providing convenient high quality housing for employees of Oro Valley’s businesses.  
 
This proposed residential development will achieve community and environmental 
compatibility in several ways. This development will contain landscape buffers and provide 
open space along the wash to the west. In addition, this development will be tied into the 
nearby sidewalks and bicycle lanes, allowing residents to easily access Oro Valley’s bicycle 
and pedestrian infrastructure. 
 
The guidelines of the Rancho Vistoso PAD will apply to this development. It will therefore look 
and feel very similar to the surrounding Rancho Vistoso neighborhoods. This includes similar 
landscaping, architectural themes, and open space treatment. 
 
The applicant indicates that the requested amendment contributes to the socio-economic 
betterment of the community by providing residential development for the Town’s growing 
workforce. To ensure neighborhood compatibility, the narrative states that the proposed 



development will contain a similar subdivision design (e.g., landscape bufferyards, open 
space, pedestrian connections, etc.) as the surrounding single-family neighborhoods. 
 
To improve socio-economic betterment, consideration should be given to develop the property 
at a higher density to promote a balance between the total number of dwelling units and future 
commercial development. In the short term, market trends support the proposed amendment 
for lower density residential development. In the long term, however, Parcel 10J could be 
developed at a higher density because of its ideal location (e.g., two major roadways, existing 
infrastructure, similar uses (condominiums) and several commercial centers).  
 
The proposed amendment conforms with the above criterion based on the fact that the 
proposed subdivision design is compatible with the surrounding area and will have a lesser 
impact than those uses permitted under the existing commercial zoning.  

 
3.  The proposed change reflects market demand which leads to viability and general 

community acceptance. 
 

Applicant’s Response – See Page 3 of Attachment 3 
 
As discussed above, changing the designated land use of the property from commercial to 
residential will result in utilization of this infill site. This is a viable residential land use that is 
similar to, and compatible with, the surrounding uses. The existing commercial designation 
has never been, is not, and now appears unlikely ever to be viable. 
 
Staff agrees that the current market demand is for lower density residential housing. The 
proposed residential use of the property appears to be in response to the recent increase in 
detached single-family residential demand within Oro Valley. Attachment 7 shows the 
locations of the surrounding residential developments subdivisions approved or in process 
within the last three years.  

 
4. The amendment will not adversely impact the community as a whole, or a portion of the 

community without an acceptable means of mitigating these impacts through the 
subsequent zoning and development processes. 

 
Applicant’s Response – See Page 3 of Attachment 3 
 
This General Plan amendment request seeks to change the existing land use designation 
from commercial to residential. Currently, the site has been vacant since its creation. This 
proposal is to allow residential uses similar to the existing residential properties neighboring 
the site. Any impacts will be addressed during the P.A.D. amendment phase or during 
subsequent detailed development proposals. 
 
The sort of residential development as proposed is generally accepted to be less impactful to 
nearby homeowners than such commercial developments as could be built under the existing 
zoning. 
 
Demand for single-family detached housing is strong in Oro Valley. This property is ideal for 
residential use since residential land uses already border the site, and were developed 
according to the same PAD standards to which this project will be held. 
 
The accompanying rezoning application includes conditions of approval that were developed 
throughout the neighborhood meeting process including: restricting homes to single-story with 



a 25’ height limit for pitched roofs and a 22’ height limit for flat roofs; and that all perimeter 
walls will meet the Rancho Vistoso HOA Design Guidelines. 
 
Staff agrees that impacts associated with the proposed subdivision can be mitigated through 
the Town’s rezoning and design process. The larger community impact of the amendment is 
the proposed lower residential density, which can have a long term negative impact on 
commercial viability.  The above criterion has been met.  
  

B.  2005 General Plan – Vision, Goals and Policies Analysis 
 
1. Vision Statement 
 

To be a well planned community that uses its resources to balance the needs of today against 
the potential impacts to future generations. Oro Valley’s lifestyle is defined by the highest 
standard of environmental integrity, education, infrastructure, services, and public safety. It is 
a community of people working together to create the Town’s future with a government that is 
responsive to residents and ensures the long-term financial stability of the Town. 
 
The vision statement from the General Plan emphasizes the need to carefully balance land 
use decisions which respond to current conditions, against the long term impact to the 
community. Although the proposed subdivision is compatible with the surrounding area, 
careful consideration should be given to the proposed lower density (2.19 homes per acre) 
which can reduce the viability of commercial development in the area.  

 
2. Goals and Policies 
 

The applicant has provided analysis of the amendments conformance with adopted General 
Plan policies, which is provided in Attachment 3. Staff has evaluated the amendment against 
all General Plan policies, with notable polices identified below. 
  
Policy 1.4.8.  The Town shall continue to require adequate buffering of commercial and   

employment uses from adjacent neighborhoods, with special consideration 
being given to placing office or other less intensive uses adjacent to residential 
areas. 

 
The applicant’s request would provide a compatible land use with the adjacent residential 
area. Impacts of the proposed use can be mitigated through the incorporation of buffer yards, 
landscaped areas and architectural features similar to the adjoining properties.  
 
Policy 2.1.1  The Town shall continue to promote architectural themes and project site  
 design that blends the built environment with natural surroundings. 
 
Policy 7.1 To promote the development of sound, high quality neighborhoods that  
 provide community amenities in an integrated manner. 
 
The proposed subdivision will contain similar design features as surrounding single-family 
neighborhoods.  
 
Goal 7.2  To encourage and maintain a range of housing opportunities. 

 
Policy 7.2.1  The Town shall encourage the development of a variety of types of homes to 

accommodate the varied needs of residents, including single-family attached 



and detached, townhomes, small apartments (3-4 units), condominiums, active 
retirement communities and congregate housing… 

 
Policy 7.2.2 The Town shall encourage a variety of residential building types consistent with 

the General Plan and in accordance with the Town’s zoning and subdivision 
design standards. 

 
This goal and these policies support the development of a diverse range of housing 
opportunities. Additional medium density homes do not advance this goal; rather add to the 
lack of diversity in housing within this area. An alternative to the applicant’s request may be 
consideration of a land use designation which allows a variety in housing (e.g., townhomes, 
casitas, and condominiums).  

 
Goal 1.1:  To preserve Oro Valley’s natural Sonoran Desert environment and the scenic 

resources that are an important part of the community’s quality of life. 
 

The proposed residential development conforms with the Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
Ordinance related to open space, wash preservation and native plant species which exist on 
the property. 



Attachment 6 
Staff Analysis 

Amendment Criteria of the Your Voice Our Future General Plan 
Your Voice Our Future General Plan   

 
A.  Amendment Criteria Analysis  
 

The proposed amendment has been evaluated for consistency with the amendment criteria 
found in the Your Voice Our Future General Plan. It is the burden of the applicant to present 
facts and other materials to support these criteria. The applicant’s full response to each of 
the criteria is included on Attachment 3. Below is a summary of the applicant’s responses (in 
italics) followed by staff’s analysis of each criterion: 

 
1. On balance, the request is consistent with the vision, guiding principles, goals and 

policies of the General Plan as demonstrated by adherence to all the following 
criteria. The request shall not: 
 

a. Significantly alter existing development character and land use patterns without 
adequate and appropriate buffers and graduated transitions in density and land use. 

 
The guidelines of the Rancho Vistoso PAD will apply to this development. It will therefore 
look and feel very similar to the surrounding Rancho Vistoso neighborhoods. This includes 
similar landscaping, architectural themes, and open space treatment. This development will 
contain landscape buffers around the entirety of the project and will provide open space, 
including 100 percent preservation of the onsite Critical Resource Area. In addition, this 
development will be tied into the nearby sidewalks and bicycle lanes, allowing residents to 
easily access Oro Valley’s bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure. The proposed density of 
2.19 Du/Ac. is comparable with surrounding developments and will provide a nice density 
transition between the higher density developments to the south and east and the lower 
density developments to the north and west. 
 
Staff agrees that the proposed amendment will not alter the existing character and land use 
patterns because the proposed subdivision will contain similar design features (e.g., lot 
configuration, landscape bufferyards, pedestrian connection, etc.) as the surrounding single-
family neighborhoods.  

 
b. Impact existing uses with increased infrastructure without appropriate improvements 

to accommodate planned growth. 
 

With this development being on the corner of Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso 
Highlands Drive, utility infrastructure is already in place to accommodate this project. There 
are existing sewer and water stub-outs in place to serve this property, and the developer will 
pay for any required infrastructure extensions. As such, this development will have a net 
positive long-term fiscal impact to the Town and its taxpayers. The proposed ingress/egress 
points are located at existing curb cuts and are aligned with existing median cuts to allow for 
basic traffic movements into and out of the site. Impacts to existing infrastructure are 
expected to be minimal, especially considering that the roads and utilities in Rancho Vistoso 
were designed to accommodate significantly greater intensity development. 
 
Staff agrees that the surrounding area contains existing infrastructure and improvements 
(e.g., water and sewer lines, curb cuts and other road improvements, etc.) to support the 
proposed residential development.   



c. Impact other public services including police, fire, parks, water and drainage unless 
careful analysis and explanation of anticipated impacts is provided to the Town for 
review. 

 
The location of this development and the 39 proposed home sites will not negatively impact   
detention basins that will retain storm water runoff and meter it out at pre-developed 
conditions. The site has also been designed to take full advantage of existing storm water 
culverts beneath Vistoso Highlands Drive which have the capacity to carry storm water 
runoff from this site. 

 
There is sufficient public services and improvements to support the proposed residential 
development.  

 
d. Impact the natural beauty and environmental resources without suitable mitigation. 
 

Prior to development, this site will be inventoried for all significant vegetation. Plant material 
that meets the requirements of the Oro Valley Zoning Code will transplanted on site and be 
included within the buffer yards and other open spaces of the site. Plants that are not 
suitable for transplanting will be mitigated. The entire Critical Resource Area on the west 
side of site will be preserved in its natural condition. 
 
The above criterion will be met as a result of the project being subject to all applicable 
zoning provisions related to plant mitigation, landscaping and environmental protection, and 
full compliance with the Environmentally Sensitive Lands Ordinance (ESLO).  

 
2. The applicant has implemented effective public outreach efforts to identify 

neighborhood concerns and has responded by incorporating measures to avoid or 
minimize development impacts to the extent reasonably possible, as well as to 
mitigate unavoidable adverse impacts. 

 
Since the start of this project we have held several meetings with surrounding HOA boards 
in the project vicinity, including the Vistoso Highlands HOA, Monterey at Vistoso HOA, and 
the Stone Gate HOA. These meetings were held prior to the required neighborhood 
meetings in order to increase public awareness of the proposal and identify any initial 
concerns that surrounding neighborhoods may have with the development of this property. 
Generally all the feedback received so far has been supportive of this project. It is generally 
accepted that a commercial corner in this area is no longer practical; and that by amending 
the General Plan to allow for medium density residential, this property will fit the character of 
the area very well. 
 
The first formal neighborhood meeting was held on April, 25th 2016. 
 
Two neighborhood meetings were held on April 25, 2016 and June 30, 2016 with 
approximately forty (40) residents at each meeting. The main topics discussed at the 
meetings included preserving the existing views to the east, traffic circulation, architecture 
and wall design. 
 
As a result of neighborhood input, the applicant has agreed to help preserve the existing views to 
the east by limiting the proposed building height to one-story. The applicant has also agreed to 
design the perimeter walls in accordance with the Rancho Vistoso HOA Design Guidelines. These 
agreements are included as conditions in the accompanying rezoning application.  



3. All non-residential amendment requests will contribute positively to the long-term 
economic stability of the Town as demonstrated by consistency with goals and 
policies related to economic development and financial stability. 

 
This criteria is not applicable because the proposed amendment is related to a residential 
development. 

 
B.  Your Voice Our Future General Plan – Vision, Goals and Policies Analysis  
 
1. Vision Statement 
 

Oro Valley strives to be a well-managed community that provides all residents with 
opportunities for quality living. Oro Valley will keep its friendly, small-town character, while 
increasing services, employment and recreation. The Town’s lifestyle continues to be 
defined by a strong sense of community, a high regard for public safety and an extraordinary 
natural environment and scenic views. 
 
The proposed vision statement emphasizes the need to be a well-managed community 
while promoting the existing quality of life. The proposed amendment is consistent with the 
vision statement because the proposal will not alter the existing character and/or land use 
patterns of the surrounding area.   

 
2. Goals and Policies 

 
Goal A  The people of Oro Valley strive for long-term financial and economic stability 

and sustainability. 
 

The property should be developed at a higher density to support the existing commercial 
properties in and around Rancho Vistoso.   

   
Policy LU.5 Provide diverse land uses that meet the Town’s overall needs and effectively 

transition in scale and density adjacent to neighborhoods. 
 

The proposed amendment could provide a compatible land use transition between the 
existing golf course and the surrounding single-family homes and condominiums to the 
south and east.    

 
 



Subject 
Property

Map of Expected Dwelling Units 
Versus Actual Dwelling Units

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

Subdivision Expected Dwelling Units (per RV PAD) Actual Dwelling Units

A 62 19 (31%)

B 1,142 342 (30%)

C 234 75 (32%)

D 153 37 (24%)

E 273 116 (42%)

F 215 150 (70%)

G 337 38 (11%)

H 222 67 (30%)

Total 2,638 888 (34%)

Attachment 7



Map of Commercial Parcels                                                        
Located North of Naranja Drive

Subject 
Property

LA
 C

H
O

LL
A 

R
D

TANGERINE  RD

LA
 C

AN
A

D
A

 D
R

LEGEND

VACANT

DEVELOPED

Attachment 8



Attachment 9



Attachment 9



Attachment 9



Attachment 9



Attachment 9



Attachment 9



Attachment 9



Attachment 9



Attachment 9



MINUTES  
ORO VALLEY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

SPECIAL SESSION  
August 23, 2016  

CHURCH OF THE NAZARENE 
500 W CALLE CONCORDIA, ORO VALLEY, AZ 85704  

 
STUDY SESSION AT OR AFTER 6:00 PM  
 
CALL OR ORDER  
 
Chairman Leedy called the August 20, 2016, Planning and Zoning Commission Special 
Session meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
ROLL CALL  
 
PRESENT:  Bill Leedy, Chair  

Charlie Hurt, Vice Chair  
Bob Swope, Commissioner  
Melanie Barrett, Commissioner  
Tom Gribb, Commissioner  
Tom Drzazgowski, Commissioner  

 
EXCUSED:  Greg Hitt, Commissioner  
   
ALSO PRESENT:   
 
Joe Andrews, Chief Civil Deputy Attorney 
Council Member Joe Hornat 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Chair Leedy led the audience and the Commission in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
SPECIAL SESSION AGENDA  
 
1. PUBLIC HEARING:  REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF A MAJOR GENERAL 

PLAN AMENDMENT AND PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT AMENDMENT 
FOR A DEVELOPMENT KNOWN AS VISTOSO HIGHLANDS REGARDING A 
PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF RANCHO 
VISTOSO BOULEVARD AND VISTOSO HIGHLANDS DRIVE 
 
This is the first of two public hearings scheduled for this agenda item.  A 
formal vote will not be taken until the second public hearing on September 
6, 2016 

Attachment 10 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204461
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204462
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204463
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204464
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204464
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204464
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204464
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204464
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204464
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204464
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204464
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204464


 
A. MAJOR GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT FROM NEIGHBORHOOD 

COMMERCIAL/OFFICE (NC/O) TO MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (2.1 
- 5.0 DU/AC), OV1601747 

 
Rosevelt Arellano, Senior Planner, provided a presentation on the Major General Plan 
Amendment that included the following: 
 
- Contents of the property 
- Amendment Criteria 
- Changes in the Community 
- Residential Trends 
- Commercial Trends 
- Compatibility 
 
Rosevelt Arellano, Senior Planner, provided a presentation on the Planned Area 
Development that included the following: 
 
- Subdivision Design 
- Compatibility 
- Neighborhood Meeting Concerns 
- Supported by the current market 
 
Paul Oland, WLB Group, representing the applicant, provided a presentation that 
included the following: 
 
- The Conditions have changed 
- Undesirable Commercial Land 
- Compatibility  
- Market Demand 
 
Chair Leedy opened the public hearing. 
 
Ken Hustad, Non-resident Oro Valley resident, commented on the following: 
 
- In support of the applicant request 
- The conditions placed on project should be placed early in the process 
- Building height is an issue and should be compatible to the homes in the area and  
  should have the max height at 21 feet height 
 
Dick Serway, Oro Valley resident, commented on the following: 
 
- Numbers of houses being proposed 
- Height of the homes 
 
Chair Leedy closed the public hearing. 

Attachment 10 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204465
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204465
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204465


 
Mr. Oland responded to the questions  
 
- The applicant is very comfortable with this site plan and the proposed 39 lots 
- The applicant is very comfortable with the conditions of approval regarding the set  
  backs and heights of the homes 
 
Key topics raised by the Commission: 
 
- Proposed plan be a gated community 
- Access point to the property from Hidden Springs Drive 
- Based on the current growth trends, are the remaining commercial properties in  
  Rancho Vistoso still viable 
 

B. PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT FOR A DEVEOLOPMENT FROM 
COMMERCIAL (C-1) TO MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (MDR) AND 
APPROVE A ESL FLEXIBLE DESIGN OPTION FOR MODIFIED REVIEW 
PROCESS, OV1601747 

 
 
2. PUBLIC HEARING: YOUR VOICE, OUR FUTURE GENERAL PLAN FINAL 

ADOPTION AND READINESS OF THE PLAN FOR THE PUBLIC VOTE 
 
This is the first of two public hearings scheduled for this agenda item.  A 
formal vote will not be taken until the second public hearing on September 
6, 2016 

 
Elisa Hamblin, Long Range Principal Planner, provided a presentation that included the 
following: 
 
- Plan of Action 
- The Public Participation Plan 
- Project Schedule 
- Contents of the Plan 
- Revisions included in the Final Plan 
 
Chair Leedy opened the public hearing. 
 
Bill Sellers, Oro Valley resident, commented on the following: 
 
- No mention in the document about broad band 
- Very poor planning approach on the future service of broad band 
- High capacity broad band should be referenced in the document  
- An expectation of constant upgrades in broad band is critical for the future 
 

Attachment 10 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204498
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204498
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204498
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204498
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204498
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204498


Don Bristow, Oro Valley resident, comment on the following: 
  
- Concern on a Type I Major General Plan Amendment, new threshold is 40 acres is  
  such a big jump and should be reconsidered 
- Term "small town" to "neighborly" and "unique", does not measure up 
- Parks and recreation facilities and programs should be provided to all residents,  
  regardless of their ability to pay 
 
Diane Bristow, Oro Valley resident, commented on the following: 
 
- Low attendance of residents at the first public hearing 
 
Chair Leedy closed the public hearing. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Chair Hurt and seconded by Commissioner 
Swope to adjourn the Planning and Zoning Commission Special Session meeting at 
7:13 PM  
 
MOTION carried, 6-0.  
   
  
  
 

Attachment 10 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204511


MINUTES  
ORO VALLEY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

REGULAR SESSION  
September 6, 2016  

ORO VALLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
11000 N. LA CAŇADA DRIVE  

   
REGULAR SESSION AT OR AFTER 6:00 PM  
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
Chairman Leedy called the September 6, 2016, Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
ROLL CALL  
 
PRESENT:  Bill Leedy, Chair  

Charlie Hurt, Vice Chair  
Bob Swope, Commissioner  
Melanie Barrett, Commissioner  
Tom Gribb, Commissioner  
Greg Hitt, Commissioner  

 
EXCUSED:  Tom Drzazgowski, Commissioner  
   
ALSO PRESENT:   
 
Joe Andrews, Chief Civil Deputy Attorney 
Council Member, Joe Hornat 
Vice Mayor, Lou Waters 
Council Member, Mary Snider 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Chair Leedy led the audience and the Commission in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
CALL TO AUDIENCE  
 
Jeff Jones, Oro Valley resident, commented on the following: 
 
- Use of commercial land in the Sun City area is not viable 
- Observation of commercial vacancies in the area 
 
COUNCIL LIAISON COMMENTS  
 

Attachment 10 



Council member Hornat had no comment. 
 
REGULAR SESSION AGENDA  
 
1. REVIEW AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 2, 2016 REGULAR SESSION 

MEETING MINUTES. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Chair Hurt and seconded by Commissioner Hitt 
to approve the August 2, 2016 Regular Session Meeting Minutes.  
 
MOTION carried, 6-0.  
   
2. PUBLIC HEARING:  REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF A MAJOR GENERAL 

PLAN AMENDMENT AND PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT AMENDMENT 
FOR A DEVELOPMENT KNOWN AS VISTOSO HIGHLANDS ON A PROPERTY 
LOCATED ON THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF RANCHO VISTOSO 
BOULEVARD AND VISTOSO HIGHLANDS DRIVE 

 
A. MAJOR GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT FROM NEIGHBORHOOD 

COMMERCIAL/OFFICE (NC/O) TO MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (2.1 - 5.0 
DU/AC), OV1601094 

 
B. PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT FOR A DEVELOPMENT FROM 

COMMERCIAL (C-1) TO MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (MDR) AND 
CONSIDERATION OF AN ESL FLEXIBLE DESIGN OPTION FOR MODIFIED 
REVIEW PROCESS, OV1601747 

 
- Rosevelt Arellano, Senior Planner, provided a presentation on the following: 
 
- Issues raised at the last meeting 
- Commercial Viability 
- Building Height 
- Public Participation 
- Factors For and Against 
 
Paul Oland, WLB Group, representing the applicant, provided a presentation that 
included the following: 
 
- Lack of demand of commercial 
- Undesirable Commercial Land and Vacant Properties 
- Under development of residential property in the area and its impact on commercial  
  viability 
- Compatibility 
- Market Demand 
 

Attachment 10 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2521&meta_id=204914
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2521&meta_id=204914
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2521&meta_id=204914
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2521&meta_id=204914
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2521&meta_id=204914


Key topics raised by the Commission: 
 
- Average height limit for the surrounding homes in Rancho Vistoso 
- Explanation of the Environmental Sensitive Lands flexible design options 
- Minor design changes to a Modified Review Process 
- What if the development never happens 
 
Chair Leedy opened the public hearing. 
 
No speaker request. 
 
Chair Leedy closed the public hearing. 
 
Questions raised by the Commission: 
 
- Previous 24 homes design raised by the resident 
- Applicant work with residents 
- Conditions of approval 
- Traffic numbers affected by the STEM school 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Chair Hurt and seconded by Commissioner 
Barrett to recommend approval of the Vistoso Highlands Major General Plan 
Amendment from Neighborhood Commercial/Office to Medium Density Residential (2.1 
- 5 du/ac), based on the finding that the request complies with the amendment criteria 
and the General Plan.  
 
MOTION carried, 6-0.  
   
MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Gribb and seconded by Vice Chair 
Hurt to recommend approval of the Vistoso Highlands PAD Amendment from 
Commercial (C-1) to Medium Density Residential (MDR), including the request for ESL's 
modified review process, based on the finding that the request complies with the 
Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development and the General Plan.  
 
Chair Leedy offered a friendly amendment to include, subject to the conditions in 
attachment 1.   
 
The friendly amendment was accepted by Commissioner Gribb and Vice Chair Hurt. 
 
MOTION carried, 6-0.  
   
3. PUBLIC HEARING:  YOUR VOICE, OUR FUTURE GENERAL PLAN FINAL 

ADOPTION AND READINESS OF THE PLAN FOR THE PUBLIC VOTE 

 
Elisa Hamblin, Long Range Principal Planner, provided a presentation that included the 
following: 

Attachment 10 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2521&meta_id=204940
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2521&meta_id=204940


 
- Public Vote November 8 
- Project Overview 
- Project Phases 
- Visions of the Community 
- Executive Summary 
- Changes to the Final Plan 
 
Chair Leedy opened the public hearing. 
 
Shirl Lamonna, Oro Valley resident, commented on the following: 
 
- Impressed by the hard work done by staff 
- Disappointed with the change in the term "small town character" 
 
Diane Bristow, Oro Valley resident, commented on the following: 
 
- Found the changes made in the final draft 
- Strongly agrees that the Visions and Guiding Principles were formed out of extensive  
   community research 
- Very uncomfortable with the change of "small town" to "neighborly" or "unique"  
- Change to the word "unique" in the Land Use Policy, pg. 41, back to "small-town" 
 
Donald Bristow, Oro Valley resident, stated he support the comments made by the 
previous speakers. 
 
Chair Leedy closed the public hearing. 
 
Bayer Vella, Planning Manager, responded that the term "small town feeling" was being 
misinterpreted.  Over the course of the last year staff has heard several remarks that 
"small town" really applies to geographic boundaries and growth and development.  The 
term "small town" was not intended to reflect growth what so ever, but mainly a 
neighborly feeling.  Staff came up with the idea of using the word "neighborly", not to 
change the input we got from the community, but to make it clear to represent that 
input.   
 
Discussion ensued amongst the Commission regarding the terms "small-town” and 
“neighborly". 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Chair Leedy and seconded by Commissioner Hitt to 
recommend adoption of the document known as the "Your Voice, Our Future General 
Plan" as inspired and created by the residents of the Town of Oro Valley as attached 
hereto as Attachment 2, with a modification to 
A).  Amending the land use of the Vistoso Highlands property from Neighborhood 
Commercial/Office to Medium Density Residential, 
B).  Changing the words in the Vision Statement, Guiding Principles pg. 8 and the Land 
Use and Design Policy, pg. 41, from “small-town” to “small-town” and “neighborly”.  

Attachment 10 



 
MOTION carried, 6-0.  
   
PLANNING UPDATE (INFORMATIONAL ONLY)  
 
Bayer Vella, Planning Manager, presented the following Planning Update: 
 
- September 7th Town Council meeting 
- September 21st Town Council meeting 
- October 4th Planning and Zoning Commission meeting 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Hitt and seconded by Commissioner 
Swope to adjourn the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting at 7:42 PM.  
 
MOTION carried, 6-0.  
   
  
  
 

Attachment 10 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2521&meta_id=204961
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2521&meta_id=204962


 
 

Neighborhood Meeting Summary 
Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 10 Parcel J 

Proposed Major General Plan Amendment and Rezoning 
April 25, 2016 
6:00 – 7:30 PM 

Rancho Vistoso HOA Building  
 

1. Introductions and welcome  
 
Meeting Facilitator Chad Daines, Principal Planner, introduced the Oro Valley staff Rosevelt Arellano, 
Senior Planner, as project manager. Approximately 50 residents and interested parties attended the 
meeting, including Councilmember Hornat and appointed officials Leedy, Hurt, Gribb and Swope. 
 
2. Staff presentation 
 
Rosevelt Arellano, Senior Planner, provided a presentation that included: 
 

 Subject property 
 Applicant’s request 
 Existing and proposed land use designation 
 Existing and proposed zoning designation, including development standards 
 Review tools 
 Review processing, including modified review process 
 Public participation opportunities 

 
3. Applicant presentation 
 
Paul Oland of the WLB Group, provided a presentation detailing the applicant’s proposal, which 
included: 
 

 Site plan design 
 Background information for the Rancho Vistoso community 
 

4. Public Questions and Comments 
 

 What is the guarantee that the site will be developed with one-story homes? 
o To guarantee one-story homes, staff will place a condition of approval on the rezoning 

application.  
 

 Neighbors expressed concerns with the traffic impacts on Hidden Springs Drive, and preferred 
to see this access point eliminated.  
 

 In regards to the Major General Plan Amendment application, how many votes of the Town 
Council is required for an approval?  

o Five votes are required for a super majority.  
 

 Due to visibility, neighbors expressed concerns with the orientation of the proposed homes 
located in the southwest portion of the site plan design.  
 
 

 Will there be a homeowners association? 

Attachment 11



o The applicant stated that the proposed subdivision would be under the Rancho Vistoso 
Master Homeowners Association. 
 

 What is the listing price for the proposed homes? 
o The applicant stated that this information is not known at this time.  

 
 What is the size of the proposed homes? 

o The applicant stated approximately 2,500 square feet and greater. 
  

 The neighbors expressed a significant concern with the proposed building height of 28’, one-
story and preferred 25’, one-story or less.  
 

 What is the permitted building height of the existing commercial zoning designation? 
o 34’, 3-stories.  

 
 What is the timeline of development? 

o The applicant would like to break ground in approximately two years.  
 

 Is public art required? 
o Public art is not required for residential developments. 

 
 What is the open space requirement? 

o The Environmentally Sensitive Lands (ESL) map designates the following ESL 
categories on the property (Section 27.10 of the Zoning Code): 
 Critical Resource Area (CRA):    95% open space requirement 
 Resource Management Area (RMA) Tier 2: 25% open space requirement 

 
 Neighbors expressed a concern with the proposed wall design being consistent with the 

surrounding walls in the area.  
 

 Does the town have a sufficient water supply to support this development? 
o See attached handout from the Town of Oro Valley Water Department.  

 
 Neighbors expressed a concern with the proposed model home design being consistent with 

the surrounding homes.  
 
Mr. Daines closed the meeting, thanked everyone for their attendance and encouraged everyone to 
contact Mr. Arellano, the project manager, with any additional thoughts, comments or concerns. 
 



 
 

Neighborhood Meeting Summary 
Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 10 Parcel J 

Proposed Major General Plan Amendment and Rezoning 
June 30, 2016 
6:00 – 7:30 PM 

Rancho Vistoso HOA Building  
 

1. Introductions and welcome  
 
Meeting Facilitator Chad Daines, Principal Planner, introduced the Oro Valley staff Rosevelt Arellano, 
Senior Planner, as project manager. Approximately 30 residents and interested parties attended the 
meeting, including appointed officials Hurt, Gribb and Swope. 
 
2. Staff presentation 
 
Rosevelt Arellano, Senior Planner, provided a presentation that included: 
 

 Subject property 
 Applicant’s request 
 Concerns raised at 1st neighborhood meeting 

o Traffic and circulation 
o View preservation 
o Architecture and wall design 

 Next steps 
o 8/23/16 Planning and Zoning Commission hearing (Tentative) 
o 9/6/16  Planning and Zoning Commission hearing (Tentative) 
o 9/21/16 Town Council hearing (Tentative) 

 
3. Applicant presentation 
 
Paul Oland of the WLB Group, provided a presentation detailing the applicant’s proposal, which 
included: 
 

 Revised site plan design  
 Perimeter wall treatment 
 Building height and view preservations  
 

4. Public Questions and Comments 
 

 How tall are the proposed homes? 
o The applicant has agreed to restrict homes with a flat roof to 1-story, 22’ and homes 

with a pitch roof to 1-story, 25’. 
 

 What is the size of the proposed homes? 
o The applicant stated approximately 2,400 square feet and greater. 

 
 Will the existing plants be salvaged? 

o The project must meet the plant mitigation requirements of the Oro Valley Zoning Code. 
 

 How many homes were initially planned in the Rancho Vistoso Community? 
o 13,862 units 



 
 What is the proposed lot width? 

o 70’ 
 

 Why are the subdivision walls around the Lennar Homes project (southwest corner of Rancho 
Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive) different from the surrounding walls? 

o The Rancho Vistoso HOA Design Review Board approved a different style wall.  
o The applicant also stated that the proposed walls will be consistent with the other walls 

in the surrounding area and will meet the HOA’s design guidelines. 
 

 Neighbors expressed concerns with access into the proposed flag lots.  
 

 Will the project use swinging or rolling entry gates? 
o The applicant stated that the information is not known at this time? 

 
 Who will maintain the internal streets? 

o The proposed streets are private and therefore will be privately maintained.  
 

 What is the proposed traffic circulation for construction vehicles? 
o The applicant stated that the information is not known at this time? 

 
Mr. Daines closed the meeting, thanked everyone for their attendance and encouraged everyone to 
contact Mr. Arellano, the project manager, with any additional thoughts, comments or concerns. 
 



1

Arellano, Rosevelt

From: ehamley@frontier.com
Sent: Tuesday, September 06, 2016 4:43 PM
To: Arellano, Rosevelt
Subject: September 6, 2016, 6pm NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Re:  PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
         COMMENTS FOR HEARING 
 
Dear Planning Commission: 
 
I am unable to attend this evening's hearing but do want my comments to be considered along with 
those being heard from attendees at the meeting.  I am a resident and property owner in Oro 
Valley.  My address is below my signature. 
 
I understand that the property owner has the right to sell his property, but if it was zoned Commercial 
at the time of his purchase, he should have understood that that was the property's zoning when he 
purchased it.  We have gone through a series of hearings in 2015 and had a county commissioner 
vote on this issue and the commissioners vote was that the property remain zoned commercial.  Now 
it is up again, this time during the summer when most of the residents are away.  Is it the intention of 
the property owner to bring this matter up for consideration every few months until he gets his way on 
a rezone? 
 
I for one hope for commercial development, not as another strip mall, but built as a community 
commercial center within walking distance of many of the Rancho Vistoso residents.  Right now we all 
have to have cars to truly enjoy the offerings of our community.  It is a four mile round trip walk from 
my house to either shopping center on Rancho Vistoso Blvd.  Public transportation is virtually 
nonexistent.  Some days the car may be used by another person, or be at the repair shop.  Some 
nice little business in the commercial zoning would be very welcome. 
 
The water hazard on the golf course, is a popular attraction.  Families are always gathering there 
after golf hours for picnics, weddings, pictures, and such.  How about a nice public area in that 
commercial zone also facing the "lake" as it is called.  A delicatessen with take out and outside 
tables, an ice cream store that serves not only cones but ice cream specialties such as root beer 
floats, and a specialty take out restaurant.  Then those of us that are car less could also just walk 
over to get something we need to make dinner.  I'm not looking for another Walgreen's to mess up my 
prescriptions, but a small mom and pop compounding pharmacy would be great. More people would 
enjoy the view as well as have services provided.  the fronts of these business could front the view to 
the water and parking could be behind the businesses.  How about a drop off/ pick up for dry 
cleaning, a book and newspaper store?  We've all seen neighborhood and town centers recently and 
know how nice these small stores can be for a neighborhood. 
 
Thank you so much for accepting my input and offering it up to the comments for consideration in this 
zoning request. 
 
Sincerely, 
Elaine R. Hamley 
13764 N. Keystone Springs Drive. 

Attachment 12



2

Oro Valley, AZ 85755 
 

Attachment 12



1

Arellano, Rosevelt

From: Hynd, Jessica
Sent: Tuesday, September 06, 2016 10:23 AM
To: Arellano, Rosevelt
Subject: concern

Here ya go  
 

Regarding this rezoning, I have 2 questions; 

1. a bit over 2 years ago the town turned down, at the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning commission, 
a rezoning of this corner due to "insufficient commercial land" in Rancho Vistoso. The owner of the land 
worked together with the residents to come up with a satisfactory plan with 24 homes. Now the new owner has 
not worked closely with the owners and there are 60% more homes. What was the average housing density 2 
1/2 years ago and today to merit this change as this was given as the reason for this recommendation? 

2. The current owner was able to provide a plan on the effect on views for homes along the Vistoso golf course 
to the west, yet is there any analysis that the town required of the owner for the Stone Canyon homes and the 
effect on their city lights views? 

 
 

Jessica Hynd 
Constituent Services Coordinator/ Management Assistant 
Town of Oro Valley 
11000 N. La Canada Drive 
Oro Valley, Arizona 85737 

Office: 520.229.4711 
Jhynd@orovalleyaz.gov 
 

Attachment 12



1

Arellano, Rosevelt

From: John Beamish <john_beamish@telus.net>
Sent: Tuesday, April 26, 2016 5:06 PM
To: Arellano, Rosevelt
Subject: Parcel 10-J

Hi Rosevelt.  I was in the audience for last night's meeting and found it to be very useful.  I think that the Town 
and owner's rep did a good job in explaining the process and proposal.   
 
You probably noticed that a number of people referenced the nearby Lennar project in their questions & 
comments.  That's because most of the people in the neighborhood think that it's ugly, doesn't reflect the home 
styles in the area and the nearby homeowners weren't involved enough in the vetting process.  All of us were 
surprised to find out that the homes were going to be crammed so tightly together and that there were going to 
be a number of two storey buildings which would block views.  I'm not saying that the developers did anything 
sneaky here, but I do think that a much better disclosure process should have been in place so that we didn't end 
up being surprised at what ended up being built.  The Town's job is to make sure that there are no surprises.   
 
Anyway, the process seems to be unfolding in a much more transparent way for 10-J and, as a result, I'm pretty 
sure that you'll find a broad-based support from neighboring homes.   
 
Thanks.   
 
John Beamish 
Treasurer - Monterey HOA     
  
 
 
 

Right-click 
here to  
download 
pictures.  To  
help protect 
your privacy, 
Outlo ok 
prevented 
auto matic  
download of 
this pictu re  
from the  
In ternet.

 

Virus-free. www.avast.com  

 

Attachment 12



1

Arellano, Rosevelt

From: mary braunger <marybraunger@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2016 6:21 AM
To: Arellano, Rosevelt
Subject: 2nd neighborhood meeting for vistoso highlands--Letter of 6/10/16

Sir: 
My husband and I will not be attending the meeting on 6/30 but would like to make you aware that we are 
VERY much against this development.  We did not purchase our winter retirement condo to be across the street 
from a strip mall. 
 
There are plenty of places available on Rancho Vistoso Blvd. without going onto Highlands Dr. 
 
I hope other residents will agree with us. 
 
Mary Braunger 

Attachment 12



1

Arellano, Rosevelt

From: khhustad@gmail.com
Sent: Friday, June 24, 2016 10:27 AM
To: gpoland@wlbgroup.com
Cc: T
Subject: 10J area gabled roof examples

Hi Paul 
 
Thanks again for meeting with Carol and me on June 9th about the Parcel 10J rezoning and preliminary 
development proposal.  We are looking forward to the neighborhood meeting next week.   
 
When we discussed building height limits you indicated that your likely gabled roof designs require more height 
than flat roofs which makes sense.  However, I have since taken a quick look on Google Earth (samples below) 
at existing roofs in our W Vistoso Highlands neighborhoods.  I was actually surprised to see that there are many 
gabled roofs that have been built to comply with our 21' maximum height. While some are more complicated 
than may be planned for 10J, these designers have apparently limited the roof pitches, wall heights and truss 
spans to meet our requirements.  It seems that the roof designs in 10J could also be done in a lower profile with 
these types of adjustments as needed. 
 
If I am missing something please let me know.  As we said when Carol and I met with you on the 9th, we 
simply want the 10J project to blend with the character of our neighborhoods. 
 
Thanks again for meeting with Carol and me at your office on the 9th. 
 
Ken  
509-954-1600 
 
Here is Steprock Canyon Pl. 

Attachment 12



2

 
 
 
Bowcreek Springs 

 
 
 
Keystone Springs 

Attachment 12



3

 

 

 

Attachment 12



   
Town Council Regular Session Item #   1. b.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2016  
Requested by: Rosevelt Arellano 
Submitted By: Rosevelt Arellano

Development Infrastructure Services
Department: Development Infrastructure Services

Information
SUBJECT:
ORDINANCE NO. (O)16-12, AMENDING THE RANCHO VISTOSO PLANNED AREA
DEVELOPMENT FROM COMMERCIAL (C-1) TO MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL
AND ALLOWING THE USE OF AN ESL FLEXIBLE DESIGN OPTION FOR A
MODIFIED REVIEW PROCESS FOR A 17.8 ACRE PROPERTY, LOCATED AT THE
NORTHWEST CORNER OF RANCHO VISTOSO BOULEVARD AND VISTOSO
HIGHLANDS DRIVE

RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval, subject to the conditions
in Attachment 1.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The purpose of this request is to consider a Planned Area Development (PAD)
Amendment from Commercial (C-1) to Medium Density Residential (MDR) for an
approximate 17.8-acre property located on the northwest corner of Vistoso Highlands
Drive and Rancho Vistoso Boulevard (Attachment 2). The location map (Attachment 3)
provides context of the site in relation to the surrounding area.

The Tentative Development Plan, included in Attachment 4, proposes: 

A gated subdivision with 39 lots
Minimum lot size of 8,750 square feet
Two points of ingress/egress with access to Vistoso Highlands Drive and Rancho
Vistoso Boulevard
28% open space

The proposed subdivision design is compatible with the surrounding area because 1) it
is similar to the nearby single-family neighborhoods 2) has a lesser impact than those
uses permitted under the existing commercial zoning (e.g., building height, traffic, noise,
etc.) and 3) the applicant has agreed to limit the proposed building height to one-story
and design the perimeter wall in accordance with the Rancho Vistoso HOA Design



and design the perimeter wall in accordance with the Rancho Vistoso HOA Design
Guidelines.

On September 16, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval based
on the findings that the request is compatible with the surrounding area and conforms
with the former and current General Plans. The application was agendized for the
September 21, 2016 Town Council meeting. At the applicant’s request, Council voted to
continue this item and the accompanying Major General Plan Amendment to their
November 16 meeting.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
Land Use Context

The property is vacant and is zoned Commercial (C-1) per the Rancho Vistoso PAD. The
existing land uses and zoning for the surrounding area are provided in Attachments 3
and 5.

Site Conditions 

17.8 acres
Property is vacant with exception of an HOA monument sign
Two existing curb cuts, each located on Vistoso Highlands Drive and Rancho
Vistoso Boulevard

Approvals-to-date 

June 1987: Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development, Commercial (C-1) zoning

Request

The applicant proposes to rezone a 17.8 acre property from Commercial (C-1) to
Medium Density Residential (MDR) to develop a residential subdivision. The Tentative
Development Plan (Attachment 4) depicts: 

39 lots with a minimum lot size of 8,750 square feet
Density: 2.19 homes per acre
Detached single-family homes
Building height: 22’, one-story (flat roof homes), 25’, one-story (pitch roof homes)
Two access points on Vistoso Highlands Drive (south) and Rancho Vistoso Blvd
(east)
Landscape bufferyards along the south and east property lines
28% open space

Zoning Analysis

The proposed PAD Amendment to MDR conforms with the Rancho Vistoso Planned
Area Development and the Zoning Code. The table below shows the project’s
conformance with the proposed residential (MDR) standards as enabled by the Rancho
Vistoso Planned Area Development. 
  



 Development Standards Allowed/Required Proposed
Density (dwelling units per acre)3-6 du/ac or 106 units 2.19 du/ac or 39 units

Building Heights 30', two-story (MDR)
34, three-story (C-1) 22' to 25', one-story

Minimum Lot Size 5,000 sq. ft. 8,750 sq. ft.

Building Setbacks Front: 20', Sides: 5' or 0,
Rear: 10'

Front: 15', Sides: 5',
Rear: 10'

Compatibility

The proposed subdivision design is compatible with the surrounding area because 1) it
is similar to the nearby single-family neighborhoods 2) has a lesser impact than those
uses permitted under the existing commercial zoning (e.g., building height, traffic, noise,
etc.) and 3) the applicant has agreed to limit the proposed building height to one-story
and design the perimeter wall in accordance with the Rancho Vistoso HOA Design
Guidelines.
 
To improve the project’s compatibility with the surrounding area, three conditions have
been added in Attachment 1. The conditions relate to building height and preserving the
existing views, designing a subdivision wall in accordance with the Rancho Vistoso HOA
Design Guidelines, and maintaining sight visibility for motorists.

Golf Course Overlay Zone

The Golf Course Overlay District of the Zoning Code requires minimum setbacks
between golf courses and residential property lines to protect property owners from
errant golf balls and nuisances. The proposed Tentative Development Plan meets the
golf course setback requirements by providing the minimum distance between the
proposed lots and the existing golf course.

Environmentally Sensitive Lands (ESL) Conformance

The proposed development is required to provide 4.9 acres of Environmentally Sensitive
Open Space (ESOS). The project conserves 5-acres of ESOS on the property.

ESL Flexible Design Option

The Environmentally Sensitive Lands requirements enable the use of incentives, or
flexible design options, subject to Town Council approval. The flexible design options are
available to a developer when ESOS is applied to 25% or more of the property.

The applicant proposes 25% ESOS and has requested use of the modified review
process. A modified review process would allow the proposed subdivision design to
undergo an administrative review, provided that it closely matches the approved
Tentative Development Plan.

The applicant’s request is reasonable because the proposed Tentative Development
Plan was adequately reviewed by the neighbors and the Planning and Zoning
Commission at two neighborhood and two Planning and Zoning Commission meetings. It



Commission at two neighborhood and two Planning and Zoning Commission meetings. It
is not apparent that the community would benefit from additional reviews at public
meetings.

General Plan Conformance

As part of this PAD Amendment, the applicant is proposing a Major General Plan
Amendment from Neighborhood Commercial Office to Medium Density Residential. The
Major General Plan Amendment, if approved, will support the requested PAD
Amendment for the property.

The proposed PAD Amendment is consistent with the Vision, Goals and Policies of both
the former and current General Plans. The applicable Goals and Policies relate to
compatibility, environmental protection and housing type. A more detailed analysis is
provided in Attachment 6.

Planning and Zoning Commission

The applicant’s request was heard by the Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) on
August 23 and September 6, 2016. The main topics discussed at the meeting included
view preservation and traffic.

At the conclusion of the September 6 meeting, the Commission voted to approve the
PAD Amendment and the use of ESL’s Modified Review Process, based on the finding
that the request complies with the Rancho Vistoso PAD and the General Plan. The PZC
staff report is included as Attachment 7 and the PZC draft meeting minutes are included
as Attachment 8.
 
Public Notification and Comment

The following public notice has been provided: 

Notification of all property owners within 1,000 feet
Notification to additional interested parties who signed in at neighborhood meetings
Homeowners Association mailing
Advertisement in The Daily Territorial and Arizona Daily Star newspapers
Post on property
Post at Town Hall and on Town website
Outside review agencies

Two neighborhood meetings were held on April 25, 2016, and June 30, 2016, with
approximately 40 residents at each meeting. The main topics discussed at the meetings
included preserving the existing views to the east, traffic circulation, architecture and wall
design.

In response to the neighbors’ concerns for view preservation, the applicant has agreed
to limit the proposed building height to 25’, one-story for pitch roof homes and 22’
one-story for flat roof homes. The applicant has also agreed to design a perimeter wall in
conformance with the Rancho Vistoso HOA Design Guidelines. These agreements are



conformance with the Rancho Vistoso HOA Design Guidelines. These agreements are
included as conditions in Attachment 1.

A copy of the neighborhood meeting summary notes are provided as Attachment 9, and
five letters of concern are included as Attachment 10.
 

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to adopt Ordinance No. (O)16-12, approving the proposed PAD Amendment
and the use of ESL’s Modified Review Process, subject to the conditions in Attachment
1, finding that the requests are consistent with the General Plan.
 
OR

I MOVE to deny Ordinance No. (O)16-12, approving the proposed PAD Amendment,
based on a finding that _____________________________.
 

Attachments
(O)16-12 Rancho Vistoso PAD Amendment 
Attachment 2 - Application 
Attachment 3 - Location Map 
Attachment 4 - Tentative Development Plan 
Attachment 5 - Zoning Map 
Attachment 6 - General Plan Analysis 
Attachment 6 - General Plan Analysis 
Attachment 7 - PZC Staff Reports 
Attachment 8 - PZC Minutes 
Attachment 9 - Neighborhood Meeting Summary Notes 
Attachment 10 - Letters of Concern 



ORDINANCE NO. (O)16-12

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING THE RANCHO VISTOSO PLANNED AREA 
DEVELOPMENT FROM COMMERCIAL (C-1) TO MEDIUM 
DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (MDR) AND ONE ESL FLEXIBLE 
DESIGN OPTION FOR A MODIFIED REVIEW PROCESS ON A 
17.8 ACRE SITE LOCATED ON THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 
VISTOSO HIGHLANDS DRIVE AND RANCHO VISTOSO 
BOULEVARD

WHEREAS, the Applicant has requested an amendment to the Rancho Vistoso Planned 
Area Development (PAD) from Commercial (C-1) to Medium Density Residential 
(MDR) and one ESL flexible design option for a modified review process on a 17.8 acre 
site located on the northwest corner of Vistoso Highlands Drive and Rancho Vistoso 
Boulevard, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and

WHEREAS, the amendment to the PAD will provide continuity in residential land use 
and is compatible with the surrounding area; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant agrees to limit the proposed building height to one-story and 
design the perimeter wall in accordance with the Rancho Vistoso HOA Design 
Guidelines; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission held duly noticed public hearings on 
August 23, 2016, and September 6, 2016, and voted  to recommend approval to the Town 
Council; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council has duly considered the applicant’s proposal for the
amendment to the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development (PAD) from Commercial 
(C-1) to Medium Density Residential (MDR) and one ESL flexible design option for a 
modified review process on a 17.8 acre site located on the northwest corner of Vistoso 
Highlands Drive and Rancho Vistoso Boulevard.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Oro Valley, Arizona that:

Section 1. The amendment to the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development 
from Commercial (C-1) to Medium Density Residential (MDR) 
and one ESL flexible design option for a modified review process 
on a 17.8 acre site located on the northwest corner of Vistoso 
Highlands Drive and Rancho Vistoso Boulevard is hereby 
approved, subject to the conditions in Exhibit “B.”

Section 2. All Oro Valley ordinances, resolutions or motions and parts of ordinances, 
resolutions or motions of the Council in conflict with the provision of this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed. 



Section 3. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this 
Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the 
decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Oro Valley, 
Arizona, on this 16th day of November, 2016.

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY

Dr. Satish I. Hiremath, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Michael Standish, Town Clerk Tobin Sidles, Legal Services Director

Date: Date: 



EXHIBIT “A”

Ra
nc
ho

Vistoso

Visto
so Highlands

LOCATION



EXHIBIT “B”

1. Flat roof homes shall be limited to 22’, one-story and pitch roof homes shall be 
limited to 25’, one-story. 

2. The perimeter subdivision wall shall be designed in conformance with the Rancho 
Vistoso HOA Design Guidelines.  

3. Existing vegetation shall be maintained and/or removed to provide adequate sight 
visibility distance for access onto Vistoso Highlands Drive.



RANCHO VISTOSO 

PARCEL 10-J
PAD AMENDMENT SITE ANALYSIS

OV1601747 (REF. OV1600602) 8.8.2016

Attachment 2



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PREPARED FOR: 
 

Vistoso Highlands Property LLC. 
6420 E. Tanque Verde Rd. 

Tucson, Arizona 85715 
 

PREPARED BY: 
 

The WLB Group, Inc. 
Attn: Paul Oland 

4444 East Broadway 
Tucson, Arizona 85711 

 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 

 
August 8, 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Q:\185050\VH-01 -  RV Neigh 10J\01Planning\04 Rezone\Site Analysis\RV-10J  Rezoning S ite  Analys is.docx 

  



 
 



 
 

 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 i 

CONTENTS 

Introduction ....................................................................................................................................... 1 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis .............................................................................................................. 3 

1. Existing Land Uses ........................................................................................................................................... 5 

A. Regional Context ..................................................................................................................................................... 5 

B. Onsite Uses .............................................................................................................................................................. 5 

C. Project Vicinity ......................................................................................................................................................... 5 

C: Number of Stories of Surrounding Structures ........................................................................................................ 6 

2. Environmentally Sensitive Lands .................................................................................................................... 6 

A. ESL Categories Onsite .............................................................................................................................................. 6 

B. Additional ESL Characteristics ................................................................................................................................. 7 

C. Total acreage present on-site for each Conservation Category.............................................................................. 7 

3. Topography ..................................................................................................................................................... 7 

A. Topographic Character & Features ......................................................................................................................... 7 

4. Cultural / Archaeological / Historic Resources ................................................................................................ 8 

A. Archaeological Survey Status / Results ................................................................................................................... 8 

5. Hydrology ........................................................................................................................................................ 9 

A. Offsite Watersheds .................................................................................................................................................. 9 

B. Balanced / Critical Basins......................................................................................................................................... 9 

C. Offsite Features Affecting or Affected by the Property .......................................................................................... 9 

D. Area of Upstream Watersheds Greater than 100 CFS ............................................................................................ 9 

E. Location / Ownership of Well Sites within 100’ of Site .......................................................................................... 9 

F. Onsite Hydrology Characteristics ............................................................................................................................ 9 

G. Existing Drainage Conditions along the Downstream Property Boundary ........................................................... 10 

6. Wildlife .......................................................................................................................................................... 11 

A. Arizona Game & Fish Dept. Letter ......................................................................................................................... 11 

7. Viewsheds ..................................................................................................................................................... 22 

8. Traffic ............................................................................................................................................................ 23 

A. Connection to Arterial Roadway Network ............................................................................................................ 23 

B. Arterial Roadways within One Mile of the Property ............................................................................................. 23 

9. Recreation / Trails ......................................................................................................................................... 24 

A. Trails, Parks and Recreation Areas within One Mile of the Property ................................................................... 24 



 
 

 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 ii 

10. Schools .......................................................................................................................................................... 25 

A. Schools within One Mile of the Property .............................................................................................................. 25 

B. Schools Expected to Serve the Project .................................................................................................................. 25 

11. Water ............................................................................................................................................................ 26 

A. Water Service Provider .......................................................................................................................................... 26 

12. Wastewater .................................................................................................................................................. 27 

A. Sewer Service Connection ..................................................................................................................................... 27 

13. Exhibits .......................................................................................................................................................... 28 

Exhibit I-1-A: Site Location Map ..................................................................................................................... 29 

Exhibit I-1-B: Aerial Photograph ..................................................................................................................... 30 

Exhibit I-1-C: Existing General Plan Future Land Use Designations ............................................................... 31 

Exhibit I-1-D: Existing Zoning .......................................................................................................................... 32 

Exhibit I-1-E: Existing Land Uses ..................................................................................................................... 33 

Exhibit I-2-A: Environmentally Sensitive Lands ............................................................................................... 34 

Exhibit I-3-A: Topography ............................................................................................................................... 35 

Exhibit I-5-A: Offsite Watersheds .................................................................................................................... 36 

Exhibit I-5-B: Onsite Hydrology Characteristics .............................................................................................. 37 

Exhibit I-8-A: Transportation .......................................................................................................................... 38 

Exhibit I-9-A: Trails, Parks & Recreation ......................................................................................................... 39 

Exhibit I-10-A: Existing & Proposed Schools ................................................................................................... 40 

Exhibit I-12-A: Sewer Service ........................................................................................................................... 41 

Exhibit I-13-A: McHarg Composite Map ......................................................................................................... 42 

Part II – Land Use Plan ..................................................................................................................... 43 

1. Land Uses ...................................................................................................................................................... 45 

A. Project Description ................................................................................................................................................ 45 

B. General Plan Conformance ................................................................................................................................... 45 

C. Flexible Design Options / Conservation Subdivision Design ................................................................................. 45 

D. Effect on Existing Land Uses .................................................................................................................................. 45 

2. Environmentally Sensitive Lands .................................................................................................................. 46 

A. ESOS Selection & Preservation Methods .............................................................................................................. 46 

3. Topography ................................................................................................................................................... 47 

A. Design Response to Site Topography .................................................................................................................... 47 

B. Slope Encroachment ............................................................................................................................................. 47 

C. Hillside Conservation Areas ................................................................................................................................... 47 



 
 

 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 iii 

D. Quantified Site Disturbance .................................................................................................................................. 47 

4. Cultural / Archaeological / Historic Resources .............................................................................................. 48 

A. Resource Protection .............................................................................................................................................. 48 

B. Treatment Plan ...................................................................................................................................................... 48 

5. Hydrology ...................................................................................................................................................... 50 

A. Design Response to Site Hydrology ....................................................................................................................... 50 

B. Modifications of Drainage Patterns ...................................................................................................................... 50 

C. Mitigation .............................................................................................................................................................. 50 

D. Town Policy Conformance ..................................................................................................................................... 50 

6. Wildlife .......................................................................................................................................................... 51 

A. Mitigation .............................................................................................................................................................. 51 

7. Viewsheds ..................................................................................................................................................... 52 

A. Design Response to Site Viewsheds ...................................................................................................................... 52 

B. ORSCOD / TRCOD Conformance ........................................................................................................................... 52 

8. Traffic ............................................................................................................................................................ 53 

A. Traffic Impact Analysis ........................................................................................................................................... 53 

B. Proposed Rights-of-Way ........................................................................................................................................ 54 

C. Proposed Pedestrian / Bicycle Circulation ............................................................................................................ 54 

9. Recreation / Trails ......................................................................................................................................... 55 

A. Offsite Trail Access ................................................................................................................................................ 55 

B. Open Space Ownership ......................................................................................................................................... 55 

10. Schools .......................................................................................................................................................... 56 

A. Student Generation ............................................................................................................................................... 56 

B. School Capacity...................................................................................................................................................... 56 

11. Water ............................................................................................................................................................ 59 

A. Water Demand ...................................................................................................................................................... 59 

B. Water Service Provider & Capacity ....................................................................................................................... 59 

12. Wastewater .................................................................................................................................................. 60 

A. Sewer Service Method .......................................................................................................................................... 60 

13. Bufferyards ................................................................................................................................................... 62 

A. Mitigation (if applicable) ....................................................................................................................................... 62 

14. Exhibits .......................................................................................................................................................... 63 

Exhibit II-1-A: Tentative Development Plan .................................................................................................... 64 

Exhibit II-2-A: Proposed ESOS Map ................................................................................................................. 65 



 
 

 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 iv 

Exhibit II-3-A: Proposed Grading Limits .......................................................................................................... 66 

Exhibit II-4-A: Proposed Zoning ....................................................................................................................... 67 

Part III – Appendices ........................................................................................................................ 68 

Appendix A: Traffic Report .................................................................................................................................... A 

Appendix B: Archaeological Report ....................................................................................................................... B 

  



 
 

  Introduction 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 1 

Introduction 
 
This site analysis has been prepared in support of a proposed rezoning of Neighborhood 10 Parcel J (Parcel 10-J) in the 
Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development.  This project is a proposed residential subdivision located at the northwest 
corner of Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive.  (Please refer to Exhibit A: Location Map.)  As a master 
planned community, Rancho Vistoso appropriately included sufficient commercial land to meet the needs of its anticipated 
population.  However, over the years Rancho Vistoso has developed at roughly two-thirds of its originally envisioned 
residential density.  A commensurate drop in need for commercial land has resulted, which has caused this commercially 
zoned property to remain undeveloped.  As Rancho Vistoso rapidly approaches build-out, the prospects grow dim that 
enough additional homes will be built in the area to support the development of the smaller, neighborhood-level 
commercial lands such as this one within the PAD.  Of course, the General Plan’s future land use designations reflect the 
original PAD design, and not the market reality that has manifested since then.  A General Plan amendment application was 
submitted to the Town of Oro Valley in April 2016 to allow residential land uses to replace the current neighborhood 
commercial entitlements due to the non-viability of commercial interest in this property’s immediate vicinity. 
 
This proposal is to request a rezoning of the approximately 17.8-acre site from Community Commercial (C-1) to Medium 
Density Residential (MDR) within the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development (PAD).  The proposed rezoning is 
supported by several factors, including its proximity to existing commercial developments and other undeveloped 
commercial property, compatibility with surrounding residential land uses, and adjacency to two significant roadways.  The 
anticipated overall gross density of Parcel 10-J is approximately 2.2 dwelling units per acre, which is similar to existing 
neighborhoods on adjacent parcels.   
 
In order to make this project a reality, the appropriate land entitlements must be acquired for the property.  The current 
land entitlements are not consistent with historic, current, or anticipated market demand; as such, the property owner is 
focused on acquiring the necessary entitlements in the Town of Oro Valley. 
 
 

  



 
 

  Introduction 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 2 

 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally blank) 



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis  



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 4 

 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally blank)  



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 5 

1. Existing Land Uses 
 

A. Regional Context 
 

The property subject to this rezoning request consists of 17.8± acres located in the Town of Oro Valley in 
Section 24, Township 11S, Range 13E, Pima County Arizona.  The site sits at the northwest corner of Rancho 
Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive.  It is near the geographic center of the Rancho Vistoso 
Planned Area Development.  The Pima County tax assessor designates the subject property as parcel 
numbers 219-20-004M and 219-20-004L. 

 
Please refer to Exhibit I-1-A: Site Location Map and Exhibit I-1-B: Aerial Photograph. 

 
B. Onsite Uses 

 
The subject property is currently undeveloped and vacant.  The subject property is currently zoned 
Community Commercial (C-1) within the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development (PAD).  The Town of 
Oro Valley is currently reviewing a General Plan Amendment request on the subject property to redesignate 
the property from Neighborhood Commercial/Office (NCO) to Medium Density Residential (MDR) on the 
General Plan land use map.   

 
Please refer to Exhibit I-1-C: Existing General Plan Future Land Use Designations. 

 
C. Project Vicinity 

 
Please refer to Exhibit I-1-D: Existing Zoning and Exhibit I-1-E:  Existing Land Uses.  The subject property is 
surrounded by the following existing zonings and land uses: 

 

a/b:  Existing Zoning and Land Uses 

 

North: Existing zoning: MDR (Medium Density Residential – PAD)  
LDR (Low Density Residential – PAD)  
Resort / Golf Course (Golf Course – PAD)  
Open Space (Open Space – PAD) 

 Existing land use: Single-Family Residential and Stone Canyon Golf Course. 

East: Existing zoning: MDR (Medium Density Residential – PAD)    

Existing land use: Single-Family Residential. 

South-East: Existing zoning: MDR (Medium Density Residential – PAD) 
   Open Space (Open Space –PAD) 

 Existing land use: Assisted Living Residential. 

South: Existing zoning: MDR (Medium Density Residential – PAD)  
HDR (High Density Residential –PAD)  
Resort / Golf Course (Golf Course – PAD) 

Existing land use: Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential. 



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 6 

West: Existing zoning: MDR (Medium Density Residential – PAD)  
Resort / Golf Course (Golf Course – PAD)  
HDR (High Density Residential – PAD)  
Open Space (Open Space – PAD) 

  Existing land use: Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential and Stone Canyon Golf 
Course. 

North-West: Existing zoning: MDR (Medium Density Residential – PAD)  
LDR (Low Density Residential – PAD)  
Resort / Golf Course (Golf Course –PAD)   

 Existing land use: Single-Family Residential and Stone Canyon Golf Course. 

 
C: Number of Stories of Surrounding Structures 

    
Adjacent structures within a quarter mile of the subject property include both one and two-story 
single-family detached homes, two-story multi-family attached homes, and a three-story assisted 
living facility. 

 
d: Pending Rezonings 
 
 There are no pending rezonings within a quarter mile of the subject property. 
 
e: Conditionally Approved Zonings 
 
 There are no conditionally approved zonings within a quarter mile of the subject property. 
 
f: Subdivisions and/or Development Plans Approved 
 

Center Pointe by Maracay, Parcel 10-N by Lennar, and Ridgeview at Vistoso Trails by Mattamy are 
all under construction within a quarter mile of the subject property. 

 
g: Architectural Styles Used in Adjacent Projects 
 

The architectural styles used in adjacent projects are mainly wood frame or block homes that utilize 
a stucco and/or stone veneer and have either a flat or tiled roof. 
 

2. Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
 

A. ESL Categories Onsite 
 

The subject property consists of two Environmentally Sensitive Land categories.  Approximately 96% or 
17.1± acres of the property is within the Resource Management Area Tier 2.  The remaining portion of the 
site is within in the Critical Resource Area, which is along the western boundary of the property and which 
is completely encompassed by PAD Open Space.  The vegetation community on the property is typical of 
the Sonoran Desertscrub Paloverde-Mixed Cacti, which includes Palo Verde, Mesquite, Cholla, Prickly pear, 
Ocotillo, and Barrel Cactus.  

  



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 7 

B. Additional ESL Characteristics 
 

No regulated rock outcrops occur on site. 
 

Please refer to Exhibit I-2-A: Environmentally Sensitive Lands. 
 

C. Total acreage present on-site for each Conservation Category. 
 

Conservation Category Acreage 
Major Wildlife Linkage 0 
Critical Resource Area 0.7± 
Core Resource Area 0 
RMA Tier 1 0 
RMA Tier 2 17.1± 
RMA Tier 3 0 

 
3. Topography 

 
A. Topographic Character & Features 

 
The topography of the subject property is characterized by relatively flat terrain and some undulating areas 
adjacent to the small wash that runs along the western boundary of the site.  The property generally slopes 
downward from northeast to southwest towards Vistoso Highlands Drive.  Elevations range from 
approximately 2,968 feet at the highest point on the northeast side to 2,945 feet at the lowest point on the 
southwest side of the property.  The site contains no areas of regulated slopes greater than 15%.  The site 
does not contain any restricted peaks, ridgelines or other significant topographic features.  No areas of this 
development are subject to the ESL Hillside Area Category. 
 
Please refer to Exhibit I-3-A: Topography. 
 

Topographic Feature Category Acreage 
15% to less than 18% 0 
18% to less than 20% 0 
20% to less than 25% 0 
25% to less than 33% 0 
33% or greater 0 
Ridgelines 0 
Rock Outcrops & Boulders 0 

 



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 8 

4. Cultural / Archaeological / Historic Resources 
 

A. Archaeological Survey Status / Results 
 
The subject property was intensively surveyed in 1986 by professional archaeologists, as part of the 
"Rancho Vistoso Survey" (see Prehistoric Settlement in the Canada Del Oro Valley, Arizona: The Rancho 
Vistoso Survey Project by D.B. Craig and H.D. Wallace 1987).  One site has been identified within the project 
area (AZ BB:9:177 [ASM]) and another has been identified approximately 60 yards east of the project area 
(AZ BB:9:87 [ASM]).  Forty-four archaeological sites have been identified within a 1-mile radius of the 
project area.  Both sites have been studied and cleared for development.  
 
The Arizona State Museum Archaeological Records Search Results Letter recommends, that a qualified 
archaeological contractor be consulted before any ground disturbance begins.  If any human remains or 
funerary objects are discovered during the construction of this project, all work will stop within the area of 
the remains and Dr. Tod Pitezel, ASM assistant curator of archaeology, will be contacted immediately.  An 
updated Cultural Resource Survey for the property is currently being conducted and will be completed 
before the Town Council meeting. 
 
Please refer to Appendix B: Archaeological Report. 



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 9 

5. Hydrology 
 

A. Offsite Watersheds 
 
The off-site watershed impacting the project site is a minor watershed of approximately 60 acres, which 
contributes to an unnamed wash that follows a southwesterly route along the western property boundary.  
The entire property area is designated as being within a Clear Zone ‘X’ per the FEMA Flood Insurance Rate 
Map (FIRM), Panel 04019C1080L, revised June 16, 2011.  The off-site terrain of the upstream watersheds 
is mostly native desert vegetation and some golf greens and fairways, several roadway crossings and some 
lower density residential development.  The development in the upstream area appears to provide some 
modest detention. 
 
Please refer to Exhibit I-5-A: Offsite Watersheds. 
 

B. Balanced / Critical Basins 
 
Per Town decree, the entire Town is classified as a critical basin.  
 

C. Offsite Features Affecting or Affected by the Property 
 
Upstream of the site, the low density nature of existing development allows most drainage to flow naturally.  
The extreme western side of the project site is impacted by approximately 300 cfs from the unnamed wash. 
 

D. Area of Upstream Watersheds Greater than 100 CFS 
 
The portion of the off-site watershed that impacts the site is of approximately 60 acres. 
 
Please refer to Exhibit I-5-B: Onsite Hydrology Characteristics. 
 

E. Location / Ownership of Well Sites within 100’ of Site 
 
According to the Arizona Department of Water Resources, there are no wells located within 100 feet of the 
project site. 
 

F. Onsite Hydrology Characteristics 
 
A shallow, braided wash runs along the western edge of the project site.  The entire site is typical of the 
upland desert biome, featuring a mix of cactus, mesquites, palo verde, and other species.  Pima County GIS 
data describes the soils as a mixed hydrological soil group.  Onsite hydrologic analysis has been performed 
with the Rational Method.  The runoff coefficients were prepared using the Town of Oro Valley Drainage 
Criteria Manual, and are based on soil types noted in the National Resource Conservation Service soils 
study.  The hydrologic soil type within the project boundary is comprised of 71% ‘D’ / 29% ‘C’.  The 
vegetative cover and density have been determined using recent aerial photographs and field 
reconnaissance.  The rainfall data was determined using the Generalized I-D-F Curves as found within Figure 
3-3 of the TOV Drainage Criteria Manual. 
 
Please refer to Exhibit I-5-B: Onsite Hydrology Characteristics 
 
 



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 10 

i. Approximate 100-year floodplains with discharges equal to or greater than 50 cfs. 
 
The project site contains a single sub-basin with greater than 50 cfs discharge.  The western boundary 
of the site is an unnamed wash that contributes approximately 300 cfs at the downstream outlet. 
 

ii. Areas of sheet flooding, with average depths 
 
The project site is not subject to sheet flooding. 
 

iii. Federally mapped floodways and floodplains 
 
The site is free of any federally mapped floodways and floodplains as illustrated with the FEMA FIRM 
Panel: 04019C1080L 
 

iv. Calculation of all 100-year peak discharges exceeding 50 cfs 
 
There are no on-site sub-basins with 100-year peak discharges exceeding 50 cfs. 
 

G. Existing Drainage Conditions along the Downstream Property Boundary 
 
Existing drainage conditions along the downstream property boundary have been considered and handled 
appropriately by the Rancho Vistoso master developer.  Grading, culverts and channelization have been 
implemented to adequately protect the downstream property from a 100-year storm event. 

  



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 11 

6. Wildlife 
 

A. Arizona Game & Fish Dept. Letter 
 

 



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 12 

Arizona Game & Fish Dept. Letter (cont’d) 
 

 



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 13 

Arizona Game & Fish Dept. Letter (cont’d) 
 

 



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 14 

Arizona Game & Fish Dept. Letter (cont’d) 
 

 



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 15 

Arizona Game & Fish Dept. Letter (cont’d) 
 

 



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 16 

Arizona Game & Fish Dept. Letter (cont’d) 
 

 



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 17 

Arizona Game & Fish Dept. Letter (cont’d) 
 

 



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 18 

Arizona Game & Fish Dept. Letter (cont’d) 
 

 



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 19 

Arizona Game & Fish Dept. Letter (cont’d) 
 

 



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 20 

Arizona Game & Fish Dept. Letter (cont’d) 
 

 



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 21 

Arizona Game & Fish Dept. Letter (cont’d) 
 

 

 
  



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 22 

7. Viewsheds  
 

Due to the relatively flat character of the project site, the perimeter areas are the only locations of high visibility 
from adjacent roadways and properties.  The areas of higher vegetation densities in and near the western and 
south-eastern portions of the site perimeter reduce visibility into and across the property.   

 
A. For proposals within the Tangerine Road Corridor Overlay District and/or Oracle Road Scenic Corridor 

Overlay District, provide a Viewshed Analysis as defined in Section 27.10.D.3.f.iv.a.1. 
 
The subject property does not fall within either Overlay district. 
 

B. For proposals within the Tangerine Road Corridor Overlay District and/or Oracle Road Scenic Corridor 
Overlay District, provide a View Preservation Plan (VPP) for nonresidential developments that meet the 
criteria defined in Section 27.10.D.3.f.iv.2. 
 
Not Applicable 
 

C. For proposals within the Tangerine Road Corridor Overlay District and/or Oracle Road Scenic Corridor 
Overlay District, map and identify all Core Character Vegetation (CCV), in accordance with Section 
27.10.D.3.f.iv.b. 
 
Not Applicable 

  



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 23 

8. Traffic 
 

A. Connection to Arterial Roadway Network 
 
Access to the subject property will be from Rancho Visotos Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive.  These 
ingress/egress points will be aligned with existing curb and median cuts on the adjacent arterial and 
collector roadways. 
 

B. Arterial Roadways within One Mile of the Property 
 

i. Existing and proposed right-of-way widths.  See tables below. 
ii. Whether or not said widths conform to Oro Valley minimum requirements.  See tables below. 
iii. Ownership (public or private).  See tables below. 
iv. Whether or not rights-of-way jog or are continuous.  See tables below. 
v. Number of travel lanes, theoretical capacity and design speed for existing streets.  See tables below. 
vi. Present Average Daily Traffic (ADT) for existing streets.  See tables below. 
vii. Describe surface conditions on existing streets providing access to the site.  See tables below. 
viii. Program for completion of roadway and intersection improvements.  See tables below. 

 
 Rancho Vistoso Blvd.  

Road Segment: 
Moore Rd. to 

Del Webb Blvd. 
Del Webb Blvd. to 

Oracle Rd. 
Existing ROW: 150’ 150’ 
Ultimate ROW: 150’ 150’ 
Travel Lanes: 4 4 
Capacity: 40,000 40,000 
ADT (PAG): 3,471 12,893 
Speed Limit: 45 45 
Condition: Paved Paved 
Scheduled Improvements: None Scheduled None scheduled 

  
 Moore Road  

Road Segment: 
Thornydale Rd. to  

La Cholla Blvd. 
La Cholla Blvd. to  

Rancho Vistoso Blvd. 
Existing ROW: 60' 60'-150’ 
Ultimate ROW: 150’ 150' 
Travel Lanes: 2 2-4 
Capacity: 17,000 17,000 
ADT (PAG): 2,031 3,914 
Speed Limit: 45 35-45 
Condition: Paved Paved 
Scheduled Improvements: None Scheduled Completed in early 2016 

 
Please refer to Exhibit I-8-A: Transportation. 
 

ix. Existing and proposed intersections on arterials within 1 mile of the site most likely to be used by traffic 
from the site. 

 



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 24 

Arterial intersections within one mile of the site that will likely carry traffic generated by this 
development include Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive, and Rancho Vistoso 
Boulevard and Moore Road. 
 

x. Existing bicycle and pedestrian ways adjacent to the site and their connections with arterial streets, 
parks and schools. 
 
There is a signed bike route with on street bike lane that extends the entire length of Rancho Vistoso 
Boulevard from Tangerine Road to Oracle Road.  There is also a signed bike route with on street bike 
lane along Vistoso Highlands Drive.  These routes provide connectivity to Painted Sky Elementary 
School, Copper Creek Elementary School, Honey Bee Park, the Woodshade Linear Park, Sunset Park, 
Hohokam Park and the greater Oro Valley/Pima County bicycle-pedestrian path system. 
 
Refer to Exhibit I-8-A: Transportation.  
 

9. Recreation / Trails 
 

A. Trails, Parks and Recreation Areas within One Mile of the Property 
 
There are several smaller neighborhood parks within one mile of the subject property, including Moticello 
Park, Cortona Park, Somerset Park, Torreno Park, Hohokam Park, Sunset Park, the Woodshade Linear Park, 
and the Honey Bee Canyon Park.  The Golf Club at Vistoso is a public, par 72 course that is located 
approximately one half mile to the west of the project site.  Multi-use pathways are located within the 
Woodshade Linear Park and along the east side of La Canada Drive.  There is also a series of natural trails 
that weave their way through and around the surrounding neighborhoods.  These trails connect 
neighborhoods to one another and to the active recreation areas scattered throughout Rancho Vistoso.   

 
 Surrounding Recreation Areas  
Park Name: Park Size (in Acres) Park Type (Active of Passive) 
Moticello Park 1.2± Passive 
Cortona Park 0.5± Passive 
Somerset Park 1.2± Passive 
Torreno Park 0.2± Passive 
Hohokam Park 8.8± Active & Passive 
Sunset Park 3.5± Passive 
Woodshade Linear Park 3.1± Passive 
Honey Bee Canyon Park 77.9± Passive 
Golf Club at Vistoso 202± Active 

 
 
Refer to Exhibit I-9-A: Trails, Parks & Recreation. 

  



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 25 

10. Schools 
 

A. Schools within One Mile of the Property 
 
The Amphitheater School District owns a 10± acre parcel approximately 1-mile southwest of the subject 
property.  The parcel is currently vacant, but will eventually become an Elementary School site.  There is 
also a future Middle School Site that is designated within the Rancho Vistoso PAD approximately 2-miles 
southeast of the subject property. 
 
Refer to Exhibit I-10-A: Existing & Proposed Schools. 
 

B. Schools Expected to Serve the Project 
 
Rancho Vistoso 10J is located within the Amphitheater Public School District.  Existing schools in the District 
that may serve this project include: 
 

• Painted Sky Elementary School is located to the south of the project site and Moore Road.  The 
school accommodates kindergarten through fifth grades.  

• Copper Creek Elementary School is located to the south of the project site and Tangerine Road.  
The school accommodates Kindergarten through fifth grades. 

• Ironwood Ridge High School is located to the southwest of the project site and Naranja Drive and 
La Cholla Blvd.  The school accommodated ninth through twelfth grades. 

• Basis Oro Valley, a charter school, is located to the southeast of the project site and Tangerine Road 
and Oracle Road.  The school accommodates kindergarten through twelfth grades. 

  



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 26 

11. Water 
 

A. Water Service Provider 
 
This project will be served by the Oro Valley water Utility.  The exact nature of offsite improvements will be 
determined during the platting process, although none are anticipated.  There is a 12” PVC water line that 
exists within the Rancho Vistoso Boulevard R.O.W., and within the Vistoso Highlands Drive R.O.W.  The 
water line within Vistoso Highlands Drive has an 8" stub out to serve this property.  Contact information: 
Mark Moore – Oro Valley Water Utility, 11000 N. La Canada Drive, Oro Valley AZ 85737 

  



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 27 

12. Wastewater 
 

A. Sewer Service Connection 
 
There is an existing 8" sewer line within the Rancho Vistoso Boulevard R.O.W. and an existing 10" sewer 
line within the Vistoso Highlands Drive R.O.W.  There is an 8" sewer stub out coming from Vistoso Highlands 
Drive to service the subject property.  Capacity is currently available for this project in the public sewer G-
95-143, downstream from manhole 6987-05. 
 
Refer to Exhibit I-12-A: Sewer Service. 

  



 
 

   
 

Part I – Inventory & Analysis 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 28 

13. Exhibits 
  































 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 43 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Part II – Land Use Plan 
  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 44 

 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally blank)  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 45 

1. Land Uses 
 

A. Project Description 
 
This project proposes a residential subdivision with a density of 2.2 dwelling units per acre, consisting of 39 
single-family detached homes on ~17.8-acres.  All 39 homes will be semi-custom site built homes with a 25 
foot, one-story height limit for gabled roofs and a 22 foot, one-story height limit for flat roofs.  All of the 
lots will have a minimum size of 70’ x 125’ (8,750 sq. ft.), though the home sizes will vary.  The architectural 
design of these homes will be consistent with surrounding residential developments and will adhere to the 
Rancho Vistoso PAD Design Guidelines.  They will be constructed out of materials such as stucco, adobe, 
and wood frame, and will have either a gabled, tiled or flat roof.  Perimeter walls will meet the Rancho 
Vistoso Design Guidelines, and landscape treatments and design will be similar to the existing landscapes 
of the surrounding neighborhoods within the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development (PAD). 
 
Refer to Exhibit II-1-A: Conceptual Land Use Plan. 
 

B. General Plan Conformance 
 

As mentioned before, actual residential densities in Rancho Vistoso are significantly lower than envisioned 
at the time the Rancho Vistoso PAD was originally designed over 30 years ago.  A commensurate drop in 
demand for commercial land has resulted, which has caused this property to remain undeveloped.  Little 
potential exists for significant residential densities to develop anywhere near the subject property, meaning 
that the chances of this property being developed for a commercial use is very unlikely.  Significant demand 
exists for additional medium-density residential development, which is more compatible with surrounding 
land uses than the existing commercial entitlements.  
 

C. Flexible Design Options / Conservation Subdivision Design 
 
This proposed residential neighborhood conserves 100% of the Critical Resource Area that exists along the 
western boundary of the project site. 
 

D. Effect on Existing Land Uses 
 
Since the subject property is currently vacant, there will be no negative impact to existing land uses.  
Developing this property as single-family residential will unify existing neighborhoods, increase the sense 
of community, and eliminate any negative visual impacts to surrounding viewsheds that may have been 
created by a commercial development. 
 

  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 46 

2. Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
 

A. ESOS Selection & Preservation Methods 
 
This project will be in conformance with the ESL guidelines of the Zoning Code.  The site plan provide 5.0± 
acres of ESOS (28% of the site) and it avoids the minor wash and the vegetation in the wash area along the 
western boundary of the site.  The designated Critical Resource Area (CRA) along the western boundary of 
the project site will be preserved in its entirety.  This onsite ESOS area maintains open space connectivity 
within and beyond the project site, and will allow for uninterrupted wildlife movement.  This ESOS area will 
be permanently protected within as open space tract or easement.  Additionally, any vegetation that is 
disturbed will meet the mitigation requirements as set forth in the Town of Oro Valley Zoning Code. 
    
 
 

  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 47 

3. Topography 
 

A. Design Response to Site Topography 
 
Due to the relatively flat character of the subject property and the lack of challenging topographic 
constraints, the development of this property can proceed within out special grading considerations. 
 

B. Slope Encroachment 
 
The subject property does not contain any regulated 15% or greater slopes, and as such there are no areas 
of encroachment. 
 

C. Hillside Conservation Areas 
 
There are no Hillside Conservation Areas on the subject property. 
 

D. Quantified Site Disturbance 
 
Approximately 15.4± acres (86.5%) of the site will be graded, and 2.4± acres (13.5%) of the site will be left 
in its natural condition.  Approximately 20% of the graded areas of the site will be revegetated with native 
vegetation and will become landscaped common area, bringing the effective open space area to 
approximately 5.7± acres (32%) of the site.   
 

  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 48 

4. Cultural / Archaeological / Historic Resources 
 

A. Resource Protection 
 
If any cultural resources are discovered during construction, State and local rules will be followed regarding 
the handling and treatment of such cultural resources. 
 

B. Treatment Plan 
 
The entire Rancho Vistoso PAD has been surveyed for archaeological resources (see Prehistoric Settlement 
in the Canada Del Oro Valley, Arizona: The Rancho Vistoso Survey Project by D.B. Craig and H.D. Wallace 
1987).  One site has been identified within the project area (AZ BB:9:177 [ASM]).  An updated Cultural 
Resource Survey for the property is currently being conducted and will be completed before the Town 
Council meeting.  In the unlikely event that cultural resources are uncovered during construction a 
professional archaeologist will evaluate the exposed material before any work continues in the area of the 
discovery.  If any human remains or funerary objects are discovered during the construction of this project, 
all work will stop within the area of the remains and Dr. Tod Pitezel, ASM assistant curator of archaeology, 
will be contacted immediately.  
 

  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 49 

 

Rancho Vistoso Survey Project Cover Page 

  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 50 

5. Hydrology 
 

A. Design Response to Site Hydrology 
 
The low density nature of this development will have a less than significant impact on the hydrological 
characteristics of the site, compared to that of a commercial development.  Additionally this project will 
incorporate appropriate mitigation measures in accordance with the Town of Oro Valley Floodplain 
Management Code and the Drainage Criteria Manual.  
 

B. Modifications of Drainage Patterns 
 
The site has no sub-basins with discharges greater than 50 cfs and is free of any federally mapped 
floodplains.  Minimal encroachment into the existing drainage patterns on site will occur.  The low density 
nature of the existing offsite upstream development allows most drainage to flow in its natural state.  
Offsite flows from upstream watersheds will be collected in detention basins, channels and/or culverts 
directing the runoff through the project site. 
 

C. Mitigation 
 
Drainage design within the proposed development will convey offsite and onsite flows using constructed 
channels, storm drain pipes, onsite detention basins in accordance with the Town of Oro Valley Floodplain 
Management Code and the Drainage Criteria Manual.  Channel and basin geometry and construction will 
follow accepted standards regarding erosion and flow velocity control.  Horizontal elements constructed 
within the project will be set at or near existing grade so as to minimize impacts to existing drainage 
patterns.  Finished floor elevations will be set to one foot above the established base flood elevations of 
adjacent floodplains.  Individual lots will be graded according to Town standards, which will provide 
adequate room and grades to handle stormwater runoff.   
 

D. Town Policy Conformance 
 
The post-developed 100-year discharges exiting the site will be maintained in their current condition or 
reduced by a maximum of 10% in accordance with Town policy.  Which requires all development to conform 
to “critical basin” requirements and not result in any adverse impacts for adjacent or downstream property 
owners. 
 

  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 51 

6. Wildlife 
 

A. Mitigation 
 
This development will preserve 100% of the onsite Critical Resource Area (CRA) along the western portion 
of the site.  This entire area along the western boundary of the site will be designated as open space and 
will maintain open space connectivity within and beyond the project site, which will allow for uninterrupted 
wildlife movement. 
 

  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 52 

7. Viewsheds 
 

A. Design Response to Site Viewsheds 
 
This proposed residential development will restrict building heights to a maximum of 25 feet, for one-story 
gabled roofs, and 22 feet for one-story flat roofs.  This will lessen the viewshed impact for neighboring 
developments to the surrounding views and vistas off-site compared to the height of structures currently 
allowed under the existing commercial zoning. 
 
With the subject property being relatively flat, the projects internal roadway network and homesites will 
minimally disturb viewsheds.  Bufferyards will be provided around the perimeter of the property to help 
mitigate views into the site.   
 

B. ORSCOD / TRCOD Conformance 
 
This property does not fall within the Tangerine Road Corridor Overlay District (TRCOD) and/or Oracle 
Road Scenic Corridor Overlay District (ORSCOD). 
 
The architectural design of these homes will be consistent with surrounding residential developments and 
will adhere to the Rancho Vistoso PAD’s design guidelines.  They will be constructed out of materials such 
as stucco, adobe, and wood frame, and will have either a gabled, tiled or flat roof. 

  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 53 

8. Traffic 
 

A. Traffic Impact Analysis 
 
Provide a traffic analysis report to include: 
 

i. The proposed internal circulation and access to/from arterial streets, explaining location and 
rationale for placement. 
 
The subject property will have two ingress/egress points that will connect this neighborhood 
directly to Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive.  These ingress/egress points are 
located at existing curb and median cuts on the adjacent arterail and collector roadways, which 
have been located at a safe distance from the arterial intersection of Rancho Vistoso Boulevard 
and Vistoso Highlands Drive.   
 

ii. If off-site road improvements are required, indicate which roads and time frame for improvements. 
 
Roadways adjacent to and within one-mile distance from the subject property are in good condition 
and will not require any additional improvements. 
 

iii. Projected ADT for internal circulation system at build out and level of service to all streets.  Include 
a projection of traffic volumes and capacity analysis for intersections. 
 
With and average daily trip (ADT) of 8-10 trips per household, the 39 residential lots proposed 
within this development will generate approximately 312-390 ADT.  The local private streets inside 
this development and the abutting arterial roadways, which are operating below capacity, will be 
able to accommodate traffic generated from this project.  
 

iv. Impact to existing development abutting off-site streets. 
 
Rezoning the subject property from Community Commercial (C-1) to Medium Density Residential 
(MDR) will significantly reduce the traffic impact to surrounding developments and off-site streets, 
compared to the existing commercial entitlements. 
 

v. Capacity analyses for proposed internal and off-site streets, including right-of-way and pavement 
widths, geometrics, design speeds and traffic control improvements needed. 
 
Rancho Vistoso Boulevard 
 
Rancho Vistoso Boulevard is a four-lane (two in each direction) paved arterial road with a divided 
landscaped median and left turn lanes, with a posted speed limit of 45 mph.  The existing and 
ultimate right-of-way is 150 feet, which is continuous.  According to the Pima Association of 
Governments (PAG) 2010 Traffic Volumes, the average daily trip volume (ADT) for this arterial 
roadway ranges from 3,471 to 16,995 ADT. 
 
Vistoso Highlands Drive 
 
Vistoso Highlands Drive is a four-lane (two in each direction), that merges to a two-lane paved 
collector road as you travel west from the intersection of Vistoso Highlands Drive and Rancho 



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 54 

Vistoso Boulevard.  The posted speed limit of Vistoso Highlands Drive is 30 mph.  The existing and 
ultimate right-of-way width is 80 feet. 
 

vi. A description of improvements required for those streets described in sub-paragraph v. above. 
 
Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive are in good condition and will not require 
any improvements to accommodate by this low density development.  
 

vii. The party/agency that the applicant believes to be responsible for making necessary 
improvements. 
 
Not applicable. 
 

viii. Evidence that proposed turning movements will meet safety standards in relationship to traffic 
volumes. 
 
The proposed ingress/egress point on Vistoso Highlands Drive is aligned with Hidden Springs Drive 
to the south and is located a safe distance from the intersection of Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and 
Vistoso Highlands Drive.  Both of the projects proposed ingress/egress points are located at existing 
curb and median cuts on the adjacent arterial and collector roadways.  Vegetation adjacent to 
these ingress/egress points will be maintained to provide safe site visibility for vehicles exiting the 
site and will allow safe turning movements to and from the site.  The proposed residential roadways 
meet the Town of Oro Valley Minimum Design Standards.  
 

B. Proposed Rights-of-Way 
 
The proposed roadways within this development will have a right-of-way width of 50 feet and will meet the 
Town of Oro Valley Minimum Design Standards.  The internal roads of this development will be private 
streets because they are proposed to be gated, and will be owned and maintained by the HOA.  
 

C. Proposed Pedestrian / Bicycle Circulation 
 
The proposed residential development will make pedestrian and bicycle connections to Rancho Vistoso 
Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive.  According to the Oro Valley Bikeways Map Existing Routes 2016, 
there is a signed bicycle-route with an on-street bike lane that runs along Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and 
Vistoso Highlands Drive.  Sidewalks will be constructed on both sides of the private streets within the 
project site, and will connect to the existing sidewalks along Rancho Visotos Boulevard and Vistoso 
Highlands Drive. 
 

  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 55 

9. Recreation / Trails 
 

A. Offsite Trail Access 
 
There are eight public and neighborhood parks, totaling almost 100 acres, located within one mile of the 
subject property.  Additionally there are approximately 4.6± miles of offsite trails and walking paths that 
exist within one mile of the site.  The nearby parks provide amenities such as dog parks, children’s 
playground equipment, ramadas, barbeques, restroom facilities, turf areas, tennis courts, volleyball courts, 
and basketball courts.  The Golf Club at Vistoso also provides recreational facilities, which is open to the 
public.  
 

B. Open Space Ownership 
 
The future HOA of this proposed development will own and maintain the open space within this project. 
 

  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 56 

10. Schools 
 

A. Student Generation 
 
This proposed development is expected to generate approximately 8 elementary students, 9 middle school 
students, and 5 high school students (using the accepted standard student multiplier of 0.2075 elementary 
school students per home, 0.2197 middle school students per home, and 0.1282 high school students per 
home). 
 

B. School Capacity 
 
According to the letter supplied by the Amphitheater School District, there is available capacity for this 
proposed development.   
 

  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 57 

Amphitheater Capacity Letter 

  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 58 

Amphitheater Capacity Letter (cont’d) 

 

  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 59 

 

11. Water 
 

A. Water Demand 
 
A good estimate for domestic water usage is 230 gallons per day per lot dry weather flow.  With 39 lots 
being proposed in this development, the total domestic water use is projected at 8,970 gallons per day. 
 

B. Water Service Provider & Capacity 
 
Oro Valley Water has the capacity and infrastructure available to serve this project.  This project will 
connect to the existing water main lines within the rights-of-way of Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso 
Highlands Drive. 
 

  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 60 

12. Wastewater 
 

A. Sewer Service Method 
 
Pima County Regional Wastewater Reclamation Department will provide sewer service to this 
development.  Capacity is currently available for this project in the public sewer G—95-143, downstream 
from manhole 6987-05. 
 

 
 
 

  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 61 

Wastewater Service Provider Letter 

  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 62 

 

13. Bufferyards 
 

A. Mitigation (if applicable) 
 
A landscape bufferyard will be provided around the entire perimeter of the project site to help soften any 
visual impacts to surrounding landowners.  The bufferyards will be composed from a variety of native 
vegetation and will help blend this residential neighborhood with the surrounding developments.  They will 
be a minimum of 15-25 feet wide and will be in accordance with the Bufferyard “A” and “B” criteria in the 
Town of Oro Valley Zoning Code.  



 
 

  
  

Part II – Land Use Plan 

  Rancho Vistoso Parcel 10J PAD Amendment 
WLB No. 185050-VH-01 63 

14. Exhibits 
  



 





 



 

 

 

Insert pocket for 24”x36” Tentative Development Plan 



 









 
 

  Part III – Appendices 

 Capella Planned Area Development 
WLB No. 110028-A-003 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Part III – Appendices 
 



A
 
 

  Part III – Appendices 

 Capella Planned Area Development 
WLB No. 110028-A-003 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A: Traffic Report 
  





   David Laws 
13 July 2016 

Page 2 

 
Figure 1 – Vicinity Map 

 
 
 

 
  



   David Laws 
13 July 2016 

Page 3 

 
Figure 2 – Site Plan 

 



   David Laws 
13 July 2016 

Page 4 

 
With a posted speed limit of 30 MPH, Vistoso Highlands Drive has an east/west alignment. 
Adjacent to the project, Vistoso Highlands Drive offers two lanes in each direction separated by 
a concrete median. Sidewalk, curb, and gutter facilities exist on both sides of the roadway. Bike 
lanes are also provided on both sides of the road. Vistoso Highlands Drive provides access to 
residential homes northwest of Rancho Vistoso Boulevard. 
 
Hidden Springs Drive has north/south alignment and provides access into several residential 
areas. With a posted speed limit of 30 MPH, the roadway is undivided and offers one lane in 
each direction. Curb, gutter, sidewalk facilities, and bike lanes are present on both sides of the 
road. The roadway currently spans between Klinger Canyon Place and Vistoso Highlands Drive.  
 
The intersection of Vistoso Highland Drive and Rancho Vistoso Boulevard is a signalized, four-
way intersection. Eastbound and westbound traffic is provided with an exclusive left turn lane 
and a shared through/right turn lane. Both the northbound and southbound legs provide an 
exclusive left turn lane, a through lane, and a shared through/right turn lane. The left turn 
phasing for the northbound and southbound movements is protected-permitted, while the left 
turn phasing for the eastbound and westbound directions is permitted only. Crosswalks, 
pedestrian ramps, and push buttons are offered on all four approaches to the intersection.  
 
Hidden Springs Drive/Vistoso Highland Drive is an un-signalized ‘T’ intersection. Eastbound 
and westbound traffic is free flow, while northbound traffic is STOP sign controlled. Northbound 
vehicles are offered an exclusive left turn lane and an exclusive right turn lane. Westbound 
traffic is provided with an exclusive left turn lane and two through lanes. Eastbound vehicles are 
offered a left turn lane, which has been constructed for the future project, in addition to a through 
lane, and a shared through/right turn lane. East of Hidden Springs Drive, existing landscaping 
exists within the median of Vistoso Highland Drive.  
 
 
Existing Traffic Data 
 
In order to form a basis for analysis of the project impacts, weekday 24-hour intersection 
approach counts were conducted at the intersection of Hidden Springs Drive/Vistoso Highlands 
Drive.  
 
In addition, weekday 24-hour bi-directional vehicle speed counts were taken on Vistoso 
Highlands Drive between Hidden Springs Drive and Vistoso Resorts Casitas Drive. 
 
Both the intersection approach counts and bi-directional vehicle speed counts were taken in July 
2016. 
 
The existing weekday intersection approach volumes are shown in Figure 3. 
  



   David Laws 
13 July 2016 

Page 5 

 
Figure 3 – Existing Weekday Intersection Approach Traffic Volumes 

 
  



   David Laws 
13 July 2016 

Page 6 

 
Trip Generation 
 
Trip generation for the project was developed utilizing nationally agreed upon data contained in 
the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) publication Trip Generation, 9th Edition, 2012.  
 
The project trip generation was estimated for the construction of 40 single family homes based 
on ITE Land Use Code 210, Single-Family Detached Housing. The result is the expected 
weekday trip generation for the proposed project as shown in Table 1. The complete trip 
generation calculations can be found in the Appendix. 
 

Table 1 – Weekday Project Site Generated Trips 
 

Average Daily, Inbound (vtpd) 191
Average Daily, Outbound (vtpd) 191

Total Daily 382
AM Peak Hour, Inbound (vtph) 8
AM Peak Hour, Outbound (vtph) 23

Total AM Peak 31
PM Peak Hour, Inbound (vtph) 25
PM Peak Hour, Outbound (vtph) 15

Total PM Peak 40
vtpd - vehicle trips per day, vtph - vehicle trips per hour

Time Period Total

 
 
 
Access 
 
Access to the proposed project will be provided via two new access points. 
 
The first access point will be constructed on Vistoso Highlands Drive. This access point will 
form the new north leg of the intersection of Hidden Springs Drive/Vistoso Highlands Drive. 
Northbound and southbound traffic at this intersection will make use of a left turn lane and a 
through/right turn lane while eastbound and westbound traffic will be provided with a left turn 
lane, a through lane and a through/right turn lane. Vehicles exiting the project via South Access 
will be STOP controlled. 
 
East Access will be located on Rancho Vistoso Boulevard approximately 450 feet north of 
Vistoso Highlands Drive. A curb cut, median break and a northbound left turn lane have already 
been constructed on Rancho Vistoso Boulevard in anticipation of this future access. An unused 
southbound left turn lane also exists, however, the residential development east of Rancho 
Vistoso Boulevard has been constructed and currently no access point was provided at this 
location. Northbound traffic at this intersection will be provided with a left turn lane and two 
through lanes while southbound traffic makes use of a through lane and a shared through/right 
turn lane. Eastbound traffic exiting the site via the East Access will be STOP controlled and 
provided with a shared left turn/right turn lane. 
  



   David Laws 
13 July 2016 

Page 7 

 
Multi-Way Stop Analysis 
 
The intersection of Hidden Springs Drive/Vistoso Highlands Drive was evaluated for multi-way 
STOP control as part of this TIS. The existing geometrics were used in the analysis. 
 
The MUTCD includes guidelines for the installation of STOP signs and multi-way STOPs. The 
MUTCD clearly states that STOP signs should not be used for speed control, but instead are to 
be used to assign right of way. STOP signs, when installed, are usually installed to stop the street 
with the lower traffic level. The MUTCD provides for the use of multi-way STOPS at locations 
as a safety measure to reduce crashes, or when traffic is so concentrated on the more heavily 
traveled street that it prevents side-street traffic from entering or crossing the intersection. Multi-
way STOP control is typically used where the volume of traffic on the intersecting roads is 
approximately equal. 
 
The MUTCD (Section 2B.07) contains warrants, which if met, indicate that a multi-way STOP 
may improve traffic conditions. The Traffic Signal warrant (Warrant A), Correctable Crash 
warrant (Warrant B) and the Minimum Volumes warrant (Warrant C) were used to evaluate the 
need to sign the intersection as a multi-way STOP. Warrant D applies only if Warrants B and C 
are within 80% of being met.  
  
Warrant A states that a multi-way STOP may be justified as an interim measure in the case that a 
traffic signal is currently warranted but is not able to be installed. The intersection of Hidden 
Springs Drive/Vistoso Highlands Drive is too close to the signalized intersection of Vistoso 
Highlands Drive/Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and would be an inappropriate location for a traffic 
signal. 
 
Warrant B (Crashes) is satisfied when five or more reported crashes occur in a twelve (12) month 
period and are susceptible to correction by a multi-way stop installation. Such crashes include 
right-turn and left-turn collisions as well as right-angle collisions. This warrant was not included 
in the analysis due to a lack of crash data in the area. 
 
Warrant C (Minimum Volumes) is satisfied when for at least eight (8) hours of an average day, 
specific traffic volume levels are met for both the major and minor streets. The MUTCD states 
these volumes to be 300 vehicles per hour (VPH) combined on the major street approaches and 
200 units of VPH, pedestrians, and bicyclists on the minor street approaches, in addition to a 30-
second per vehicle delay to vehicular traffic during the maximum hour. If the 85th percentile 
approach speed of the major street exceeds 40 MPH, the minimum vehicular volume warrants 
mentioned above are reduced to 70% of the total stated. 
 
Warrant D is satisfied when no single criteria is satisfied for Warrant A, Warrant B or Warrant C 
but where 80% of Warrant B and Warrant C are satisfied. Intersections with traffic levels lower 
than these warrants tend to operate best with no STOP signs, or STOP signs only on the lesser 
traveled street. 
 
  



   David Laws 
13 July 2016 

Page 8 

 
In order to determine the necessity of a multi-way stop the existing condition, 2017 without the 
project, and 2017 with the project, scenarios were evaluated based on MUTCD guidelines. A 
conservative background traffic growth rate of 3% was assumed. Table 2 shows the results of 
the multi-way STOP analysis for the three scenarios described above at the intersection of 
Hidden Springs Drive/Vistoso Highlands Drive. Complete warrant calculations are included in 
the Appendix. 
 
 

Table 2 – Multi-Way STOP Warrant Analysis–Hidden Springs Drive/Vistoso Highlands Drive 
 

A B C D

2017 Without Project No N/A No No 0.52

Existing No N/A No No 0.52

Warrant Number Minor Road Volume/Major 
Road Volume Ratio

0.52N/A NoNo No2017 With Project

Conditions

 
       N/A – Warrant not available for analysis due to lack of crash history data. 
 
 
As shown in Table 2, warrants for a multi-way STOP at the intersection of Hidden Springs 
Drive/Vistoso Highlands Drive are not met for existing conditions, 2017 without the project or 
2017 with the project.     

 
  
Traffic Volume and Vehicle Speed 
 
Results of the traffic counts show that there are 1,864 vehicles per day (vpd) on Vistoso 
Highlands Drive west of Hidden Springs Drive. Traffic levels on Vistoso Highlands Drive were 
relatively even for eastbound and westbound traffic. A review of the traffic volumes shows that 
they do not follow a typical morning and evening commuter travel patter. Morning and evening 
peak hours fell between 11:00 AM to 12:00 PM and 12:00-1:00 PM. Peak hour patterns were 
relatively close to a 50/50 split. This street acts as minor collector roadway and connects local 
streets and residences to Rancho Vistoso Boulevard. A minor collector roadway regularly carries 
between 500 and 8,000 vehicles per day. The traffic levels on both Vistoso Highland Drive and 
Hidden Springs Drive are well within this range. 
 
The speed limit on Vistoso Highlands is set at 30 MPH. Ideally, it is desirable to have motorists 
traveling at the speed limit. However, a survey of various cities in Arizona that perform vehicle 
speed studies in neighborhoods indicates that drivers tend to select speeds somewhat higher than 
the posted speed limit. They generally travel at an average of 3 to 7 mph over the posted speed 
limit. Furthermore, it has been found that about ten to fifteen percent of motorists on residential 
streets exceed the speed limit by more than ten mph.  
 
Speed counts were taken on Vistoso Highland Drive between Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and 
Hidden Springs Drive. A summary of this data is provided in Table 3. 

 

 
  





City: Oro Valley Project #:

Location: Hidden Springs Dr. & Vistoso Highlands Dr. 
AM Period NB  SB  EB  WB PM Period NB  SB  EB  WB  

00:00 1   0  0   12:00 16   19  17   
00:15 2   0  0  12:15 13   24  23  
00:30 0   0  0  12:30 28   15  17  
00:45 0 3  0 0 0 0 3 12:45 12 69  16 74 19 76 219

01:00 0   0  0  13:00 15   30  10  
01:15 0   0  0  13:15 19   22  14  
01:30 1   0  0  13:30 15   12  12  
01:45 0 1  0 0 1 1 2 13:45 13 62  36 100 13 49 211

02:00 0   1  0   14:00 13   20  9   
02:15 0   0  0   14:15 18   19  12   
02:30 0   0  0   14:30 11   14  10   
02:45 0 0  0 1 0 0 1 14:45 10 52  16 69 11 42 163

03:00 0   0  0   15:00 17   11  13   
03:15 0   1  0   15:15 15   11  11   
03:30 1   1  3   15:30 16   14  15   
03:45 1 2  4 6 2 5 13 15:45 6 54  12 48 12 51 153

04:00 1   0  1   16:00 13   18  8   
04:15 1   0  2   16:15 12   19  17   
04:30 5   2  3   16:30 11   11  11   
04:45 3 10  3 5 8 14 29 16:45 16 52  8 56 7 43 151

05:00 5   3  4   17:00 17   10  20   
05:15 7   5  28   17:15 14   7  9   
05:30 13   11  13   17:30 11   5  14   
05:45 22 47  6 25 12 57 129 17:45 10 52  6 28 6 49 129

06:00 12   11  17   18:00 16   6  3   
06:15 9   17  20   18:15 6   5  6   
06:30 14   10  14   18:30 2   11  6   
06:45 16 51  12 50 15 66 167 18:45 10 34  6 28 8 23 85

07:00 18   10  13   19:00 11   4  7   
07:15 25   16  19   19:15 13   8  4   
07:30 14   19  16   19:30 4   2  2   
07:45 22 79  26 71 19 67 217 19:45 7 35  1 15 7 20 70

08:00 21   25  25   20:00 4   3  7   
08:15 23   23  16   20:15 5   4  9   
08:30 24   17  20   20:30 6   0  3   
08:45 16 84  18 83 21 82 249 20:45 4 19  0 7 6 25 51

09:00 19   19  16   21:00 5   2  6   
09:15 13   17  15   21:15 4   3  0   
09:30 23  30  12   21:30 0   2  1   
09:45 15 70  21 87 19 62 219 21:45 3 12  2 9 0 7 28

10:00 18   24  20   22:00 4   1  2   
10:15 14   15  30   22:15 4   0  2   
10:30 20   22  18   22:30 2   0  0   
10:45 15 67  23 84 16 84 235 22:45 1 11  0 1 0 4 16

11:00 18   18  22   23:00 0   0  1   
11:15 26   24  31   23:15 0   0  0   
11:30 22   26  24   23:30 4   0  0   
11:45 25 91  28 96 15 92 279 23:45 0 4  0 0 1 2 6

Total Vol. 505 508 530 1543  456 435 391 1282

GPS Coordinates:
NB SB EB WB Combined

961  943  921 2825

Split % 32.7% 32.9% 34.3% 54.6% 35.6% 33.9% 30.5% 45.4%

Peak Hour 11:00 11:15 10:45 11:00 12:30 13:00 12:00 12:15

Volume 91 97 93 279 74 100 76 222
P.H.F. 0.88 0.87 0.75 0.86 0.66 0.69 0.83 0.93

Prepared by:  Field Data Services of Arizona/Veracity Traffic Group (520) 316-6745

PMAM

Daily Totals

Wednesday, June 22, 2016Volumes for: 16-1232-002



P
a

g
e

 1
     

 
S

it
e

 C
o

d
e

: 
1

6
-1

2
3

2
-0

0
1

S
ta

ti
o

n
 I

D
: 

W
e

d
 0

6
/2

2
/2

0
1

6
V

is
to

s
o

 H
ig

h
la

n
d

s
 D

r.
 b

tw
n

. 
H

id
d

e
n

S
p

ri
n

g
s
 D

r.
 &

 V
is

to
s
o

 R
e

s
o

rt
s
 C

a
s
it
a

s
 D

r
L

a
ti
tu

d
e

: 
0

' 0
.0

0
0

 U
n

d
e

fi
n

e
d

F
ie

ld
 D

a
ta

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

f 
A

ri
zo

n
a

2
1
6
3
6
 N

. 
D

ie
tz

 D
r.

M
a
ri
co

p
a
, 

A
Z

 8
5
1
3
8

5
2
0
.3

1
6
.6

7
4
5

 E
a
st

b
o
u
n
d

S
ta

rt
0

1
1

1
6

2
1

2
6

3
1

3
6

4
1

4
6

5
1

5
6

6
1

6
6

7
1

 
A

ve
ra

g
e

8
5
th

T
im

e
1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
1

T
o
ta

l
(M

e
a
n
)

P
e
rc

e
n
t

6
/2

2
/1

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

*
*

0
1
:0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

*
*

0
2
:0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

4
1

4
1

0
3
:0

0
0

0
0

2
1

1
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

3
0

3
6

0
4
:0

0
0

0
1

1
0

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

2
7

3
2

0
5
:0

0
0

0
1

9
2

4
6

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
2
5

3
1

3
9

0
6
:0

0
0

0
3

1
0

1
0

1
3

1
0

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
5
0

3
1

3
8

0
7
:0

0
0

1
5

9
1
4

2
0

1
6

5
0

1
0

0
0

0
7
1

3
2

3
9

0
8
:0

0
0

1
1

1
3

8
2
5

2
8

5
2

0
0

0
0

0
8
3

3
3

3
9

0
9
:0

0
0

0
1

9
1
2

3
3

2
9

2
1

0
0

0
0

0
8
7

3
3

3
9

1
0
:0

0
0

0
3

1
4

7
2
9

2
4

5
2

0
0

0
0

0
8
4

3
3

3
9

1
1
:0

0
0

0
9

1
6

1
7

2
8

2
2

2
1

1
0

0
0

0
9
6

3
1

3
8

1
2
 P

M
0

0
4

1
3

1
1

2
1

1
9

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
7
4

3
2

3
9

1
3
:0

0
0

0
5

2
1

1
4

3
9

1
4

7
0

0
0

0
0

0
1
0
0

3
1

3
7

1
4
:0

0
0

0
2

1
1

7
2
2

2
4

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
6
9

3
3

3
9

1
5
:0

0
1

0
0

9
9

1
3

1
4

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
4
8

3
1

3
8

1
6
:0

0
0

0
3

1
2

5
1
5

1
8

1
2

0
0

0
0

0
5
6

3
2

3
9

1
7
:0

0
0

0
0

1
0

3
5

4
5

1
0

0
0

0
0

2
8

3
2

4
2

1
8
:0

0
0

0
2

5
5

5
8

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
2
8

3
2

3
9

1
9
:0

0
0

0
1

2
1

4
3

3
1

0
0

0
0

0
1
5

3
4

4
2

2
0
:0

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
6

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

3
5

3
9

2
1
:0

0
0

1
2

0
2

2
0

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

2
8

4
1

2
2
:0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

2
1

2
1

2
3
:0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

*
*

T
o
ta

l
1

3
4
4

1
6
7

1
2
8

2
8
2

2
4
7

5
9

1
0

2
0

0
0

0
9
4
3

 
 

P
e

rc
e
n
t

0
.1

%
0
.3

%
4
.7

%
1
7
.7

%
1
3
.6

%
2
9
.9

%
2
6
.2

%
6
.3

%
1
.1

%
0
.2

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
 

 
 

A
M

 P
e
a
k

 
0
7
:0

0
1
1
:0

0
1
1
:0

0
1
1

:0
0

0
9
:0

0
0
9
:0

0
0
7
:0

0
0
8
:0

0
0
7
:0

0
 

 
 

 
1
1
:0

0
 

 
V

o
l.

 
1

9
1
6

1
7

3
3

2
9

5
2

1
 

 
 

 
9
6

 
 

P
M

 P
e
a
k

1
5
:0

0
2
1
:0

0
1
3
:0

0
1
3
:0

0
1
3
:0

0
1
3
:0

0
1
4
:0

0
1
3
:0

0
1
6
:0

0
 

 
 

 
 

1
3
:0

0
 

 
V

o
l.

1
1

5
2
1

1
4

3
9

2
4

7
2

 
 

 
 

 
1
0
0

 
 

T
o
ta

l
1

3
4
4

1
6
7

1
2
8

2
8
2

2
4
7

5
9

1
0

2
0

0
0

0
9
4
3

 
 

P
e
rc

e
n
t

0
.1

%
0
.3

%
4
.7

%
1
7
.7

%
1
3
.6

%
2
9
.9

%
2
6
.2

%
6
.3

%
1
.1

%
0
.2

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
 

 
 

1
5
th

 P
e
rc

e
n
til

e
 :
 

2
3
 M

P
H

5
0
th

 P
e
rc

e
n
til

e
 :
 

3
3

 M
P

H
8
5
th

 P
e
rc

e
n
til

e
 :
 

3
9

 M
P

H
9
5
th

 P
e
rc

e
n
til

e
 :
 

4
2

 M
P

H
 

 
S

ta
tis

tic
s

1
0
  
M

P
H

 P
a
ce

 S
p
e
e
d
 :
 

3
1
-4

0
  

M
P

H
N

u
m

b
e
r 

in
 P

a
ce

 :
 

5
2
9

P
e
rc

e
n
t 
in

 P
a
ce

 :
 

5
6
.1

%
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
V

e
h
ic

le
s 

>
 3

0
  
M

P
H

 :
 

6
0
0

P
e
rc

e
n
t 
o
f 
V

e
h
ic

le
s 

>
 3

0
  
M

P
H

 :
 

6
3
.6

%
M

e
a
n
 S

p
e
e
d
(A

ve
ra

g
e
) 

: 
3
2

 M
P

H



P
a

g
e

 2
     

 
S

it
e

 C
o

d
e

: 
1

6
-1

2
3

2
-0

0
1

S
ta

ti
o

n
 I

D
: 

W
e

d
 0

6
/2

2
/2

0
1

6
V

is
to

s
o

 H
ig

h
la

n
d

s
 D

r.
 b

tw
n

. 
H

id
d

e
n

S
p

ri
n

g
s
 D

r.
 &

 V
is

to
s
o

 R
e

s
o

rt
s
 C

a
s
it
a

s
 D

r
L

a
ti
tu

d
e

: 
0

' 0
.0

0
0

 U
n

d
e

fi
n

e
d

F
ie

ld
 D

a
ta

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

f 
A

ri
zo

n
a

2
1
6
3
6
 N

. 
D

ie
tz

 D
r.

M
a
ri
co

p
a
, 

A
Z

 8
5
1
3
8

5
2
0
.3

1
6
.6

7
4
5

 W
e
st

b
o
u
n
d

S
ta

rt
0

1
1

1
6

2
1

2
6

3
1

3
6

4
1

4
6

5
1

5
6

6
1

6
6

7
1

 
A

ve
ra

g
e

8
5
th

T
im

e
1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
1

T
o
ta

l
(M

e
a
n
)

P
e
rc

e
n
t

6
/2

2
/1

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

*
*

0
1
:0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

3
6

3
6

0
2
:0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

*
*

0
3
:0

0
0

0
0

0
2

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

3
1

3
2

0
4
:0

0
0

0
0

1
7

4
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1
4

3
0

3
4

0
5
:0

0
0

2
2

4
2
2

1
8

9
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
7

3
0

3
5

0
6
:0

0
0

2
3

1
2
0

2
5

1
3

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
6
6

3
1

3
7

0
7
:0

0
0

3
1

2
1
2

2
7

2
0

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
6
7

3
2

3
8

0
8
:0

0
0

3
0

5
1
9

3
0

2
1

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
8
2

3
2

3
8

0
9
:0

0
0

1
0

2
1
1

2
4

2
2

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
6
2

3
3

3
9

1
0
:0

0
0

0
3

3
9

3
9

2
6

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
8
4

3
4

3
9

1
1
:0

0
0

0
1

3
1
6

4
2

2
0

7
3

0
0

0
0

0
9
2

3
4

3
9

1
2
 P

M
0

0
0

5
1
1

3
5

2
0

5
0

0
0

0
0

0
7
6

3
4

3
9

1
3
:0

0
0

0
0

2
9

1
8

1
5

4
1

0
0

0
0

0
4
9

3
4

4
0

1
4
:0

0
0

0
0

0
7

1
7

1
7

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
4
2

3
4

3
9

1
5
:0

0
0

0
0

2
8

2
1

1
6

3
1

0
0

0
0

0
5
1

3
4

3
9

1
6
:0

0
0

0
0

0
5

1
7

1
8

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
4
3

3
5

3
9

1
7
:0

0
0

0
0

3
8

1
9

1
5

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
4
9

3
4

3
9

1
8
:0

0
0

0
0

1
9

1
0

2
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
3

3
1

3
5

1
9
:0

0
0

0
0

2
6

6
5

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
2
0

3
2

3
8

2
0
:0

0
0

0
0

0
6

1
1

7
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
5

3
3

3
7

2
1
:0

0
0

1
0

1
0

3
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

2
9

3
6

2
2
:0

0
0

0
0

0
0

3
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

3
4

3
3

2
3
:0

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

3
2

3
2

T
o
ta

l
0

1
2

1
0

3
7

1
8
7

3
7
4

2
5
1

4
5

5
0

0
0

0
0

9
2
1

 
 

P
e

rc
e
n
t

0
.0

%
1
.3

%
1
.1

%
4
.0

%
2
0
.3

%
4
0
.6

%
2
7
.3

%
4
.9

%
0
.5

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
 

 
 

A
M

 P
e
a
k

 
0
7
:0

0
0
6
:0

0
0
8
:0

0
0
5

:0
0

1
1
:0

0
1
0
:0

0
1
1
:0

0
1
1
:0

0
 

 
 

 
 

1
1
:0

0
 

 
V

o
l.

 
3

3
5

2
2

4
2

2
6

7
3

 
 

 
 

 
9
2

 
 

P
M

 P
e
a
k

 
2
1
:0

0
 

1
2
:0

0
1
2
:0

0
1
2
:0

0
1
2
:0

0
1
2
:0

0
1
3
:0

0
 

 
 

 
 

1
2
:0

0
 

 
V

o
l.

 
1

 
5

1
1

3
5

2
0

5
1

 
 

 
 

 
7
6

 
 

T
o
ta

l
0

1
2

1
0

3
7

1
8
7

3
7
4

2
5
1

4
5

5
0

0
0

0
0

9
2
1

 
 

P
e
rc

e
n
t

0
.0

%
1
.3

%
1
.1

%
4
.0

%
2
0

.3
%

4
0
.6

%
2
7
.3

%
4
.9

%
0
.5

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
 

 
 

1
5
th

 P
e
rc

e
n
til

e
 :
 

2
8
 M

P
H

5
0
th

 P
e
rc

e
n
til

e
 :
 

3
3

 M
P

H
8
5
th

 P
e
rc

e
n
til

e
 :
 

3
9

 M
P

H
9
5
th

 P
e
rc

e
n
til

e
 :
 

4
1

 M
P

H
 

 
S

ta
tis

tic
s

1
0
  
M

P
H

 P
a
ce

 S
p
e
e
d
 :
 

3
1
-4

0
  

M
P

H
N

u
m

b
e
r 

in
 P

a
ce

 :
 

6
2
5

P
e
rc

e
n
t 
in

 P
a
ce

 :
 

6
7
.9

%
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
V

e
h
ic

le
s 

>
 3

0
  
M

P
H

 :
 

6
7
5

P
e
rc

e
n
t 
o
f 
V

e
h
ic

le
s 

>
 3

0
  
M

P
H

 :
 

7
3
.3

%
M

e
a
n
 S

p
e
e
d
(A

ve
ra

g
e
) 

: 
3
3

 M
P

H



P
a

g
e

 3
     

 
S

it
e

 C
o

d
e

: 
1

6
-1

2
3

2
-0

0
1

S
ta

ti
o

n
 I

D
: 

W
e

d
 0

6
/2

2
/2

0
1

6
V

is
to

s
o

 H
ig

h
la

n
d

s
 D

r.
 b

tw
n

. 
H

id
d

e
n

S
p

ri
n

g
s
 D

r.
 &

 V
is

to
s
o

 R
e

s
o

rt
s
 C

a
s
it
a

s
 D

r
L

a
ti
tu

d
e

: 
0

' 0
.0

0
0

 U
n

d
e

fi
n

e
d

F
ie

ld
 D

a
ta

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

f 
A

ri
zo

n
a

2
1
6
3
6
 N

. 
D

ie
tz

 D
r.

M
a
ri
co

p
a
, 

A
Z

 8
5
1
3
8

5
2
0
.3

1
6
.6

7
4
5

 E
a
st

b
o
u
n
d
, 
W

e
st

b
o
u
n
d

S
ta

rt
0

1
1

1
6

2
1

2
6

3
1

3
6

4
1

4
6

5
1

5
6

6
1

6
6

7
1

 
A

ve
ra

g
e

8
5
th

T
im

e
1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
1

T
o
ta

l
(M

e
a
n
)

P
e
rc

e
n
t

6
/2

2
/1

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

*
*

0
1
:0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

3
6

3
6

0
2
:0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

4
1

4
1

0
3
:0

0
0

0
0

2
3

4
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1
1

3
1

3
4

0
4
:0

0
0

0
1

2
7

7
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1
9

3
0

3
4

0
5
:0

0
0

2
3

1
3

2
4

2
2

1
5

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
8
2

3
0

3
7

0
6
:0

0
0

2
6

1
1

3
0

3
8

2
3

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
1
1
6

3
1

3
8

0
7
:0

0
0

4
6

1
1

2
6

4
7

3
6

7
0

1
0

0
0

0
1
3
8

3
2

3
9

0
8
:0

0
0

4
1

1
8

2
7

5
5

4
9

9
2

0
0

0
0

0
1
6
5

3
3

3
9

0
9
:0

0
0

1
1

1
1

2
3

5
7

5
1

4
1

0
0

0
0

0
1
4
9

3
3

3
9

1
0
:0

0
0

0
6

1
7

1
6

6
8

5
0

9
2

0
0

0
0

0
1
6
8

3
3

3
9

1
1
:0

0
0

0
1
0

1
9

3
3

7
0

4
2

9
4

1
0

0
0

0
1
8
8

3
2

3
9

1
2
 P

M
0

0
4

1
8

2
2

5
6

3
9

1
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
5
0

3
3

3
9

1
3
:0

0
0

0
5

2
3

2
3

5
7

2
9

1
1

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
4
9

3
2

3
9

1
4
:0

0
0

0
2

1
1

1
4

3
9

4
1

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
1
1
1

3
3

3
9

1
5
:0

0
1

0
0

1
1

1
7

3
4

3
0

5
1

0
0

0
0

0
9
9

3
3

3
9

1
6
:0

0
0

0
3

1
2

1
0

3
2

3
6

4
2

0
0

0
0

0
9
9

3
3

3
9

1
7
:0

0
0

0
0

1
3

1
1

2
4

1
9

9
1

0
0

0
0

0
7
7

3
3

4
0

1
8
:0

0
0

0
2

6
1
4

1
5

1
0

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
5
1

3
2

3
8

1
9
:0

0
0

0
1

4
7

1
0

8
4

1
0

0
0

0
0

3
5

3
3

4
0

2
0
:0

0
0

0
1

0
6

1
1

1
3

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
3
2

3
4

3
8

2
1
:0

0
0

2
2

1
2

5
2

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
1
6

3
0

4
0

2
2
:0

0
0

0
0

1
0

3
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

3
2

3
3

2
3
:0

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

3
2

3
2

T
o
ta

l
1

1
5

5
4

2
0
4

3
1
5

6
5
6

4
9
8

1
0
4

1
5

2
0

0
0

0
1
8
6
4

 
 

P
e

rc
e
n
t

0
.1

%
0
.8

%
2
.9

%
1
0
.9

%
1
6
.9

%
3
5
.2

%
2
6
.7

%
5
.6

%
0
.8

%
0
.1

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
 

 
 

A
M

 P
e
a
k

 
0
7
:0

0
1
1
:0

0
1
1
:0

0
1
1

:0
0

1
1
:0

0
0
9
:0

0
0
8
:0

0
1
1
:0

0
0
7
:0

0
 

 
 

 
1
1
:0

0
 

 
V

o
l.

 
4

1
0

1
9

3
3

7
0

5
1

9
4

1
 

 
 

 
1
8
8

 
 

P
M

 P
e
a
k

1
5
:0

0
2
1
:0

0
1
3
:0

0
1
3
:0

0
1
3
:0

0
1
3
:0

0
1
4
:0

0
1
2
:0

0
1
6
:0

0
 

 
 

 
 

1
2
:0

0
 

 
V

o
l.

1
2

5
2
3

2
3

5
7

4
1

1
1

2
 

 
 

 
 

1
5
0

 
 

T
o
ta

l
1

1
5

5
4

2
0
4

3
1
5

6
5
6

4
9
8

1
0
4

1
5

2
0

0
0

0
1
8
6
4

 
 

P
e
rc

e
n
t

0
.1

%
0
.8

%
2
.9

%
1
0
.9

%
1
6
.9

%
3
5
.2

%
2
6
.7

%
5
.6

%
0
.8

%
0
.1

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
 

 
 

1
5
th

 P
e
rc

e
n
til

e
 :
 

2
6
 M

P
H

5
0
th

 P
e
rc

e
n
til

e
 :
 

3
3

 M
P

H
8
5
th

 P
e
rc

e
n
til

e
 :
 

3
9

 M
P

H
9
5
th

 P
e
rc

e
n
til

e
 :
 

4
2

 M
P

H
 

 
S

ta
tis

tic
s

1
0
  
M

P
H

 P
a
ce

 S
p
e
e
d
 :
 

3
1
-4

0
  

M
P

H
N

u
m

b
e
r 

in
 P

a
ce

 :
 

1
1
5
4

P
e
rc

e
n
t 
in

 P
a
ce

 :
 

6
1
.9

%
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
V

e
h
ic

le
s 

>
 3

0
  
M

P
H

 :
 

1
2
7
5

P
e
rc

e
n
t 
o
f 
V

e
h
ic

le
s 

>
 3

0
  
M

P
H

 :
 

6
8
.4

%
M

e
a
n
 S

p
e
e
d
(A

ve
ra

g
e
) 

: 
3
2

 M
P

H



ALL-WAY STOP ANALYSIS
LOCATION: Hidden Springs Drive/Vistoso Highlands Drive Existing
COUNT DATE: 22-Jun-16

       INT
NB SB TOTAL EB WB TOTAL TOTAL Warrant #3 rank

12 - 1 AM 3 3 0 0 0 3 No 22
1 - 2 AM 1 1 0 1 1 2 No 23
2 - 3 AM 0 0 1 0 1 1 No 24
3 - 4 AM 2 2 6 5 11 13 No 20
4 - 5 AM 10 10 5 14 19 29 No 17
5 - 6 AM 47 47 25 57 82 129 No 13
6 - 7 AM 51 51 50 66 116 167 No 8
7 - 8 AM 79 79 71 67 138 217 No 6
8 - 9 AM 84 84 83 82 165 249 No 2
9 - 10 AM 70 70 87 62 149 219 No 5
10 - 11 AM 67 67 84 84 168 235 No 3
11 AM - 12 PM 91 91 96 92 188 279 No 1
12 - 1 PM 69 69 74 76 150 219 No 5
1 - 2 PM 62 62 100 49 149 211 No 7
2 - 3 PM 52 52 69 42 111 163 No 9
3 - 4 PM 54 54 48 51 99 153 No 10
4 - 5 PM 52 52 56 43 99 151 No 11
5 - 6 PM 52 52 28 49 77 129 No 13
6 - 7 PM 34 34 28 23 51 85 No 14
7 - 8 PM 35 35 15 20 35 70 No 15
8 - 9 PM 19 19 7 25 32 51 No 16
9 - 10 PM 12 12 9 7 16 28 No 18
10 - 11 PM 11 11 1 4 5 16 No 19
11 - 12 PM 4 4 0 2 2 6 No 21

TOTALS 961 0 961 943 921 1864 2825

WARRANT LEVEL (VEHICLES PER HOUR) = 200 300
AVERAGE 8 HIGHEST HOURS                           = 72 153

MINOR/MAJOR RATIO                                             = 0.52

WARRANT MET FOR 0 OF EIGHT REQUIRED HOURS

Hidden Springs Drive (Minor) Vistoso Highlands Drive (Major)



ALL-WAY STOP ANALYSIS
LOCATION: Hidden Springs Drive/Vistoso Highlands Drive 2017 Without
COUNT DATE: 22-Jun-16

Growth Rate 1.03        INT
NB SB TOTAL EB WB TOTAL TOTAL Warrant #3 rank

12 - 1 AM 4 4 0 0 0 4 No 23
1 - 2 AM 2 2 0 2 2 4 No 23
2 - 3 AM 0 0 2 0 2 2 No 24
3 - 4 AM 3 3 7 6 13 16 No 20
4 - 5 AM 11 11 6 15 21 32 No 17
5 - 6 AM 49 49 26 59 85 134 No 13
6 - 7 AM 53 53 52 68 120 173 No 8
7 - 8 AM 82 82 74 70 144 226 No 6
8 - 9 AM 87 87 86 85 171 258 No 2
9 - 10 AM 73 73 90 64 154 227 No 5
10 - 11 AM 70 70 87 87 174 244 No 3
11 AM - 12 PM 94 94 99 95 194 288 No 1
12 - 1 PM 72 72 77 79 156 228 No 4
1 - 2 PM 64 64 103 51 154 218 No 7
2 - 3 PM 54 54 72 44 116 170 No 9
3 - 4 PM 56 56 50 53 103 159 No 10
4 - 5 PM 54 54 58 45 103 157 No 11
5 - 6 PM 54 54 29 51 80 134 No 13
6 - 7 PM 36 36 29 24 53 89 No 14
7 - 8 PM 37 37 16 21 37 74 No 15
8 - 9 PM 20 20 8 26 34 54 No 16
9 - 10 PM 13 13 10 8 18 31 No 18
10 - 11 PM 12 12 2 5 7 19 No 19
11 - 12 PM 5 5 0 3 3 8 No 21

TOTALS 1005 0 1005 983 961 1944 2949

WARRANT LEVEL (VEHICLES PER HOUR) = 200 300
AVERAGE 8 HIGHEST HOURS                           = 74 158

MINOR/MAJOR RATIO                                             = 0.52

WARRANT MET FOR 0 OF EIGHT REQUIRED HOURS

Hidden Springs Drive (Minor) Vistoso Highlands Drive (Major)



ALL-WAY STOP ANALYSIS
LOCATION: Hidden Springs Drive/Vistoso Highlands Drive 2017 With
COUNT DATE: 22-Jun-16

Growth Rate 1.03        INT
NB SB TOTAL EB WB TOTAL TOTAL Warrant #3 rank

12 - 1 AM 4 1 5 1 1 2 7 No 22
1 - 2 AM 2 0 2 0 2 2 4 No 23
2 - 3 AM 0 0 0 2 0 2 2 No 24
3 - 4 AM 3 0 3 7 6 13 16 No 20
4 - 5 AM 11 1 12 7 16 23 35 No 18
5 - 6 AM 49 5 54 31 64 95 149 No 13
6 - 7 AM 53 5 58 57 73 130 188 No 8
7 - 8 AM 82 8 90 82 78 160 250 No 4
8 - 9 AM 87 8 95 94 93 187 282 No 2
9 - 10 AM 73 7 80 97 71 168 248 No 6
10 - 11 AM 70 7 77 94 94 188 265 No 3
11 AM - 12 PM 94 9 103 108 104 212 315 No 1
12 - 1 PM 72 7 79 84 86 170 249 No 5
1 - 2 PM 64 6 70 109 57 166 236 No 7
2 - 3 PM 54 5 59 77 49 126 185 No 9
3 - 4 PM 56 5 61 55 58 113 174 No 10
4 - 5 PM 54 5 59 63 50 113 172 No 11
5 - 6 PM 54 5 59 34 56 90 149 No 13
6 - 7 PM 36 3 39 32 27 59 98 No 14
7 - 8 PM 37 4 41 20 25 45 86 No 15
8 - 9 PM 20 2 22 10 28 38 60 No 16
9 - 10 PM 13 2 15 12 10 22 37 No 17
10 - 11 PM 12 1 13 3 6 9 22 No 19
11 - 12 PM 5 0 5 0 3 3 8 No 21

0
TOTALS 1005 96 1101 1079 1057 2136 3237

WARRANT LEVEL (VEHICLES PER HOUR) = 200 300
AVERAGE 8 HIGHEST HOURS                           = 82 173

MINOR/MAJOR RATIO                                             = 0.52

WARRANT MET FOR 0 OF EIGHT REQUIRED HOURS

Hidden Springs Drive (Minor) Vistoso Highlands Drive (Major)



B
 
 

  Part III – Appendices 

 Capella Planned Area Development 
WLB No. 110028-A-003 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix B: Archaeological Report 
 



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 

1013 E. UNIVERSITY BLVD. 
TUCSON, AZ 85721 

ARCHAEOLOGICAL SUMMARY LETTER 
*This report documents the results of an archaeological site-records check. 

It does not constitute a cultural resources clearance. 
Date:  5/26/2016 Requester Name:  Clay Goodwin 
Company:  The WLB Group, Inc. Address:  4444 E. Broadway Blvd., Tucson, AZ 85711 
Phone:  520-881-7480 Email:  cgoodwin@wlbgroup.com 
Legal Description:  T11S, R13E, S24 Project Area Location:  Parcel 219-20-004M, 219-20-004L 
Project Name / Number:  Rancho Vistoso – 10J 
Project Description:  Rezoning from C-1 to MDR to allow for single-family residential development 

Search Results:   

According to a search of the archaeological records retained at the Arizona State Museum (ASM), nine survey projects have 
been conducted within a one-mile radius of the project area between 1978 and 2015. Previous survey work was conducted 
primarily in support of residential development; and archaeological research; and the installation of water reservoir and 
transmission lines. The project area was surveyed in 1986 as part of the “Rancho Vistoso Survey” (ASM Accession No. 
1986-220; Craig and Wallace 1987).  

The surrounding area is dense with archaeological sites. Forty-four archaeological sites have been identified within a 1-mile 
radius of the project area. One site, AZ BB:9:177(ASM), is crossed by the project area. This site was recorded in 1986 
(Craig and Wallace 1987). A second site, AZ BB:9:87(ASM), was identified approximately 60 yards east of the project area. 
This site was identified in 1978 and has been revisited several times since (Craig and Wallace 1987; Hewitt 1978; Wegener 
2005). Excavations were conducted at this site in 1998 (Wellman 1999).  

Sites in Project Area:   

One site has been identified within the project area (AZ BB:9:177[ASM]) and another has been identified approximately 60 
yards outside the project area boundary (AZ BB:9:87[ASM]). 

Recommendations:   

1. Although the entire project area has been previously surveyed, the work was conducted 30 years ago. It is standard 
archaeological practice for a property to be re-surveyed if the previous survey was conducted 10 or more years ago. Due to 
the date of the previous archaeological survey and the presence of archaeological sites within the project area and its 
immediate vicinity, the ASM recommends, but it is not required by ASM, that a qualified archaeological contractor be 
consulted before any ground disturbance begins. A list of archaeological contractors is available on the ASM website at:  
http://www.statemuseum.arizona.edu/crservices/permits/index.shtml. 

2. Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes §41-865 et seq., if any human remains or funerary objects are discovered during 
your project work, all work will stop within the area of the remains and Dr. Todd Pitezel, ASM assistant curator of 
archaeology, will be contacted immediately at (520) 621-4795. 

3. City, county, or municipal governments may have requirements, therefore ASM recommends that the relevant 
jurisdiction(s) be consulted.  

If you have any questions about the results of this records search, please contact me. 

Sincerely, 

   
Shannon D. Twilling, M.A. 

Research Specialist 
Archaeological Permits Office 
Arizona State Museum  
(520) 621-2096 
twilling@email.arizona.edu 
 



Page 2 of 3 

 

References:   

Craig, Douglas B. and Henry D. Wallace 
  1987 Prehistoric Settlement in the Cañada del Oro Valley, Arizona : The Rancho Vistoso Survey Project. 
 Anthropological paper #8. Institute for American Research, Tucson. 
 
Hewitt, James M. 
  1978 Tortolita Mountains Archaeological Project: Field Report, 1978. Pima Community College, Tucson. 
 
Wellman, Kevin, editor 
  1987 The Tortolita Phase in the Tortolita Foothills : Investigations at the Triangle Road Site (AZ BB:9:87 (ASM)), Oro 
 Valley, Arizona. Report No. 97-161. SWCA, Tucson. 
 
Wegener, Robert M.  
  2005 Class III Cultural Resources Surveys of a Proposed Effluent Water Pipeline in the Canada del Oro Valley, Pima 
 County, Arizona. Report No. 03-48. Statistical Research, Inc., Tucson. 
 
 



N. R
anc

ho
Visto

so
Bl.

W.V istoso Highlands Dr.

N. Hidd enSpringsDr.

W.TortolitaMount ain Cl.

Page 3 of 3

Company: 
The WLB Group, Inc.

Project: 
Rancho Vistoso - 10J

Location:
Parcels #219-20-004M, 219-20-004L

T11S, R13E, S24

Location of proposed project area.

Proposed Project Area

0 400 800200
Feet

Ü
Generated: 5/26/2016
Imagery Source: 2010 National Agriculture Imagery Program



 
 
 
 
 
 

Ran
ch

o
Vistoso

Vistoso Highlands

LOCATION

 

 

LOCATION MAP
VISTOSO HIGHLANDS (OV1601747)

                                                                                               Attachment 3





 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

ZONING MAP
VISTOSO HIGHLANDS (OV1601747)

                                                                                               Attachment 5



Attachment 6 
General Plan Analysis 

 
2. General Plan Analysis  

 
PAD Amendments are reviewed for conformance with the Vision, Goals and Policies of the General 
Plan. To ensure conformance, the proposed PAD Amendment has been evaluated using the former 
and current General Plans.  
 

A.  General Plan Map 
 
The proposed density of 2.19 homes per acre is below the density maximum of 5.0 homes per 
acre under the accompanying Major General Plan Amendment application. 
  

B.  Vision Statement (2005 General Plan) 
 
To be a well planned community that uses its resources to balance the needs of today against 
the potential impacts to future generations. Oro Valley’s lifestyle is defined by the highest 
standard of environmental integrity, education, infrastructure, services, and public safety. It is a 
community of people working together to create the Town’s future with a government that is 
responsive to residents and ensures the long-term financial stability of the Town. 

 
The vision statement from the General Plan emphasizes the need to carefully balance land use 
decisions which respond to current conditions, against the long term impact to the community. 
Although the proposed subdivision is compatible with the surrounding area, careful 
consideration should be given to the proposed lower density (2.19 homes per acre) which can 
reduce the viability of commercial development in the area.  

 
C.  Goals and Policies (2005 General Plan) 

 
The applicant has provided analysis of the amendments conformance with adopted General 
Plan policies, which is provided in Attachment 2. Staff has evaluated the amendment against all 
General Plan policies, with notable policies identified below. 
  
Policy 1.4.8  The Town shall continue to require adequate buffering of commercial and   

employment uses from adjacent neighborhoods, with special consideration being 
given to placing office or other less intensive uses adjacent to residential areas. 

 
The applicant’s request would provide a compatible land use with the adjacent residential area. 
Impacts of the proposed use can be mitigated through the incorporation of buffer yards, 
landscaped areas and architectural features similar to the adjoining properties. 
 
Policy 2.1.1  The Town shall continue to promote architectural themes and project site   
  design that blends the built environment with natural surroundings. 
 
Policy 7.1 To promote the development of sound, high quality neighborhoods that   
  provide community amenities in an integrated manner. 
 
The proposed subdivision will contain similar design features as surrounding single-family 
neighborhoods.  
 
 
 



Goal 7.2  To encourage and maintain a range of housing opportunities. 
 

Policy 7.2.1  The Town shall encourage the development of a variety of types of homes to 
accommodate the varied needs of residents, including single-family attached and 
detached, townhomes, small apartments (3-4 units), condominiums, active 
retirement communities and congregate housing… 

 
Policy 7.2.2 The Town shall encourage a variety of residential building types consistent with 

the General Plan and in accordance with the Town’s zoning and subdivision 
design standards 

 
This goal and these policies support the development of a diverse range of housing 
opportunities. Additional medium density homes do not advance this goal; rather add to the lack 
of diversity in housing within this area. An alternative to the applicant’s request may be 
consideration of a land use designation which allows a variety in housing (e.g., townhomes, 
casitas, and condominiums).  
 
Goal 1.1  To preserve Oro Valley’s natural Sonoran Desert environment and the scenic 

resources that are an important part of the community’s quality of life. 
 
The proposed residential development conforms with the Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
Ordinance related to open space, wash preservation and native plant species which exist on the 
property. 
 

D.  Current Vision Statement (Your Voice Our Future General Plan) 
 

Oro Valley strives to be a well-managed community that provides all residents with opportunities 
for quality living. Oro Valley will keep its friendly, neighborly character, while increasing services, 
employment and recreation. The Town’s lifestyle continues to be defined by a strong sense of 
community, a high regard for public safety and an extraordinary natural environment and scenic 
views. 

 
The proposed vision statement emphasizes the need to be a well-managed community while 
promoting the existing quality of life. The proposed amendment is consistent with the vision 
statement because the proposal will not alter the existing character and/or land use patterns of 
the surrounding area.   
 

E. Current Goals and Policies (Your Voice Our Future General Plan) 
 

Goal A  The people of Oro Valley strive for long-term financial and economic stability and 
sustainability. 

 
The property should be developed at a higher density to support the existing commercial 
properties in and around Rancho Vistoso.   
   
Policy LU.5 Provide diverse land uses that meet the Town’s overall needs and effectively 

transition in scale and density adjacent to neighborhoods. 
 
The proposed amendment will provide a compatible land use transition between the existing 
golf course and the surrounding single-family homes and condominiums to the south and east.    



Attachment 6 
General Plan Analysis 

 
2. General Plan Analysis  

 
PAD Amendments are reviewed for conformance with the Vision, Goals and Policies of the General 
Plan. To ensure conformance, the proposed PAD Amendment has been evaluated using the former 
and current General Plans.  
 

A.  General Plan Map 
 
The proposed density of 2.19 homes per acre is below the density maximum of 5.0 homes per 
acre under the accompanying Major General Plan Amendment application. 
  

B.  Vision Statement (2005 General Plan) 
 
To be a well planned community that uses its resources to balance the needs of today against 
the potential impacts to future generations. Oro Valley’s lifestyle is defined by the highest 
standard of environmental integrity, education, infrastructure, services, and public safety. It is a 
community of people working together to create the Town’s future with a government that is 
responsive to residents and ensures the long-term financial stability of the Town. 

 
The vision statement from the General Plan emphasizes the need to carefully balance land use 
decisions which respond to current conditions, against the long term impact to the community. 
Although the proposed subdivision is compatible with the surrounding area, careful 
consideration should be given to the proposed lower density (2.19 homes per acre) which can 
reduce the viability of commercial development in the area.  

 
C.  Goals and Policies (2005 General Plan) 

 
The applicant has provided analysis of the amendments conformance with adopted General 
Plan policies, which is provided in Attachment 2. Staff has evaluated the amendment against all 
General Plan policies, with notable policies identified below. 
  
Policy 1.4.8  The Town shall continue to require adequate buffering of commercial and   

employment uses from adjacent neighborhoods, with special consideration being 
given to placing office or other less intensive uses adjacent to residential areas. 

 
The applicant’s request would provide a compatible land use with the adjacent residential area. 
Impacts of the proposed use can be mitigated through the incorporation of buffer yards, 
landscaped areas and architectural features similar to the adjoining properties. 
 
Policy 2.1.1  The Town shall continue to promote architectural themes and project site   
  design that blends the built environment with natural surroundings. 
 
Policy 7.1 To promote the development of sound, high quality neighborhoods that   
  provide community amenities in an integrated manner. 
 
The proposed subdivision will contain similar design features as surrounding single-family 
neighborhoods.  
 
 
 



Goal 7.2  To encourage and maintain a range of housing opportunities. 
 

Policy 7.2.1  The Town shall encourage the development of a variety of types of homes to 
accommodate the varied needs of residents, including single-family attached and 
detached, townhomes, small apartments (3-4 units), condominiums, active 
retirement communities and congregate housing… 

 
Policy 7.2.2 The Town shall encourage a variety of residential building types consistent with 

the General Plan and in accordance with the Town’s zoning and subdivision 
design standards 

 
This goal and these policies support the development of a diverse range of housing 
opportunities. Additional medium density homes do not advance this goal; rather add to the lack 
of diversity in housing within this area. An alternative to the applicant’s request may be 
consideration of a land use designation which allows a variety in housing (e.g., townhomes, 
casitas, and condominiums).  
 
Goal 1.1  To preserve Oro Valley’s natural Sonoran Desert environment and the scenic 

resources that are an important part of the community’s quality of life. 
 
The proposed residential development conforms with the Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
Ordinance related to open space, wash preservation and native plant species which exist on the 
property. 
 

D.  Current Vision Statement (Your Voice Our Future General Plan) 
 

Oro Valley strives to be a well-managed community that provides all residents with opportunities 
for quality living. Oro Valley will keep its friendly, neighborly character, while increasing services, 
employment and recreation. The Town’s lifestyle continues to be defined by a strong sense of 
community, a high regard for public safety and an extraordinary natural environment and scenic 
views. 

 
The proposed vision statement emphasizes the need to be a well-managed community while 
promoting the existing quality of life. The proposed amendment is consistent with the vision 
statement because the proposal will not alter the existing character and/or land use patterns of 
the surrounding area.   
 

E. Current Goals and Policies (Your Voice Our Future General Plan) 
 

Goal A  The people of Oro Valley strive for long-term financial and economic stability and 
sustainability. 

 
The property should be developed at a higher density to support the existing commercial 
properties in and around Rancho Vistoso.   
   
Policy LU.5 Provide diverse land uses that meet the Town’s overall needs and effectively 

transition in scale and density adjacent to neighborhoods. 
 
The proposed amendment will provide a compatible land use transition between the existing 
golf course and the surrounding single-family homes and condominiums to the south and east.    



Attachment 7



Attachment 7



Attachment 7



Attachment 7



Attachment 7



Attachment 7



Attachment 7



Attachment 7



Attachment 7



August 23, 2016 Planning & Zoning Commission Special Session Page 1 of 4 
 

MINUTES  
ORO VALLEY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

SPECIAL SESSION  
August 23, 2016  

CHURCH OF THE NAZARENE 
500 W CALLE CONCORDIA, ORO VALLEY, AZ 85704  

 
STUDY SESSION AT OR AFTER 6:00 PM  
 
CALL OR ORDER  
 
Chairman Leedy called the August 20, 2016, Planning and Zoning Commission Special 
Session meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
ROLL CALL  
 
PRESENT:  Bill Leedy, Chair  

Charlie Hurt, Vice Chair  
Bob Swope, Commissioner  
Melanie Barrett, Commissioner  
Tom Gribb, Commissioner  
Tom Drzazgowski, Commissioner  

 
EXCUSED:  Greg Hitt, Commissioner  
   
ALSO PRESENT:   
 
Joe Andrews, Chief Civil Deputy Attorney 
Council Member Joe Hornat 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Chair Leedy led the audience and the Commission in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
SPECIAL SESSION AGENDA  
 
1. PUBLIC HEARING:  REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF A MAJOR GENERAL 

PLAN AMENDMENT AND PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT AMENDMENT 
FOR A DEVELOPMENT KNOWN AS VISTOSO HIGHLANDS REGARDING A 
PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF RANCHO 
VISTOSO BOULEVARD AND VISTOSO HIGHLANDS DRIVE 
 
This is the first of two public hearings scheduled for this agenda item.  A 
formal vote will not be taken until the second public hearing on September 
6, 2016 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204461
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204462
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204463
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204464
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204464
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204464
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204464
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204464
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204464
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204464
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204464
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204464


August 23, 2016 Planning & Zoning Commission Special Session Page 2 of 4 
 

 
A. MAJOR GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT FROM NEIGHBORHOOD 

COMMERCIAL/OFFICE (NC/O) TO MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (2.1 
- 5.0 DU/AC), OV1601747 

 
Rosevelt Arellano, Senior Planner, provided a presentation on the Major General Plan 
Amendment that included the following: 
 
- Contents of the property 
- Amendment Criteria 
- Changes in the Community 
- Residential Trends 
- Commercial Trends 
- Compatibility 
 
Rosevelt Arellano, Senior Planner, provided a presentation on the Planned Area 
Development that included the following: 
 
- Subdivision Design 
- Compatibility 
- Neighborhood Meeting Concerns 
- Supported by the current market 
 
Paul Oland, WLB Group, representing the applicant, provided a presentation that 
included the following: 
 
- The Conditions have changed 
- Undesirable Commercial Land 
- Compatibility  
- Market Demand 
 
Chair Leedy opened the public hearing. 
 
Ken Hustad, Non-resident Oro Valley resident, commented on the following: 
 
- In support of the applicant request 
- The conditions placed on project should be placed early in the process 
- Building height is an issue and should be compatible to the homes in the area and  
  should have the max height at 21 feet height 
 
Dick Serway, Oro Valley resident, commented on the following: 
 
- Numbers of houses being proposed 
- Height of the homes 
 
Chair Leedy closed the public hearing. 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204465
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204465
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204465


August 23, 2016 Planning & Zoning Commission Special Session Page 3 of 4 
 

 
Mr. Oland responded to the questions  
 
- The applicant is very comfortable with this site plan and the proposed 39 lots 
- The applicant is very comfortable with the conditions of approval regarding the set  
  backs and heights of the homes 
 
Key topics raised by the Commission: 
 
- Proposed plan be a gated community 
- Access point to the property from Hidden Springs Drive 
- Based on the current growth trends, are the remaining commercial properties in  
  Rancho Vistoso still viable 
 

B. PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT FOR A DEVEOLOPMENT FROM 
COMMERCIAL (C-1) TO MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (MDR) AND 
APPROVE A ESL FLEXIBLE DESIGN OPTION FOR MODIFIED REVIEW 
PROCESS, OV1601747 

 
 
2. PUBLIC HEARING: YOUR VOICE, OUR FUTURE GENERAL PLAN FINAL 

ADOPTION AND READINESS OF THE PLAN FOR THE PUBLIC VOTE 
 
This is the first of two public hearings scheduled for this agenda item.  A 
formal vote will not be taken until the second public hearing on September 
6, 2016 

 
Elisa Hamblin, Long Range Principal Planner, provided a presentation that included the 
following: 
 
- Plan of Action 
- The Public Participation Plan 
- Project Schedule 
- Contents of the Plan 
- Revisions included in the Final Plan 
 
Chair Leedy opened the public hearing. 
 
Bill Sellers, Oro Valley resident, commented on the following: 
 
- No mention in the document about broad band 
- Very poor planning approach on the future service of broad band 
- High capacity broad band should be referenced in the document  
- An expectation of constant upgrades in broad band is critical for the future 
 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204498
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204498
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204498
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204498
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204498
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204498


August 23, 2016 Planning & Zoning Commission Special Session Page 4 of 4 
 

Don Bristow, Oro Valley resident, comment on the following: 
  
- Concern on a Type I Major General Plan Amendment, new threshold is 40 acres is  
  such a big jump and should be reconsidered 
- Term "small town" to "neighborly" and "unique", does not measure up 
- Parks and recreation facilities and programs should be provided to all residents,  
  regardless of their ability to pay 
 
Diane Bristow, Oro Valley resident, commented on the following: 
 
- Low attendance of residents at the first public hearing 
 
Chair Leedy closed the public hearing. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Chair Hurt and seconded by Commissioner 
Swope to adjourn the Planning and Zoning Commission Special Session meeting at 
7:13 PM  
 
MOTION carried, 6-0.  
   
  
  
 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2516&meta_id=204511


September 6, 2016 Planning & Zoning Commission Page 1 of 5 
 

MINUTES  
ORO VALLEY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

REGULAR SESSION  
September 6, 2016  

ORO VALLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
11000 N. LA CAŇADA DRIVE  

   
REGULAR SESSION AT OR AFTER 6:00 PM  
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
Chairman Leedy called the September 6, 2016, Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
ROLL CALL  
 
PRESENT:  Bill Leedy, Chair  

Charlie Hurt, Vice Chair  
Bob Swope, Commissioner  
Melanie Barrett, Commissioner  
Tom Gribb, Commissioner  
Greg Hitt, Commissioner  

 
EXCUSED:  Tom Drzazgowski, Commissioner  
   
ALSO PRESENT:   
 
Joe Andrews, Chief Civil Deputy Attorney 
Council Member, Joe Hornat 
Vice Mayor, Lou Waters 
Council Member, Mary Snider 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Chair Leedy led the audience and the Commission in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
CALL TO AUDIENCE  
 
Jeff Jones, Oro Valley resident, commented on the following: 
 
- Use of commercial land in the Sun City area is not viable 
- Observation of commercial vacancies in the area 
 
COUNCIL LIAISON COMMENTS  
 



September 6, 2016 Planning & Zoning Commission Page 2 of 5 
 

Council member Hornat had no comment. 
 
REGULAR SESSION AGENDA  
 
1. REVIEW AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 2, 2016 REGULAR SESSION 

MEETING MINUTES. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Chair Hurt and seconded by Commissioner Hitt 
to approve the August 2, 2016 Regular Session Meeting Minutes.  
 
MOTION carried, 6-0.  
   
2. PUBLIC HEARING:  REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF A MAJOR GENERAL 

PLAN AMENDMENT AND PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT AMENDMENT 
FOR A DEVELOPMENT KNOWN AS VISTOSO HIGHLANDS ON A PROPERTY 
LOCATED ON THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF RANCHO VISTOSO 
BOULEVARD AND VISTOSO HIGHLANDS DRIVE 

 
A. MAJOR GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT FROM NEIGHBORHOOD 

COMMERCIAL/OFFICE (NC/O) TO MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (2.1 - 5.0 
DU/AC), OV1601094 

 
B. PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT FOR A DEVELOPMENT FROM 

COMMERCIAL (C-1) TO MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (MDR) AND 
CONSIDERATION OF AN ESL FLEXIBLE DESIGN OPTION FOR MODIFIED 
REVIEW PROCESS, OV1601747 

 
- Rosevelt Arellano, Senior Planner, provided a presentation on the following: 
 
- Issues raised at the last meeting 
- Commercial Viability 
- Building Height 
- Public Participation 
- Factors For and Against 
 
Paul Oland, WLB Group, representing the applicant, provided a presentation that 
included the following: 
 
- Lack of demand of commercial 
- Undesirable Commercial Land and Vacant Properties 
- Under development of residential property in the area and its impact on commercial  
  viability 
- Compatibility 
- Market Demand 
 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2521&meta_id=204914
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2521&meta_id=204914
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2521&meta_id=204914
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2521&meta_id=204914
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2521&meta_id=204914


September 6, 2016 Planning & Zoning Commission Page 3 of 5 
 

Key topics raised by the Commission: 
 
- Average height limit for the surrounding homes in Rancho Vistoso 
- Explanation of the Environmental Sensitive Lands flexible design options 
- Minor design changes to a Modified Review Process 
- What if the development never happens 
 
Chair Leedy opened the public hearing. 
 
No speaker request. 
 
Chair Leedy closed the public hearing. 
 
Questions raised by the Commission: 
 
- Previous 24 homes design raised by the resident 
- Applicant work with residents 
- Conditions of approval 
- Traffic numbers affected by the STEM school 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Chair Hurt and seconded by Commissioner 
Barrett to recommend approval of the Vistoso Highlands Major General Plan 
Amendment from Neighborhood Commercial/Office to Medium Density Residential (2.1 
- 5 du/ac), based on the finding that the request complies with the amendment criteria 
and the General Plan.  
 
MOTION carried, 6-0.  
   
MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Gribb and seconded by Vice Chair 
Hurt to recommend approval of the Vistoso Highlands PAD Amendment from 
Commercial (C-1) to Medium Density Residential (MDR), including the request for ESL's 
modified review process, based on the finding that the request complies with the 
Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development and the General Plan.  
 
Chair Leedy offered a friendly amendment to include, subject to the conditions in 
attachment 1.   
 
The friendly amendment was accepted by Commissioner Gribb and Vice Chair Hurt. 
 
MOTION carried, 6-0.  
   
3. PUBLIC HEARING:  YOUR VOICE, OUR FUTURE GENERAL PLAN FINAL 

ADOPTION AND READINESS OF THE PLAN FOR THE PUBLIC VOTE 

 
Elisa Hamblin, Long Range Principal Planner, provided a presentation that included the 
following: 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2521&meta_id=204940
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2521&meta_id=204940


September 6, 2016 Planning & Zoning Commission Page 4 of 5 
 

 
- Public Vote November 8 
- Project Overview 
- Project Phases 
- Visions of the Community 
- Executive Summary 
- Changes to the Final Plan 
 
Chair Leedy opened the public hearing. 
 
Shirl Lamonna, Oro Valley resident, commented on the following: 
 
- Impressed by the hard work done by staff 
- Disappointed with the change in the term "small town character" 
 
Diane Bristow, Oro Valley resident, commented on the following: 
 
- Found the changes made in the final draft 
- Strongly agrees that the Visions and Guiding Principles were formed out of extensive  
   community research 
- Very uncomfortable with the change of "small town" to "neighborly" or "unique"  
- Change to the word "unique" in the Land Use Policy, pg. 41, back to "small-town" 
 
Donald Bristow, Oro Valley resident, stated he support the comments made by the 
previous speakers. 
 
Chair Leedy closed the public hearing. 
 
Bayer Vella, Planning Manager, responded that the term "small town feeling" was being 
misinterpreted.  Over the course of the last year staff has heard several remarks that 
"small town" really applies to geographic boundaries and growth and development.  The 
term "small town" was not intended to reflect growth what so ever, but mainly a 
neighborly feeling.  Staff came up with the idea of using the word "neighborly", not to 
change the input we got from the community, but to make it clear to represent that 
input.   
 
Discussion ensued amongst the Commission regarding the terms "small-town” and 
“neighborly". 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Chair Leedy and seconded by Commissioner Hitt to 
recommend adoption of the document known as the "Your Voice, Our Future General 
Plan" as inspired and created by the residents of the Town of Oro Valley as attached 
hereto as Attachment 2, with a modification to 
A).  Amending the land use of the Vistoso Highlands property from Neighborhood 
Commercial/Office to Medium Density Residential, 
B).  Changing the words in the Vision Statement, Guiding Principles pg. 8 and the Land 
Use and Design Policy, pg. 41, from “small-town” to “small-town” and “neighborly”.  



September 6, 2016 Planning & Zoning Commission Page 5 of 5 
 

 
MOTION carried, 6-0.  
   
PLANNING UPDATE (INFORMATIONAL ONLY)  
 
Bayer Vella, Planning Manager, presented the following Planning Update: 
 
- September 7th Town Council meeting 
- September 21st Town Council meeting 
- October 4th Planning and Zoning Commission meeting 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Hitt and seconded by Commissioner 
Swope to adjourn the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting at 7:42 PM.  
 
MOTION carried, 6-0.  
   
  
  
 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2521&meta_id=204961
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2521&meta_id=204962


 
 

Neighborhood Meeting Summary 
Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 10 Parcel J 

Proposed Major General Plan Amendment and Rezoning 
April 25, 2016 
6:00 – 7:30 PM 

Rancho Vistoso HOA Building  
 

1. Introductions and welcome  
 
Meeting Facilitator Chad Daines, Principal Planner, introduced the Oro Valley staff Rosevelt Arellano, 
Senior Planner, as project manager. Approximately 50 residents and interested parties attended the 
meeting, including Councilmember Hornat and appointed officials Leedy, Hurt, Gribb and Swope. 
 
2. Staff presentation 
 
Rosevelt Arellano, Senior Planner, provided a presentation that included: 
 

 Subject property 
 Applicant’s request 
 Existing and proposed land use designation 
 Existing and proposed zoning designation, including development standards 
 Review tools 
 Review processing, including modified review process 
 Public participation opportunities 

 
3. Applicant presentation 
 
Paul Oland of the WLB Group, provided a presentation detailing the applicant’s proposal, which 
included: 
 

 Site plan design 
 Background information for the Rancho Vistoso community 
 

4. Public Questions and Comments 
 

 What is the guarantee that the site will be developed with one-story homes? 
o To guarantee one-story homes, staff will place a condition of approval on the rezoning 

application.  
 

 Neighbors expressed concerns with the traffic impacts on Hidden Springs Drive, and preferred 
to see this access point eliminated.  
 

 In regards to the Major General Plan Amendment application, how many votes of the Town 
Council is required for an approval?  

o Five votes are required for a super majority.  
 

 Due to visibility, neighbors expressed concerns with the orientation of the proposed homes 
located in the southwest portion of the site plan design.  
 
 

 Will there be a homeowners association? 

Attachment 9



o The applicant stated that the proposed subdivision would be under the Rancho Vistoso 
Master Homeowners Association. 
 

 What is the listing price for the proposed homes? 
o The applicant stated that this information is not known at this time.  

 
 What is the size of the proposed homes? 

o The applicant stated approximately 2,500 square feet and greater. 
  

 The neighbors expressed a significant concern with the proposed building height of 28’, one-
story and preferred 25’, one-story or less.  
 

 What is the permitted building height of the existing commercial zoning designation? 
o 34’, 3-stories.  

 
 What is the timeline of development? 

o The applicant would like to break ground in approximately two years.  
 

 Is public art required? 
o Public art is not required for residential developments. 

 
 What is the open space requirement? 

o The Environmentally Sensitive Lands (ESL) map designates the following ESL 
categories on the property (Section 27.10 of the Zoning Code): 
 Critical Resource Area (CRA):    95% open space requirement 
 Resource Management Area (RMA) Tier 2: 25% open space requirement 

 
 Neighbors expressed a concern with the proposed wall design being consistent with the 

surrounding walls in the area.  
 

 Does the town have a sufficient water supply to support this development? 
o See attached handout from the Town of Oro Valley Water Department.  

 
 Neighbors expressed a concern with the proposed model home design being consistent with 

the surrounding homes.  
 
Mr. Daines closed the meeting, thanked everyone for their attendance and encouraged everyone to 
contact Mr. Arellano, the project manager, with any additional thoughts, comments or concerns. 
 

Attachment 9



 
 

Neighborhood Meeting Summary 
Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 10 Parcel J 

Proposed Major General Plan Amendment and Rezoning 
June 30, 2016 
6:00 – 7:30 PM 

Rancho Vistoso HOA Building  
 

1. Introductions and welcome  
 
Meeting Facilitator Chad Daines, Principal Planner, introduced the Oro Valley staff Rosevelt Arellano, 
Senior Planner, as project manager. Approximately 30 residents and interested parties attended the 
meeting, including appointed officials Hurt, Gribb and Swope. 
 
2. Staff presentation 
 
Rosevelt Arellano, Senior Planner, provided a presentation that included: 
 

 Subject property 
 Applicant’s request 
 Concerns raised at 1st neighborhood meeting 

o Traffic and circulation 
o View preservation 
o Architecture and wall design 

 Next steps 
o 8/23/16 Planning and Zoning Commission hearing (Tentative) 
o 9/6/16  Planning and Zoning Commission hearing (Tentative) 
o 9/21/16 Town Council hearing (Tentative) 

 
3. Applicant presentation 
 
Paul Oland of the WLB Group, provided a presentation detailing the applicant’s proposal, which 
included: 
 

 Revised site plan design  
 Perimeter wall treatment 
 Building height and view preservations  
 

4. Public Questions and Comments 
 

 How tall are the proposed homes? 
o The applicant has agreed to restrict homes with a flat roof to 1-story, 22’ and homes 

with a pitch roof to 1-story, 25’. 
 

 What is the size of the proposed homes? 
o The applicant stated approximately 2,400 square feet and greater. 

 
 Will the existing plants be salvaged? 

o The project must meet the plant mitigation requirements of the Oro Valley Zoning Code. 
 

 How many homes were initially planned in the Rancho Vistoso Community? 
o 13,862 units 

Attachment 9



 
 What is the proposed lot width? 

o 70’ 
 

 Why are the subdivision walls around the Lennar Homes project (southwest corner of Rancho 
Vistoso Boulevard and Vistoso Highlands Drive) different from the surrounding walls? 

o The Rancho Vistoso HOA Design Review Board approved a different style wall.  
o The applicant also stated that the proposed walls will be consistent with the other walls 

in the surrounding area and will meet the HOA’s design guidelines. 
 

 Neighbors expressed concerns with access into the proposed flag lots.  
 

 Will the project use swinging or rolling entry gates? 
o The applicant stated that the information is not known at this time? 

 
 Who will maintain the internal streets? 

o The proposed streets are private and therefore will be privately maintained.  
 

 What is the proposed traffic circulation for construction vehicles? 
o The applicant stated that the information is not known at this time? 

 
Mr. Daines closed the meeting, thanked everyone for their attendance and encouraged everyone to 
contact Mr. Arellano, the project manager, with any additional thoughts, comments or concerns. 
 

Attachment 9



1

Arellano, Rosevelt

From:
Sent: Tuesday, September 06, 2016 4:43 PM
To: Arellano, Rosevelt
Subject: September 6, 2016, 6pm NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Re:  PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
         COMMENTS FOR HEARING 
 
Dear Planning Commission: 
 
I am unable to attend this evening's hearing but do want my comments to be considered along with 
those being heard from attendees at the meeting.  I am a resident and property owner in Oro 
Valley.  My address is below my signature. 
 
I understand that the property owner has the right to sell his property, but if it was zoned Commercial 
at the time of his purchase, he should have understood that that was the property's zoning when he 
purchased it.  We have gone through a series of hearings in 2015 and had a county commissioner 
vote on this issue and the commissioners vote was that the property remain zoned commercial.  Now 
it is up again, this time during the summer when most of the residents are away.  Is it the intention of 
the property owner to bring this matter up for consideration every few months until he gets his way on 
a rezone? 
 
I for one hope for commercial development, not as another strip mall, but built as a community 
commercial center within walking distance of many of the Rancho Vistoso residents.  Right now we all 
have to have cars to truly enjoy the offerings of our community.  It is a four mile round trip walk from 
my house to either shopping center on Rancho Vistoso Blvd.  Public transportation is virtually 
nonexistent.  Some days the car may be used by another person, or be at the repair shop.  Some 
nice little business in the commercial zoning would be very welcome. 
 
The water hazard on the golf course, is a popular attraction.  Families are always gathering there 
after golf hours for picnics, weddings, pictures, and such.  How about a nice public area in that 
commercial zone also facing the "lake" as it is called.  A delicatessen with take out and outside 
tables, an ice cream store that serves not only cones but ice cream specialties such as root beer 
floats, and a specialty take out restaurant.  Then those of us that are car less could also just walk 
over to get something we need to make dinner.  I'm not looking for another Walgreen's to mess up my 
prescriptions, but a small mom and pop compounding pharmacy would be great. More people would 
enjoy the view as well as have services provided.  the fronts of these business could front the view to 
the water and parking could be behind the businesses.  How about a drop off/ pick up for dry 
cleaning, a book and newspaper store?  We've all seen neighborhood and town centers recently and 
know how nice these small stores can be for a neighborhood. 
 
Thank you so much for accepting my input and offering it up to the comments for consideration in this 
zoning request. 
 
Sincerely, 
Elaine R. Hamley 
13764 N. Keystone Springs Drive. 

Attachment 10



2

Oro Valley, AZ 85755 
 

Attachment 10



1

Arellano, Rosevelt

From: Hynd, Jessica
Sent: Tuesday, September 06, 2016 10:23 AM
To: Arellano, Rosevelt
Subject: concern

Here ya go  

Regarding this rezoning, I have 2 questions; 

1. a bit over 2 years ago the town turned down, at the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning commission,
a rezoning of this corner due to "insufficient commercial land" in Rancho Vistoso. The owner of the land 
worked together with the residents to come up with a satisfactory plan with 24 homes. Now the new owner has 
not worked closely with the owners and there are 60% more homes. What was the average housing density 2 
1/2 years ago and today to merit this change as this was given as the reason for this recommendation? 

2. The current owner was able to provide a plan on the effect on views for homes along the Vistoso golf course
to the west, yet is there any analysis that the town required of the owner for the Stone Canyon homes and the 
effect on their city lights views? 

Jessica Hynd 
Constituent Services Coordinator/ Management Assistant 
Town of Oro Valley 
11000 N. La Canada Drive 
Oro Valley, Arizona 85737 

Office: 520.229.4711 
Jhynd@orovalleyaz.gov 

Attachment 10

-Heldge Carson



1

Arellano, Rosevelt

From: John Beamish 
Sent: Tuesday, April 26, 2016 5:06 PM
To: Arellano, Rosevelt
Subject: Parcel 10-J

Hi Rosevelt.  I was in the audience for last night's meeting and found it to be very useful.  I think that the Town 
and owner's rep did a good job in explaining the process and proposal.   
 
You probably noticed that a number of people referenced the nearby Lennar project in their questions & 
comments.  That's because most of the people in the neighborhood think that it's ugly, doesn't reflect the home 
styles in the area and the nearby homeowners weren't involved enough in the vetting process.  All of us were 
surprised to find out that the homes were going to be crammed so tightly together and that there were going to 
be a number of two storey buildings which would block views.  I'm not saying that the developers did anything 
sneaky here, but I do think that a much better disclosure process should have been in place so that we didn't end 
up being surprised at what ended up being built.  The Town's job is to make sure that there are no surprises.   
 
Anyway, the process seems to be unfolding in a much more transparent way for 10-J and, as a result, I'm pretty 
sure that you'll find a broad-based support from neighboring homes.   
 
Thanks.   
 
John Beamish 
Treasurer - Monterey HOA     
  
 
 
 

Right-click 
here to  
download 
pictures.  To  
help protect 
your privacy, 
Outlo ok 
prevented 
auto matic  
download of 
this pictu re  
from the  
In ternet.

 

Virus-free. www.avast.com  

 

Attachment 10



1

Arellano, Rosevelt

From: mary braunger 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2016 6:21 AM
To: Arellano, Rosevelt
Subject: 2nd neighborhood meeting for vistoso highlands--Letter of 6/10/16

Sir: 
My husband and I will not be attending the meeting on 6/30 but would like to make you aware that we are 
VERY much against this development.  We did not purchase our winter retirement condo to be across the street 
from a strip mall. 
 
There are plenty of places available on Rancho Vistoso Blvd. without going onto Highlands Dr. 
 
I hope other residents will agree with us. 
 
Mary Braunger 

Attachment 10



1

Arellano, Rosevelt

From:
Sent: Friday, June 24, 2016 10:27 AM
To: gpoland@wlbgroup.com
Cc: T
Subject: 10J area gabled roof examples

Hi Paul 
 
Thanks again for meeting with Carol and me on June 9th about the Parcel 10J rezoning and preliminary 
development proposal.  We are looking forward to the neighborhood meeting next week.   
 
When we discussed building height limits you indicated that your likely gabled roof designs require more height 
than flat roofs which makes sense.  However, I have since taken a quick look on Google Earth (samples below) 
at existing roofs in our W Vistoso Highlands neighborhoods.  I was actually surprised to see that there are many 
gabled roofs that have been built to comply with our 21' maximum height. While some are more complicated 
than may be planned for 10J, these designers have apparently limited the roof pitches, wall heights and truss 
spans to meet our requirements.  It seems that the roof designs in 10J could also be done in a lower profile with 
these types of adjustments as needed. 
 
If I am missing something please let me know.  As we said when Carol and I met with you on the 9th, we 
simply want the 10J project to blend with the character of our neighborhoods. 
 
Thanks again for meeting with Carol and me at your office on the 9th. 
 
Ken  

 
Here is Steprock Canyon Pl. 

Attachment 10



2

 
 
 
Bowcreek Springs 

 
 
 
Keystone Springs 

Attachment 10



3

 

 

 

Attachment 10



   
Town Council Regular Session Item #   2.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2016  
Requested by: Bayer Vella 
Submitted By: Michael Spaeth, Development Infrastructure Services
Department: Development Infrastructure Services

Information
SUBJECT:
DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING A PROPOSED CONCEPTUAL
SITE PLAN, LANDSCAPE PLAN AND MASTER RECREATION AREA PLAN FOR THE
ALTERRA AT VISTOSO TRAILS SUBDIVISION, LOCATED APPROXIMATELY 1/2
MILE EAST OF THE INTERSECTION OF RANCHO VISTOSO BOULEVARD AND
MOORE ROAD ALONG THE FUTURE MOORE ROAD LOOP EXTENSION

RECOMMENDATION:
The Conceptual Design Review Board recommends approval of the Conceptual Site
Plan, Landscape Plan and Master Recreation Area Plan, subject to the conditions listed
in Attachment 1.

The Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee recommends approval of the Master
Recreation Area Plan, subject to the conditions listed in Attachment 1.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The applicant’s request (Attachments 2 and 3) is to develop the approximately 115-acre
property as follows: 

150 detached single-family lots
New traffic light at the Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and Moore Road intersection
Two points of vehicular ingress/egress
Master Recreation Area Plan for a 6.9-acre neighborhood park

The subject property is located approximately ½-mile east of the intersection of Rancho
Vistoso Boulevard and Moore Road along the future Moore Road Loop extension
(Attachment 4). 

The applicant is required to install a traffic signal at the intersection of Rancho Vistoso
Boulevard and Moore Road at no expense to the Town. A condition has been included in
Attachment 1 which requires the light to be installed and operational prior to the release
of any lots within the subdivision.

↵



The Conceptual Site Plan and Landscape Plan conform with the Conceptual Design
Principles and Design Standards of the Zoning Code and the Rancho Vistoso Planned
Area Development.

A key focus of the review involved addressing several remaining conditions of approval
from a 2009 General Plan Amendment for Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 5, most
notably a planned neighborhood park to serve the area. The condition required
development of an approximately 6.9-acre neighborhood park. Staff has worked with the
applicant, the Ranch Vistoso Home Owners Association and the Town’s Parks and
Recreation Advisory Board to create a Master Recreation Area Plan (see Attachment 3)
for the future park site. The applicant is responsible for developing half of the park
acreage, including all associated amenities.

The Conceptual Design Review Board considered the applicant's proposal on
September 21, 2016 and recommends approval, subject to conditions, of the Conceptual
Site Plan, Landscape Plan and Master Recreation Area Plan.

The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board considered the request on November 17,
2015 and recommends approval, subject to conditions, of the Master Recreation Area
Plan.

BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
Current Site Conditions 

The property encompasses approximately 115-acres
Vacant

The subject property is designated as Medium-High Density Residential, High Density
Residential and Resort/Golf Course on the General Plan Future Land Use Map. The site
is zoned Medium-High Density Residential and Golf/Recreation in the Rancho Vistoso
PAD. The General Plan and zoning designations for the property and the surrounding
area are depicted in Attachment 5.
 
Approvals to Date 

1987: The property was part of the original Rancho Vistoso PAD.
2009: A Major General Plan and Planned Area Development Amendments were
approved for Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 5

The 2009 Major General Plan Amendment for Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 5 shifted a
number of land uses and involved three noteworthy changes which directly affect the
subject property. A summary of those changes is provided below and a more detailed
discussion is provided in Attachment 6: 

Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 5 Community Park
 
The original Rancho Vistoso PAD included specific areas where the development of
park space was to occur. Currently, Neighborhood 5 is the only residential
neighborhood within Rancho Vistoso which has not developed this required park
space.

1.



space.
 
As part of the 2009 Major General Plan Amendment, the following condition was
included regarding the need to develop the park:
 
“The recreation area adjacent to the old school site (Parcel 5-I) must be improved
with sufficient recreational elements and amenities to provide meaningful active and
passive recreation opportunities for the community. The park must be constructed
to the standards in Section 26.5 of the Oro Valley Zoning Code Revised, or to a
standard deemed appropriate by the Oro Valley Parks and Recreation Advisory
Board (PRAB). The park plan must be approved by the PRAB”.
 
The condition required development of an approximately 6.9-acre community park
in an isolated area bordered by Big Wash and Honey Bee Wash.

Details regarding the proposed park are summarized below:

The park was relocated as the original location became significantly more
isolated as the alignment of Moore Road was changed.
Town staff (including Planning and Parks and Recreation) worked with the
applicant, the Rancho Vistoso Home Owners Association and the Parks and
Recreation Advisory Board (PRAB) to relocate the park space to a property
adjacent to the applicant’s proposed subdivision along the new Moore Road
Loop. This new location is conveniently located near the future school site and
provides much better access for the majority of residents within Neighborhood
5.
Staff and the developer have worked with the Rancho Vistoso HOA and the
Town’s Parks and Recreation Advisory Board to develop the required Master
Recreation Area Plan (Attachment 3), which provides details regarding the
entire 6.9-acre community Park.
The applicant is required to provide a portion of the overall acreage with this
development. The remainder of the park will be completed as part of future
residential development within Neighborhood 5.
The Rancho Vistoso HOA supports the proposed park project and the Parks
and Recreation Advisory Board has recommended approval of the proposal.

The relocation of the park and Master Recreation Area Plan proposed by the
applicant meets the original intent of the General Plan condition.

Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 5 Sewer infrastructure
 
A second condition that was part of both the 2009 Major General Plan Amendment
and PAD Amendment addressed future sewer infrastructure needs within Rancho
Vistoso Neighborhood 5. The condition:
 
“Vistoso Partners will install a new gravity sewer line from a connection point on
Tangerine Road north to the existing lift station serving Sun City Vistoso, Units 9 &
10. In addition, a sewer stub-out shall be provided to the boundary of Parcel 5-B in
order to provide a connection opportunity to relieve the Parcel 5-B lift station should

2.



that HOA elect to construct such a connection in the future.
 
The sewer main connection to the existing Sun City lift station shall be constructed
according to the other timelines set forth in the existing agreement with the
Amphitheater School District or at the time another development within this
amendment area generates the need for sewer, as determined by the Town
Engineer, whichever is required first. The location of the sewer line will be along the
west bank of Big Wash and will continue by gravity to the closest connection point
on Tangerine Road, as dictate by Pima County Wastewater Management.”
 
The intent of the condition was to transition from private to public lift stations
because of the ongoing maintenance and upkeep costs. Town staff (Planning and
Engineering) and the applicant met multiple times with representatives of Pima
County Waste water and Sun City to develop an effective and efficient sewer
concept moving forward.

Moving forward, no new private lift stations will be permitted for future development.
Furthermore, to meet the intent of the condition the sewer concept was developed
with three phases which are outlined below.

   
Phase 1 – provide a stub-out to serve Parcel 5-B

   
The Home Owners Association for Parcel 5-B (Monterrey Homes) was contacted
and has declined the stub-out specified in the condition.

   
Phase 2 – west side of Big Wash (this development)

   
A temporary public lift station maintained by Pima County Wastewater will serve the
applicant’s subdivision until future development occurs along the Moore Road loop
to the south, including the future Amphitheater school site. When the school is
constructed, a permanent public lift station will be constructed at the school site to
handle wastewater for the developments along the Moore Road loop, connecting to
the existing infrastructure in the Rancho Vistoso right-of-way.
 
Phase 3 – east side of Big Wash (future)

   
The future development of Parcel 5-H (east of Big Wash) will construct a public lift
station connecting to the existing infrastructure in Rancho Vistoso Boulevard on the
east side of Neighborhood 5. This is not action that the Town can legally trigger with
this development proposal. We anticipate a development proposal for 5-H in the
next two years.

   
To accommodate the aging system in Sun Vistoso, the condition envisioned
a gravity feed sewer system which required a significant crossing of Big Wash,
something Pima County Wastewater representatives did not support. As a result,
Pima County is considering taking over responsibility for the maintenance and
upkeep of the aging lift stations.

   



The proposed concept addresses wastewater needs throughout Neighborhood 5
and provides a solution for addressing wastewater infrastructure needs for future
residential developments. Staff feels the concept meets the original intent of the
sewer condition.

Moore Road realignment3.

As part of the original Rancho Vistoso PAD approved in 1987, Moore Road
extended across Big Wash connecting to both sides of the Rancho Vistoso
Boulevard loop. As part of the amendment, Moore Road was realigned to its current
configuration as a loop road connecting on the north with Rancho Vistoso Boulevard
and on the south with Arrowsmith Drive (see Attachment 7).

   
There were a number of benefits of realigning the road, however, the two primary
justifications for the new alignment were:

It would serve the future Amphitheater school site which was moved as
part of the amendment to a parcel northeast of the existing Safeway
shopping center; and
The new alignment would have significantly less environmental impact by
no longer crossing Big Wash.

The applicant’s proposal is the first development application along the new Moore Road
loop extension not located near the intersection with Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and
represents a significant step for the area. When the loop road is completed, the area will
see a significant increase in the amount of daily traffic as there are additional vacant
residential and commercial properties adjoining either side of the road as it extends
south. Lastly, the loop road will be the sole access to the future Amphitheater school site
discussed previously. 

Conceptual Site Plan

A summary of the Conceptual Site Plan’s, Landscape Plan’s and Master Recreation Area
Plan’s is provided below and a detailed analysis can be found in Attachment 8.
 
The applicant’s request (Attachments 2 and 3) has the following components:

The proposal includes 150 detached single-family lots on approximately 115-acres.
Lot sizes range from a minimum of 7,200 sq. ft. to 8,400 sq. ft.
Two points of vehicular ingress/egress
Buffer yards and landscaped common areas
Continuation of the planned multi-use path along Moore Road
Bicycle and pedestrian connections

Staff has worked extensively with the applicant to improve the vehicular and pedestrian
network along Moore Road. The two points of ingress/egress will significantly improve
connectivity within the area, specifically for the future school site south of the subject
property.

Additionally, the applicant is required to install a traffic signal at the intersection of



Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and Moore Road at no expense to the Town. A condition has
been included in Attachment 1 which requires the light to be installed and operational
prior to the release of any lots within the subdivision.

Conceptual Landscape Plan
 
The Conceptual Landscape Plan has been reviewed for conformance with the
applicable Rancho Vistoso PAD and Zoning Code requirements. The Conceptual
Landscape Plan includes landscaped entries, as well as landscaping in all common
areas. The landscape plan preserves a majority of a riparian wash that bisects the
property as natural open space.  The Landscape Plan meets all applicable Rancho
Vistoso PAD and Zoning Code requirements.
 
Master Recreation Area Plan
 
Staff has worked with the applicant, the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board and the
Rancho Vistoso HOA to develop a Master Recreation Area Plan (see Attachment 3) for
the future park site. As discussed previously, the applicant is required to provide a
portion of the park in conjunction with this development. The park plan encompasses
approximately 6.9-acres adjacent to the future Moore Road Loop extension and includes
the following:
 
Both the Rancho Vistoso HOA and Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (PRAB) have
reviewed and support the proposed plan. Furthermore, PRAB has recommended
approval of the proposed Master Recreation Area Plan.
 
Rancho Vistoso PAD, Zoning Code Design Principles and Design Standards Analysis
 
The applicant’s proposal has been reviewed for conformance with the Rancho Vistoso
PAD Design Standards and the Town of Oro Valley Zoning Code including the
Conceptual Design Principles and Design Standards. Each is utilized as evaluation
criteria for staff and CDRB evaluation of the application. The Addendum “A” Design
Standards are used as secondary guidance, as appropriate. A discussion and analysis of
the projects conformance with each is provided in Attachment 9. 
  
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:
 
Neighborhood Meetings
 
One neighborhood meeting was held on September 15, 2014 regarding the applicant’s
proposal. Approximately 20 residents attended the meeting. The primary topics
discussed during the meeting included:

Neighbors voiced concern about the increased level of traffic at the intersection of
Moore Road and Rancho Vistoso Boulevard. Staff discussed the future signal to be
located at the intersection and its eventual impact on current traffic conditions.
Neighbors were concerned about the potential impacts from light pollution from the
Community Park. Staff discussed the need to meet the existing lighting code



requirements.

A copy of the neighborhood meeting summary has been provided in Attachment 10.
 
No additional correspondence has been received by staff.

Conceptual Design Review Board

The applicant's request was considered by the Conceptual Design Review Board on
September 20, 2016. The Board has recommended approval of the applicant's proposal.
The Conceptual Design Review Board staff report and minutes are provided as
Attachments 11 & 12 respectively.

Parks and Recreation Advisory Board

The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board considered the applicant's Master Recreation
Area Concept Plan on November 17, 2015 and has recommended approval. The staff
report and minutes are provided as Attachments 13 & 14 respectively.
 

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to approve the Alterra at Vistoso Trails Conceptual Site Plan, Landscape Plan
and Master Recreation Area Plan, subject to the conditions in Attachment 1, based on
the findings in the staff report.
 
OR
 
I MOVE to deny the Alterra at Vistoso Trails Conceptual Site Plan, Landscape Plan and
Master Recreation Area Plan finding that _______________________________.
 

Attachments
ATTACHMENT 1 - CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
ATTACHMENT 2 - CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN AND LANDSCAPE PLAN 
ATTACHMENT 3 - MASTER RECREATION AREA PLAN 
ATTACHMENT 4 - LOCATION MAP 
ATTACHMENT 5 - GENERAL PLAN AND ZONING MAPS 
ATTACHMENT 6 - NEIGHBORHOOD 5 HISTORY 
ATTACHMENT 7 - 2009 MGPA MAP 
ATTACHMENT 8 - CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN, LANDSCAPE PLAN AND MASTER RECREATION
AREA PLAN ANALYSIS 
ATTACHMENT 9 - RANCHO VISTOSO PAD ANALYSIS 
ATTACHMENT 10 - NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING SUMMARY 



ATTACHMENT 11 - CDRB STAFF REPORT 
ATTACHMENT 12 - DRAFT CDRB MEETING MINUTES 
ATTACHMENT 13 - PRAB STAFF REPORT 
ATTACHMENT 14 - PRAB MEETING MINUTES 



ATTACHMENT 1 
MATTAMY HOMES – ALTERRA AT VISTOSO TRAILS 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 

Planning Conditions 
 
1. The Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&R’s) for this subdivision shall 

contain notification of the presence of public access trail easements, trails, trailheads 
and other public recreational uses which are open to the public in the general 
vicinity.  

2. Add the following General Notes: 

a. Trails, trailheads and other public recreational uses are open to the public in the 
general vicinity. 

b. This subdivision shall only be served by public lift stations. 

c. This subdivision shall be responsible for the development of Phase 1 of the 
neighborhood park shown in Attachment 3 – Master Recreation Area Plan, 
including all Phase 1 amenities included therein. 

 

Engineering Conditions 
 
1. A traffic signal shall be installed by the developer at the intersection of Rancho 

Vistoso Boulevard and Moore Road at no expense to the Town. The signal shall be 
installed and operational prior to any lot releases for the Alterra at Vistoso Trails 
subdivision. 

2. Add the following General Note 

a. A traffic signal shall be installed by the developer at the intersection of Rancho 
Vistoso Boulevard and Moore Road at no expense to the Town. The signal shall 
be installed and operational prior to any lot releases for the Alterra at Vistoso 
Trails subdivision. 

 



























































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LOCATION MAP 
MATTAMY HOMES - ALTERRA AT VISTOSO TRAILS 

(OV1215-14) 
 

 

 

                                                                                               Attachment 4 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL PLAN MAP 
MATTAMY HOMES - ALTERRA AT VISTOSO TRAILS 

 (OV1215-14) 
 

 

 

                                                                                               Attachment 5 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ZONING MAP 
MATTAMY HOMES - ALTERRA AT VISTOSO TRAILS 

 (OV1215-14) 
 

 

 

                                                                                               Attachment 5 



ATTACHMENT 6 
MATTAMY HOMES - ALTERRA AT VISTOSO TRAILS 

NEIGHBORHOOD 5 HISTORY 
 

 

1. Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 5 Community Park 
 
The original Rancho Vistoso PAD included specific areas where the development of park 
space was to occur. Currently, Neighborhood 5 is the only residential neighborhood within 
Rancho Vistoso which has not developed this required park space.  
 
As part of the 2009 Major General Plan Amendment, the following condition was included 
regarding the need to develop the park: 
 
“The recreation area adjacent to the old school site (Parcel 5-I) must be improved with 
sufficient recreational elements and amenities to provide meaningful active and passive 
recreation opportunities for the community. The park must be constructed to the standards 
in Section 26.5 of the Oro Valley Zoning Code Revised, or to a standard deemed 
appropriate by the Oro Valley Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (PRAB). The park 
plan must be approved by the PRAB”.  
 
The condition required development of an approximately 6.9-acre community park which 
would serve the needs of the residents within Neighborhood 5 and the greater Rancho 
Vistoso area. 
  
The Rancho Vistoso PAD identifies an area in the middle of Big Wash as the original 
location for the recreation area. Following the 2009 Major General Plan Amendment, this 
location became significantly more isolated as the alignment of Moore Road was changed. 
As a result, the area became much less viable and useful as a location for a community 
park as a majority of the population within Neighborhood 5 will be on the west side of Big 
Wash, completely disconnected from the park site.  
 
The relocation of the park and Master Recreation Area Plan proposed by the applicant 
meets the original intent of the General Plan condition. 
 
As such, Town staff (including Planning and Parks and Recreation) worked with the 
applicant, the Rancho Vistoso Home Owners Association and the Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Board (PRAB) to relocate the park space to a property adjacent to the applicant’s 
proposed subdivision along the new Moore Road Loop. This new location is conveniently 
located near the future school site and provides much better access for the majority of 
residents within Neighborhood 5.  
 
The new location for the community park similarly has a zoning designation of Rancho 
Vistoso PAD – Golf/Rec which supports the use of the land as a recreation area. This new 
location was originally intended to be more passive recreation, while the original park site 



in the middle of the wash was intended for active recreation. The applicant is requesting to 
switch the parks location to meet the intent of the General Plan condition and PAD. 
 
Furthermore, a Master Recreation Area Plan (Attachment 3) was required for the park. In 
developing this plan, staff and the developer have worked with the Rancho Vistoso HOA 
and the Town’s Parks and Recreation Advisory Board. The Master Recreation Area Plan 
provides details regarding the entire 6.9-acre community Park and the applicant is 
required to provide a portion of the overall acreage and with this development. The 
remainder of the park will be completed as part of future residential development within 
Neighborhood 5.  
 
The Rancho Vistoso HOA supports the proposed park project and the Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Board has recommended approval of the proposal. 
 

2. Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 5 Sewer infrastructure 
 
A second condition that was part of both the 2009 Major General Plan Amendment and 
PAD Amendment addressed future sewer infrastructure needs within Rancho Vistoso 
Neighborhood 5. The condition: 
 
“Vistoso Partners will install a new gravity sewer line from a connection point on Tangerine 
Road north to the existing lift station serving Sun City Vistoso, Units 9 & 10. In addition, a 
sewer stub-out shall be provided to the boundary of Parcel 5-B in order to provide a 
connection opportunity to relieve the Parcel 5-B lift station should that HOA elect to 
construct such a connection in the future. 
 
The sewer main connection to the existing Sun City lift station shall be constructed 
according to the other timelines set forth in the existing agreement with the Amphitheater 
School District or at the time another development within this amendment area generates 
the need for sewer, as determined by the Town Engineer, whichever is required first. The 
location of the sewer line will be along the west bank of Big Wash and will continue by 
gravity to the closest connection point on Tangerine Road, as dictate by Pima County 
Wastewater Management.” 
 
The intent of the condition was to transition from private to public lift stations because of 
the ongoing costs of maintenance and upkeep. Moving forward, no new private lift stations 
will be permitted for future development. 
 
Town Staff (Planning and Engineering) and the applicant met multiple times with 
representatives of Pima County Wastewater and Sun City to develop an effective and 
efficient sewer concept moving forward.  
 
The bulk of the condition specified use of a gravity feed sewer system connecting Sun City 
with future developments in Neighborhood 5, ultimately connecting south to existing 
infrastructure in Tangerine Road. Pima County Wastewater representatives expressly 
stated public sewer infrastructure would not be permitted to cross Big Wash, effectively 



making this option unfeasible. As such, to meet the intent of the condition, the sewer 
concept was developed with three phases which are outlined below. 
 
Phase 1 – provide a stub-out to serve Parcel 5-B 
 
The Home Owners Association for Parcel 5-B (Monterrey Homes) was contacted and has 
declined the stub-out specified in the condition.  
 
Phase 2 – west side of Big Wash (this development) 
 
A temporary public lift station maintained by Pima County Wastewater will serve the 
applicant’s subdivision until future development occurs along the Moore Road loop to the 
south, including the future Amphitheater school site. When the school is constructed, a 
permanent public lift station will be constructed at the school site to handle wastewater for 
the developments along the Moore Road loop, connecting to the existing infrastructure in 
the Rancho Vistoso right-of-way.  
 
Phase 3 – east side of Big Wash (future) 
 
The future development of Parcel 5-H (east of Big Wash) will construct a public lift station 
connecting to the existing infrastructure in Rancho Vistoso Boulevard on the east side of 
Neighborhood 5.  
 
To accommodate the aging system in Sun Vistoso, Pima County Wastewater is 
considering taking over responsibility for the maintenance and upkeep of the aging lift 
stations.   
 
The proposed concept addresses wastewater needs throughout Neighborhood 5 and 
provides a solution for addressing wastewater infrastructure needs for future residential 
developments. Staff feels the concept meets the original intent of the sewer condition. 
 

3. Moore Road realignment 
 
As part of the original Rancho Vistoso PAD approved in 1987, Moore Road extended 
across Big Wash connecting to both sides of the Rancho Vistoso Boulevard loop. As part 
of the amendment, Moore Road was realigned to its current configuration as a loop road 
connecting on the north with Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and on the south with Arrowsmith 
Drive (see Attachment 5).  
 
There were a number of benefits of realigning the road, however, the two primary 
justifications for the new alignment were: 
 

 It would serve the future Amphitheater school site which was moved as part of 
the amendment to a parcel northeast of the existing Safeway shopping center; 
and  

 



 The new alignment would have significantly less environmental impact by no 
longer crossing Big Wash. 

 
The applicant’s proposal is the first development application along the new Moore Road 
loop extension and represents a significant step for the area. When the loop road is 
completed, the area will see a significant increase in the amount of daily traffic as there 
are additional vacant residential and commercial properties adjoining either side of the 
road as it extends south. Lastly, the loop road will be the sole access to the future 
Amphitheater school site discussed previously.  
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2009 RANCHO VISTOSO NEIGHBORHOOD 5 

MAJOR GPA AMENDMENT AREA 
MATTAMY HOMES - ALTERRA AT VISTOSO TRAILS 

(OV1215-14) 
 

                                                                                          

      Attachment 7 



ATTACHMENT 8 
MATTAMY HOMES - ALTERRA AT VISTOSO TRAILS 
CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN, LANDSCAPE PLAN AND  

MASTER RECREATION AREA PLAN ANALYSIS 
 
 
Project details are provided in the table below: 
 
    
    
    
    
   

 

 

 

Staff has worked extensively with the applicant to improve the vehicular and pedestrian network along 
Moore Road. As noted above, the subdivision incorporates two points of ingress/egress and a number of 
pedestrian connections, including continuation of the planned multi-use path along Moore Road. These 
connections will significantly improve connectivity within the area, specifically for the future school site 
south of the subject property. 
  
Conceptual Landscape Plan 
  

The Conceptual Landscape Plan has been reviewed for conformance with the applicable Rancho Vistoso 
PAD and Zoning Code requirements. The Conceptual Landscape Plan includes landscaped entries, as 
well as landscaping in all common areas. The landscape plan preserves a majority of a riparian wash that 
bisects the property as natural open space.  The Landscape Plan meets all applicable Rancho Vistoso 
PAD and Zoning Code requirements. 
  
Master Recreation Area Plan 
  
Staff has worked with the applicant, the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board and the Rancho Vistoso 
HOA to develop a Master Recreation Area Plan (see Attachment 3) for the future park site. As discussed 
previously, the applicant is required to provide a portion of the park in conjunction with this development. 
The park plan encompasses approximately 6.9-acres adjacent to the future Moore Road Loop extension 
and includes the following: 
  
Phase 1 (3.0-acres constructed with this development) 

 Ramada w/picnic tables 

 2 play structures (1 tot-lot, 1 older age play structure) 

 Turf area including U-8 soccer field 

 Trailhead connections 

 Drinking fountain 

Phase 1 also incorporates a pedestrian underpass between the park space and the residential to the 
north to provide more convenient and safe access to the park. 
 
Phase 2 (3.9-acres constructed with future development) 

Total lots 150 

Density (du/ac) 0.77 du/ac 

Maximum Building height  30 ft 

Minimum lot size 7,200 sq. ft. 

Average lot size 7,800 sq. ft. 

Open space 46% 



 Ramada w/picnic table 

 Restroom facilities 

 Free play lawn 

 2 dog parks (1 small dog, 1 large dog) 

 Trailhead connections 

 Drinking fountain 

Both the Rancho Vistoso HOA and Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (PRAB) have reviewed and 
support the proposed plan. Furthermore, PRAB has recommended approval of the proposed Master 
Recreation Area Plan. 
  
Rancho Vistoso PAD, Zoning Code Design Principles and Design Standards Analysis 
  
The applicant’s proposal has been reviewed for conformance with the Rancho Vistoso PAD Design 
Standards and the Town of Oro Valley Zoning Code including the Conceptual Design Principles and 
Design Standards. Each is utilized as evaluation criteria for staff and CDRB evaluation of the application. 
The Addendum “A” Design Standards are used as secondary guidance, as appropriate. A discussion and 
analysis of the projects conformance with each is provided in Attachment 6. 
  

 



Attachment 9 
Mattamy Homes – Alterra at Vistoso Trails 

Rancho Vistoso PAD, Design Principles and Design Standards Analysis 
 
Rancho Vistoso PAD conformance 
 
The applicant’s proposed design, with conditions, will be consistent with the 
development standards of the Town Center zoning district and Medium-High Density 
Residential development standards.  
 
Oro Valley Zoning Code Conceptual Site Design Principles, Section 22.9.D.5.a 
 
The Conceptual Site Plan, with conditions, will be in conformance with all applicable 
Conceptual Design Principles. Following are the Design Principles (in italics), followed 
by staff evaluation of how the design addresses the principles: 
 
Building orientation: the location, orientation and size of structures shall promote a 
complementary relationship of structures to one another.  
 
Staff Commentary:  The subject property is surrounded by similar residential 
subdivisions and higher density condominiums. The proposed subdivision incorporates 
the required landscape buffers along Moore Road further visually separating the 
proposed residences from the roadway. Furthermore, the property sits substantially 
lower than adjacent residences to the west. The homes will incorporate standard entry 
and side entry garages that will provide for a varied streetscape.  
 
Drainage/grading: site grading shall minimize impacts on natural grade and landforms 
and provide for subtle transitions of architectural elements to grade. Significant cuts and 
fills in relation to natural grade shall be avoided or minimized to the extent practical 
given property constraints.  
 
Staff Commentary:  The overall topography of the developable area of the site is 
relatively flat. No major cuts or fills are proposed.  
 
A full drainage report will be required as part of the Final Design review submittal to 
verify conformance with the Town’s Drainage Criteria Manual. All post-development flow 
shall be mitigated and released in the same manner and quantity as the existing 
conditions.  
 
Development will primarily avoid encroachment, other than road crossings, into the 
riparian area that bisects the property. The applicant is required to work with the Army 
Corps of Engineers to obtain the necessary permits for encroachment and any 
remediation.  
 
Connectivity: strengthen the usability and connectivity of the pedestrian environment 
internally and externally by enhancing access to the public street system, transit, 



adjoining development and pedestrian and bicycle transportation routes. Where 
appropriate, buildings and uses should provide access to adjacent open space and 
recreational areas.  
 
Staff Commentary:  The proposed development will be accessible from both Moore 
Road. The subdivision incorporates sidewalks throughout and will continue the planned 
multi-use path along Moore Road.  
 
A pedestrian underpass will be incorporated into the design to maintain a safe and 
convenient access between the community park and the residential neighborhood.  
 
The design also includes a number of trails and trail head connections to the existing 
trail network within the area.   
 
Traffic circles have been incorporated to ensure safe, efficient movement of traffic along 
Moore Road. Required crosswalks and pedestrian refuge areas have been incorporated 
into the traffic circles to minimize pedestrian/vehicle conflicts.  
 
Design Standards Analysis 
 
The proposed Conceptual Site Plan has been reviewed for conformance with the 
Conceptual Site Design Standards, where the Rancho Vistoso PAD is silent.  Following 
are key Design Standards (in italics), followed by staff’s commentary.   
 
1. Section 3.1B.1: Street character should be diverse. 

2. Section 3.1.B.2: Street trees, landscape themes, varied setbacks or architectural 
treatments shall be used to provide individual street character.  
  

Staff Commentary: The applicant’s proposal incorporates a housing product that will 
utilize varied setbacks and entries, including side entry garages, which will provide for 
diversity and individual street character.  
  
3. Section 3.1.D.4: Pedestrian connections shall be provided between neighborhoods 

Staff Commentary: The proposed subdivision will incorporate sidewalks providing 
access to the multi-use path along Moore Road and trail connections to the larger trail 
network within the area.  

 
 
  



Attachment 10 
Mattamy Homes – Alterra at Vistoso Trails 

Neighborhood Meeting Summary 
 

 
Neighborhood Meeting Summary 

Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 5 (Parcels 5F, 5G, 5K, and 5v) 
Proposed Subdivision (Conceptual Site Plan) 

September 15, 2014 
6:00 – 7:30 PM 

Resurrection Lutheran Church, 11575 North First Avenue  
 

1. Introductions and Welcome 

 
Meeting Facilitator Chad Daines, Principal Planner, introduced the Oro Valley staff 
Michael Spaeth, Senior Planner, as project manager. Approximately 40 residents and 
interested parties attended the meeting, including Vice Mayor Waters and Council 
Members Snider and Hornat. Also in attendance was Planning and Zoning Commission 
Chairman Don Cox. 

2. Staff Presentation 

Michael Spaeth, Senior Planner, provided a presentation that included: 

 Definition of a Planned Area Development (PAD) 

 History of Rancho Vistoso PAD 

 Applicant’s request 

 Existing zoning of the property, including development standards 

 Review tools 

 Traffic impacts and submittal requirements 

 Drainage impacts and submittal requirements 

 Water availability 

 Cultural Resources preservation requirements 

 Impacts on Schools 

 Review process 

 Public participation opportunities 

 
3. Applicant Presentation  

 
Paul Oland from the planning firm WLB Group Inc., provided a presentation detailing the 
applicant’s proposal, which included: 
 

 Overview of project 

 Traffic impact on Rancho Vistoso Boulevard 

 Anticipated architectural style for the subdivision 

 
4. Public Questions & Comments 



Following is a summary of additional questions and comments: 

 Anticipated size of Moore Road extension 

 Access be to the proposed subdivisions 

 Timing of the traffic signal at Rancho Vistoso Blvd and Moore Road 

 Concern over U-turns on Rancho Vistoso Blvd 

 Plans to alleviate traffic issues at Woodburne Ave (Safeway shopping center) 

 Concerns about the approved “Lofts” at Vistoso Town Center condominium 

project 

 Anticipated timing for development 

 Improvements to the recreational area 

 Two-story home restrictions 

 Architecture consistent with surrounding neighborhoods 

 The anticipated price range for the homes 

Mr. Oland addressed some of the questions related to the proposed development and the 
associated traffic impacts.  
 
Mr. Daines closed the meeting, thanked everyone for their attendance and encouraged 
everyone to contact Mr. Spaeth, the project manager, with any additional thoughts, 
comments or concerns.  
 

 

 



Conceptual Site Plan - Mattamy Homes Alterra at Vistoso Trails  
Conceptual Design Review Board Staff Report 

 
 

CASE NUMBER:  OV1215-14 
 
MEETING DATE:   September 20, 2016 

 
AGENDA ITEM:  3 
 
STAFF CONTACT:  Michael Spaeth, Senior Planner 

mspaeth@orovalleyaz.gov (520) 229-4812 

 
 
Applicant:   Paul Oland, The WLB Group Inc. on behalf of Mattamy Homes 
 
Request: A 150-lot single family residential development on 115-acres 

involving the following development applications: 
 

 Conceptual Site Plan 

 Conceptual Landscape Plan 

 Master Recreation Area Plan 
 
Location: North of the future Moore Road loop extension, approximately ½-

mile east of the intersection Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and Moore 
Road.  

 
Recommendation: Recommend approval of the applicant’s proposal. 

 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
The applicant’s request (Attachment 1 and 2) is to develop the approximately 115-acre 
property as follows: 
 

 150 detached single-family lots  

 Two points of vehicular ingress/egress 

 Master Recreation Area Plan for a 6.9-acre neighborhood park  
 
The subject property is located approximately ½-mile east of the intersection of Rancho 
Vistoso Boulevard and Moore Road along the future Moore Road Loop extension (Attachment 
3). The site is currently zoned Rancho Vistoso PAD Medium High Density Residential and 
Open Space.  

 
The Conceptual Site Plan and Landscape Plan conform with the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area 
Development and Conceptual Design Principles and Design Standards of the Zoning Code. 
 
A key focus of the review involved addressing several remaining conditions of approval from a 
2009 General Plan Amendment for Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 5, most notably a planned 

mailto:mspaeth@orovalleyaz.gov


OV1215-14 Mattamy Homes - Alterra at Vistoso Trails  Page 2 of 9 
Conceptual Design Review Board Staff Report 

 
neighborhood park to serve the area. The park condition required development of an 
approximately 6.9-acre neighborhood park within Neighborhood 5. Staff has worked with the 
applicant, the Ranch Vistoso Home Owners Association and the Town’s Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Board to create a Master Recreation Area Plan (see Attachment 3) for the future park 
site. The applicant is responsible for developing half of the park acreage, including all 
associated amenities.  
 
BACKGROUND/DETAILED INFORMATION: 
 
Current Site Conditions 

 

 The property encompasses approximately 115-acres 

 Vacant 

 Located in Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 5 
 

The subject property is designated as Medium-High Density Residential, High Density 
Residential and Resort/Golf Course on the General Plan Future Land Use Map. The site is 
zoned Medium-High Density Residential and Golf/Recreation in the Rancho Vistoso PAD. The 
General Plan and zoning designations for the property and the surrounding area are depicted 
in Attachment 4. 
 
Approvals to Date 
 

 1987: The property was part of the original Rancho Vistoso PAD. 

 2009: A Major General Plan and Planned Area Development Amendments were 
approved for Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 5 

 
The 2009 Major General Plan Amendment for Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 5 shifted a 
number of land uses and involved three noteworthy changes which directly affect the subject 
property. A detailed discussion of those changes is provided below: 
 
1. Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 5 Community Park 

 
The original Rancho Vistoso PAD included specific areas where the development of park 
space was to occur. Currently, Neighborhood 5 is the only residential neighborhood within 
Rancho Vistoso which has not developed this required park space.  
 
As part of the 2009 Major General Plan Amendment, the following condition was included 
regarding the need to develop the park: 
 

“The recreation area adjacent to the old school site (Parcel 5-I) must be improved with 
sufficient recreational elements and amenities to provide meaningful active and passive 
recreation opportunities for the community. The park must be constructed to the 
standards in Section 26.5 of the Oro Valley Zoning Code Revised, or to a standard 



OV1215-14 Mattamy Homes - Alterra at Vistoso Trails  Page 3 of 9 
Conceptual Design Review Board Staff Report 

 
deemed appropriate by the Oro Valley Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (PRAB). 
The park plan must be approved by the PRAB”.  

 
The condition required development of an approximately 6.9-acre community park which would 
serve the needs of the residents within Neighborhood 5 and the greater Rancho Vistoso area.  
The Rancho Vistoso PAD identifies an area in the middle of Big Wash as the original location 
for the recreation area. Following the 2009 Major General Plan Amendment, this location 
became significantly more isolated as the alignment of Moore Road was changed. As a result, 
the area became much less viable and useful as a location for a community park as a majority 
of the population within Neighborhood 5 will be on the west side of Big Wash, completely 
disconnected from the park site.  
 
The relocation of the park and Master Recreation Area Plan proposed by the applicant meets 
the original intent of the General Plan condition. 
 
As such, Town staff (including Planning and Parks and Recreation) worked with the applicant, 
the Rancho Vistoso Home Owners Association and the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
(PRAB) to relocate the park space to a property adjacent to the applicant’s proposed 
subdivision along the new Moore Road Loop. This new location is conveniently located near 
the future school site and provides much better access for the majority of residents within 
Neighborhood 5.  
 
The new location for the community park similarly has a zoning designation of Rancho Vistoso 
PAD – Golf/Rec which supports the use of the land as a recreation area. This new location 
was originally intended to be more passive recreation, while the original park site in the middle 
of the wash was intended for active recreation. The applicant is requesting to switch the parks 
location to meet the intent of the General Plan condition and PAD. 
 
Furthermore, a Master Recreation Area Plan (Attachment 3) was required for the park. In 
developing this plan, staff and the developer have worked with the Rancho Vistoso HOA and 
the Town’s Parks and Recreation Advisory Board. The Master Recreation Area Plan provides 
details regarding the entire 6.9-acre community Park and the applicant is required to provide a 
portion of the overall acreage and with this development. The remainder of the park will be 
completed as part of future residential development within Neighborhood 5.  
 
The Rancho Vistoso HOA supports the proposed park project and the Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Board has recommended approval of the proposal. 

 
2. Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 5 Sewer infrastructure 
 
A second condition that was part of both the 2009 Major General Plan Amendment and PAD 
Amendment addressed future sewer infrastructure needs within Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 
5. The condition: 
 

“Vistoso Partners will install a new gravity sewer line from a connection point on 
Tangerine Road north to the existing lift station serving Sun City Vistoso, Units 9 & 10. 



OV1215-14 Mattamy Homes - Alterra at Vistoso Trails  Page 4 of 9 
Conceptual Design Review Board Staff Report 

 
In addition, a sewer stub-out shall be provided to the boundary of Parcel 5-B in order to 
provide a connection opportunity to relieve the Parcel 5-B lift station should that HOA 
elect to construct such a connection in the future. 
 
The sewer main connection to the existing Sun City lift station shall be constructed 
according to the other timelines set forth in the existing agreement with the 
Amphitheater School District or at the time another development within this amendment 
area generates the need for sewer, as determined by the Town Engineer, whichever is 
required first. The location of the sewer line will be along the west bank of Big Wash and 
will continue by gravity to the closest connection point on Tangerine Road, as dictate by 
Pima County Wastewater Management.” 

 
The intent of the condition was to transition from private to public lift stations because of the 
ongoing costs of maintenance and upkeep. Moving forward, no new private lift stations will be 
permitted for future development. 
 
Town Staff (Planning and Engineering) and the applicant met multiple times with 
representatives of Pima County Wastewater and Sun City to develop an effective and efficient 
sewer concept moving forward.  
 
The bulk of the condition specified use of a gravity feed sewer system connecting Sun City 
with future developments in Neighborhood 5, ultimately connecting south to existing 
infrastructure in Tangerine Road. Pima County Wastewater representatives expressly stated 
public sewer infrastructure would not be permitted to cross Big Wash, effectively making this 
option unfeasible. As such, to meet the intent of the condition, the sewer concept was 
developed with three phases which are outlined below. 
 
Phase 1 – provide a stub-out to serve Parcel 5-B 
 
The Home Owners Association for Parcel 5-B (Monterrey Homes) was contacted and has 
declined the stub-out specified in the condition.  
 
Phase 2 – west side of Big Wash (this development) 
 
A temporary public lift station maintained by Pima County Wastewater will serve the applicant’s 
subdivision until future development occurs along the Moore Road loop to the south, including 
the future Amphitheater school site. When the school is constructed, a permanent public lift 
station will be constructed at the school site to handle wastewater for the developments along 
the Moore Road loop, connecting to the existing infrastructure in the Rancho Vistoso right-of-
way.  
 
Phase 3 – east side of Big Wash (future) 
 
The future development of Parcel 5-H (east of Big Wash) will construct a public lift station 
connecting to the existing infrastructure in Rancho Vistoso Boulevard on the east side of 
Neighborhood 5.  



OV1215-14 Mattamy Homes - Alterra at Vistoso Trails  Page 5 of 9 
Conceptual Design Review Board Staff Report 

 
 
To accommodate the aging system in Sun Vistoso, Pima County Wastewater is considering 
taking over responsibility for the maintenance and upkeep of the aging lift stations.   
 
The proposed concept addresses wastewater needs throughout Neighborhood 5 and provides 
a solution for addressing wastewater infrastructure needs for future residential developments. 
Staff feels the concept meets the original intent of the sewer condition. 
 
3. Moore Road realignment 
 
As part of the original Rancho Vistoso PAD approved in 1987, Moore Road extended across 
Big Wash connecting to both sides of the Rancho Vistoso Boulevard loop. As part of the 
amendment, Moore Road was realigned to its current configuration as a loop road connecting 
on the north with Rancho Vistoso Boulevard and on the south with Arrowsmith Drive (see 
Attachment 5).  
 
There were a number of benefits of realigning the road, however, the two primary justifications 
for the new alignment were: 

 
1) It would serve the future Amphitheater school site which was moved as part of the 

amendment to a parcel northeast of the existing Safeway shopping center; and  
 

2) The new alignment would have significantly less environmental impact by no longer 
crossing Big Wash. 

 
The applicant’s proposal is the first development application along the new Moore Road loop 
extension and represents a significant step for the area. When the loop road is completed, the 
area will see a significant increase in the amount of daily traffic as there are additional vacant 
residential and commercial properties adjoining either side of the road as it extends south. 
Lastly, the loop road will be the sole access to the future Amphitheater school site discussed 
previously.  

 
 
DISCUSSION / ANALYSIS: 
 
A detailed analysis of the Conceptual Site Plan’s, Landscape Plan’s and Master Recreation 
Area Plan’s conformance is provided below.  
 
Conceptual Site Plan 
 
The applicant’s request (Attachment 1 and 2) has the following components: 
 

 The proposal includes 150 detached single-family lots on approximately 115-
acres. Lot sizes range from a minimum of 7,200 sq. ft. to 8,400 sq. ft.  

 Two points of vehicular ingress/egress 

 Buffer yards and landscaped common areas 



OV1215-14 Mattamy Homes - Alterra at Vistoso Trails  Page 6 of 9 
Conceptual Design Review Board Staff Report 

 
 Continuation of the planned multi-use path along Moore Road 

 Bicycle and pedestrian connections 
 
Project details are provided in the table below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Staff has worked extensively with the applicant to improve the vehicular and pedestrian 
network along Moore Road. As noted above, the subdivision incorporates two points of 
ingress/egress and a number of pedestrian connections, including continuation of the planned 
multi-use path along Moore Road. These connections will significantly improve connectivity 
within the area, specifically for the future school site south of the subject property.  
 
Conceptual Landscape Plan 
 
The Conceptual Landscape Plan has been reviewed for conformance with the applicable 
Rancho Vistoso PAD and Zoning Code requirements. The Conceptual Landscape Plan 
includes landscaped entries, as well as landscaping in all common areas. The landscape 
plan preserves a majority of a riparian wash that bisects the property as natural open 
space.  The Landscape Plan meets all applicable Rancho Vistoso PAD and Zoning Code 
requirements.  
 
Master Recreation Area Plan 
 
Staff has worked with the applicant, the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board and the Rancho 
Vistoso HOA to develop a Master Recreation Area Plan (see Attachment 3) for the future park 
site. As discussed previously, the applicant is required to provide a portion of the park in 
conjunction with this development. The park plan encompasses approximately 6.9-acres 
adjacent to the future Moore Road Loop extension and includes the following: 
 
Phase 1 (3.0-acres constructed with this development) 
 

 Ramada w/picnic tables 

 2 play structures (1 tot-lot, 1 older age play structure) 

 Turf area including U-8 soccer field 

 Trailhead connections 

 Drinking fountain 
 

Total lots 150 

Density (du/ac) 0.77 du/ac 

Maximum Building height  30 ft 

Minimum lot size 7,200 sq. ft. 

Average lot size 7,800 sq. ft. 

Open space 46% 



OV1215-14 Mattamy Homes - Alterra at Vistoso Trails  Page 7 of 9 
Conceptual Design Review Board Staff Report 

 
Phase 1 also incorporates a pedestrian underpass between the park space and the residential 
to the north to provide more convenient and safe access to the park.  
 
Phase 2 (3.9-acres constructed with future development) 
 

 Ramada w/picnic table 

 Restroom facilities 

 Free play lawn 

 2 dog parks (1 small dog, 1 large dog) 

 Trailhead connections 

 Drinking fountain 
 
Both the Rancho Vistoso HOA and Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (PRAB) have 
reviewed and support the proposed plan. Furthermore, PRAB has recommended approval of 
the proposed Master Recreation Area Plan.  
 
Rancho Vistoso PAD, Zoning Code Design Principles and Design Standards Analysis 

 
The applicant’s proposal has been reviewed for conformance with the Rancho Vistoso PAD 
Design Standards and the Town of Oro Valley Zoning Code including the Conceptual Design 
Principles and Design Standards. Each is utilized as evaluation criteria for staff and CDRB 
evaluation of the application. The Addendum “A” Design Standards are used as secondary 
guidance, as appropriate. A discussion and analysis of the projects conformance with each is 
provided in Attachment 6. 

 
Engineering 
 
Traffic 
 
The proposed development includes two access points providing ingress/egress from the 
neighborhood onto the Moore Road loop extension. Moore Road will consist of one 
travel lane in each direction separated by a raised median. The road will also incorporate 
dedicated left turn lanes, bike lanes, sidewalks and a multi-use path. The northern 
access will incorporate a traffic circle while the southern access will be a conventional “T” 
style intersection. 
 
This development is similar to the other developed areas of Rancho Vistoso and will not 
generate traffic that is uncharacteristic of the area. The existing roadway network within 
Rancho Vistoso and the surrounding areas have existing capacity to accommodate the 
anticipated traffic volume. 
 
Drainage 
 
Existing storm water runoff flows through the site in a southeasterly direction.  The 
drainage system for the proposed development will be designed to meet the Town’s 
Drainage Criteria Manual and Floodplain Ordinance requirements. Storm water runoff 



OV1215-14 Mattamy Homes - Alterra at Vistoso Trails  Page 8 of 9 
Conceptual Design Review Board Staff Report 

 
will be conveyed by drainage channels, storm drains, culverts, and basins throughout the 
development. The development is required to mimic existing conditions by not increasing 
or decreasing the amount of post-developed runoff.  
 
The development encroaches into a Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 
Flood Zone, which will require an official map revision to be filed with the Agency.  
 
The development is required to elevate structures above the regulatory floodplain and 
will incorporate appropriate bank stabilization and erosion mitigation.  
 
Grading 
 
A Type 2 Grading Permit is required to construct the utilities, street, and any other 
structures requiring grading on the project site. The grading represented within the 
Conceptual Site Plan conforms to the requirements of the Rancho Vistoso PAD and 
applicable sections of the Town’s Zoning Code as well as the Town’s Subdivision Street 
Standards.  

 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
Neighborhood Meetings 
 
One neighborhood meeting was held on September 15, 2014 regarding the applicant’s 
proposal. Approximately 20 residents attended the meeting. The primary topics discussed 
during the meeting included: 
 

 Traffic: Neighbors voiced concern about the increased level of traffic at the intersection 
of Moore Road and Rancho Vistoso Boulevard. Staff discussed the future signal to be 
located at the intersection and its eventual impact on current traffic conditions.  
 

 Lighting: Neighbors were concerned about the potential impacts from light pollution from 
the Community Park. Staff discussed the need to meet the existing lighting code 
requirements. 
 

A copy of the neighborhood meeting minutes have been provided in Attachment 7. 
 
No additional correspondence has been received by staff.  

 
 
CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the following findings: 
 

 The request is in conformance with the Rancho Vistoso Planned Area Development and 
Town of Oro Valley Zoning Code 



OV1215-14 Mattamy Homes - Alterra at Vistoso Trails  Page 9 of 9 
Conceptual Design Review Board Staff Report 

 
 The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board has recommended approval of the Master 

Recreation Area Plan. 

 
Recommend approval to Town Council of the Mattamy Homes Conceptual Site Plan, 
Landscape Plan and Master Recreation Area Plan. 

 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
I MOVE to recommend approval of the Mattamy Homes Conceptual Site Plan, Landscape Plan 
and Master Recreation Area Plan, based on the findings in the staff report. 
 
      OR 
 
I MOVE to recommend denial of the Mattamy Homes Conceptual Site Plan, Landscape Plan 
and Master Recreation Area Plan finding that _______________________________. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Conceptual Site Plan and Landscape Plan 
2. Master Recreation Area Plan 
3. Location Map 
4. General Plan and Zoning Maps 
5. 2009 General Plan Amendment summary 
6. Rancho Vistoso PAD, Design Principles and Design Standards Analysis 
7. Neighborhood Meeting Summary 

 
       
 

___________________________________________ 
     Bayer Vella AICP, Planning Manager 



September 29, 2016 Conceptual Design Review Board Page 1 of 7 

MINUTES  
ORO VALLEY CONCEPTUAL DESIGN REVIEW BOARD  

SPECIAL SESSION  
September 20, 2016  

ORO VALLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
11000 N. LA CANADA DRIVE  

   
SPECIAL SESSION AT OR AFTER 6:00 PM  
 

CALL TO ORDER  
 

Chair Eggerding called the September 20, 2016, Special Session of the Oro Valley 
Conceptual Design Review Board to order at 6:00 pm. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

Chair Eggerding led the members of the Board and Audience in the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 

ROLL CALL  
 

PRESENT:  Dick Eggerding, Chair  
Bruce Wyckoff, Vice Chair  
Sarah Chen, Member  
Nathan Basken, Member  
Hal Linton, Member  
Jacob Herrington, Member  
Kit Donley, Member 
 

ABSENT:   None 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Vice Mayor Waters 

Council Member Hornat 
Joe Andrews, Chief Civil Deputy Attorney 

 

CALL TO AUDIENCE  
 
There were no speaker requests. 
 

COUNCIL LIAISON COMMENTS  
 

There were no Council comments for this meeting. 
 

1. REVIEW AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 9, 2016 REGULAR SESSION 
MEETING MINUTES 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206384
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206386
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206388
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206390
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206391
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206391


September 29, 2016 Conceptual Design Review Board Page 2 of 7 

 
Member Linton requested a change to the August 9, 2016 minutes noting he abstained 
from Item 4. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Chair Wyckoff and seconded by Member 
Herrington to approve the August 9, 2016 regular session meeting minutes. 
 

MOTION carried, 7-0.  
 

2. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON REQUESTS RELATED TO A 
PROPOSED ASSISTED LIVING AND MEMORY CARE FACILITY LOCATED AT 
9005 N ORACLE ROAD, OV1601387  

 

Robert Kirschman, Senior Planner, provided a presentation that included the following: 
 
- Purpose 
- Parking Space Deviation 
- Conceptual Site Plan 
- Alternative Parking Ratio 
- Conceptual Landscape Plan 
- Senior Care Requirements 
- Surrounding Development 
- Neighborhood Meeting Information 
 

Matt Booma, Senior Vice President of Development of CA Ventures, representing the 
developer and owner, provided a presentation that included the following: 
 
- Zoning Within Base Standards 
- Building Elevations 
- Technical Site Plan 
- Roof Mounted Elevations 
 

Key topics raised by the Board: 
 
- Roof mounted air conditioning units 
- Proposed parking numbers and how to manage on special days 
- Follow up question on shuttle buses if parking full 
- Window treatments on second floor in regards to afternoon sun 
- Concern or compromise of parking ratio and how to know that clients will not  
   be driving 
- Traffic flow for emergency vehicles 
- Total occupancy at peak capacity is 104 residents  
- Significant vegetation relocation 
- Internal garbage enclosure clarification and trash pickup 
- One way counter clockwise traffic 
- Concern of parking and people needing to park offsite.   

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206393
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206393
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206393


September 29, 2016 Conceptual Design Review Board Page 3 of 7 

- Where is the nearest bus stop? 
- Likelihood of public transportation higher in other cities and needing a plan for  
   better parking management 
- Questioned on if ratio between Memory Care and Assisted Living clients absolute 
- Breakdown of caregivers to service personnel 
 

Chairman Eggerding opened the Public Hearing. 
 

There were no speaker requests. 
 

Chairman Eggerding closed the Public Hearing. 
 

Member Linton suggested an additional condition be added requiring the owner to 
monitor the parking situation. 
 

Chad Daines, Principal Planner, recommended that the Board take action on alternative 
parking ratio, without the suggested condition. 
 

MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Chair Wyckoff and seconded by Member Chen 
to recommend approval to Town Council of the Oro Valley Senior Living Facility 
Conceptual Site Plan (including alternative parking ratio, waiver from separate 
pedestrian access ways and significant vegetation reduction), Landscape Plan and 
Recreation Area Plan subject to the condition in Attachment 1.  
 

MOTION carried, 7-0.  
 

MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Chair Wyckoff and seconded by Member 
Herrington to recommend approval to Town Council of the Oro Valley Senior Care 
Facility Conceptual Architecture.  
 

MOTION carried, 7-0.  
 

3. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING A PROPOSED 
CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN, LANDSCAPE PLAN AND MASTER RECREATION 
AREA PLAN FOR THE ALTERRA AT VISTOSO TRAILS SUBDIVISION, 
LOCATED HALF MILE EAST OF MOORE ROAD AND RANCHO VISTOSO 
BOULEVARD, OV1215-14 

 

Chad Daines, Principal Planner, provided a presentation that included the following: 
 
- Conceptual Site Plan 
- General Plan Conditions 
- Park Amenities 
- Neighborhood Meetings 
- Moore Road 
- Park broken into 2 phases 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206412
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206412
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206412
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206412
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206412


September 29, 2016 Conceptual Design Review Board Page 4 of 7 

Key Topics raised by the Board: 
 
- Inquiry on length of time since the neighborhood meeting 
- Moore Road Alignment 
- Rational of dividing the park into two phases 
- Traffic Circle 
- Continuation of Moore Road as a future Right of Way 
- Assurance of Moore Road continuing to Arrowsmith Drive, whether public or  
   private 
 

Paul Oland, The WLB Group, representing the property owner, Mattamy 
Homes, provided a presentation that included the following: 
 
- Vistoso Trails 
- Additional Neighborhood Meetings 
- Second Part of Moore Rd is Separate Ownership 
 

Key Topics Raised by the Board: 
 
- Wash flow direction and question whether water needed pumping 
- Sewer versus Lift Station 
- Sewage pump stations back up generators 
- Park Share Agreement with the three different phases 
- Park amenities that Mattamy Homes are responsible for in Phase One 
- Question on shaded play areas 
- Comment on open space conservation 
 

Chair Eggerding opened the Public Hearing 
 

Paul Loomis, Oro Valley Resident, spoke regarding the following issues: 
 
- Main concern regarding notification to homebuyers of public trails 
- Partial Park Concern 
 

The Board questioned public access to trail systems.  
 
- Chad Daines, Principal Planner, stated the Board could recommend a condition be  
  added to the CC&R's notifying residents of nearby public trail systems and activities.   
 
Board inquired about the possibility of the park being built in one phase. 
 

MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Chair Wyckoff and seconded by Member 
Herrington recommend approval of the Mattamy Homes Conceptual Site Plan, 
Landscape Plan, and Master Recreation Area Plan, based on the findings in the staff 
report, and condition be added to the CC&R's notifying owners of the nearby public 
access to trails in the area.  
 



September 29, 2016 Conceptual Design Review Board Page 5 of 7 

MOTION carried, 7-0.  
 

4. PUBLIC HEARING ON REQUESTS RELATED TO THE NAKOMA SKY SENIOR 
LIVING FACILITY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 1ST AVENUE 
AND NARANJA DRIVE, OV1601351  

 

Chad Daines, Principal Planner, provided a presentation that included the following: 
 
- Site Plan / Landscape Plan 
- Tentative Development Plan 
- Grading Exception 
- Interconnected Paths and Trails 
- Senior Care Requirements 
- Separated Pedestrian Access Ways  
- Recreation Plan 
- Rezoning Architectural Concept 
- Architectural Concept 
 

Keri Silvyn, Esq., with Lazarus, Silvyn, & Bangs, representing Nakoma Sky, provided 
information regarding the following: 
 
- Height 
- Grading Waiver 
- Cut and Fill Strategy 
 

Member Linton questioned if there are any special requirements in regards to building 
on filled land. 
 

Member Wyckoff suggested presenting each item separately. 
 

Chairman Eggerding opened the Public Hearing. 
 

Paul Loomis, Oro Valley Resident, voiced concern regarding Water Detention Retention 
Waiver. 
 

Key Topics raised by the Board regarding grading exception: 
 
- Had a drainage report had been completed? 
- Were any problems and/or remedies with the drainage waiver? 
 

Chairman Eggerding Closed the Public Hearing. 
 

MOTION: A motion was made by Member Donley and seconded by Vice Chair Wyckoff 
recommend approval to Town Council of the Nakoma Sky Senior Living Facility Grading 
Exception, subject to the conditions in Attachment 1.  
 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206431
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206431
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206431


September 29, 2016 Conceptual Design Review Board Page 6 of 7 

MOTION carried, 7-0.  
 

Jeff Grobstein, Oro Valley Resident, stated his full support of the development. 
 

Member Linton questioned whether a bridge could be built across the wash to Oracle 
Road. 
 

MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Chair Wyckoff and seconded by Member Basken 
to approve recommendation to Town Council of the Nakoma Sky Senior Living Facility 
Conceptual Site Plan (including waiver of separated pedestrian access ways), 
Landscape Plan, and Recreation Area Plan, subject to the conditions in Attachment 1.  
 

MOTION carried, 7-0.  
 

Gary Koerner, President, Three Living Architects, provided a presentation addressing 
color palette issues and other minor changes since the August 9, 2016 meeting.. 
 

MOTION: A motion was made by Member Chen and seconded by Vice Chair Wyckoff 
recommend approval to Town Council of the Nakoma Sky Senior Living Facility 
Architecture.  
 

MOTION carried, 7-0.  
 

PLANNING UPDATE (INFORMATIONAL ONLY)  
 
Chad Daines, Principal Planner, presented the Planning Update: 
 
- Conceptual Design Review Board, October 11 may be cancelled 
- September 21 Town Council Meeting three upcoming items 
- October 5 Town Council Meeting two upcoming items 
- No Upcoming Neighborhood Meetings 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 

MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Chair Wyckoff and seconded by Member 
Herrington adjourn was made by Bruce Wyckoff, Vice Chair and seconded by Jacob 
Herrington, Member to adjourn the Conceptual Design Review Board at 7:58 pm.  
 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206461
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2532&meta_id=206463


1 of 2 

 
 

 

 
PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD REPORT 

 
DATE:  November 9, 2015 
 
TO:  Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (PRAB) 
 
FROM:  Bayer Vella, Planning Manager 
  Michael Spaeth, Senior Planner 
 
SUBJECT: Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 5 Community Park 
 

 
This purpose of this agenda item is for the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (PRAB) to 
review and provide a recommendation to Town Council regarding a proposed Conceptual 
Master Recreation Area Plan in Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 5.  
 
A projected timeline of the remaining steps required for park approval is provided at the end of 
this memo. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Staff and the applicant, Mattamy Homes, met with the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
(PRAB) on May 26, 2015 regarding a proposed community park to be constructed in Rancho 
Vistoso Neighborhood 5 along the future Moore Road loop. During the meeting, staff outlined 
the code requirements for development of the park and committed to return to PRAB to 
present a concept plan for the park. 
 
Following the PRAB meeting in May, staff and the applicant met with board members from the 
Rancho Vistoso Homeowners Association to discuss design and programming for the park. 
Subsequently, the applicant has met individually with the Homeowners Association on several 
occasions to continue discussions regarding the desired design and programming. The 
concept master recreation area plan developed as a result of these meetings is provided in 
Attachment 1. 
 
The proposed park will be located along the future Moore Road loop (Attachment 2) and will 
incorporate numerous amenities, including: 
 

 Dog park 

 Grass fields 

 Ramada’s with picnic tables 

 Shaded play structures                    

 Restroom facilities 

 Multiple trailheads  

 Parking  

 (1 tot-lot and 1 elementary school age) 
 
In July, Town Council approved two applications, a Minor General Plan and Planned Area 
Development Amendment, which established the conditions of approval (Attachment 3) for 
development of the park. The conditions specify the review, timing of development and 



2 of 2 

general location of the proposed park. The park will be constructed in conjunction with a future 
proposed subdivision (on Rancho Vistoso Neighborhood 5 parcels G, K and V) immediately 
adjacent to the proposed park. 
 
The conditions of approval require PRAB approval of the master recreation area plan in 
conjunction with Town Council consideration of the conceptual site plan for the proposed 
subdivision. A projected timeline for key dates regarding the proposed park and correlating 
conceptual site plan is provided below. 
 
Timeline 
 

 November 17, 2015:  Consideration of concept plan for recommendation 

 February 9, 2016: Conceptual Design Review Board consideration of the 
conceptual site plan. 

 March 16, 2016: Town Council consideration of the conceptual site plan, 
including the proposed master recreation area plan. 

 
RECOMMENDATION / CONCLUSION: Recommend approval of the Concept Master 
Recreation Area Plan. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Concept Master Recreation Area Plan 
2. Proposed park location 
3. Conditions of Approval for the associated Conceptual Site Plan 



MINUTES 

ORO VALLEY PARKS & RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 

REGULAR SESSION 

Hopi Conference Room 

11000 N. La Canada Drive 

ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA 85737  

  

Tuesday, November 17, 2015 
   

CALL TO ORDER AT OR AFTER 6:00 PM 
 

Chair Wade called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

PRESENT:  Adam Wade, Chair  

Sue Bishop, Member  

Betty Danker, Member  

Alison Sutton-Ryan, Member  

 

EXCUSED:  Sarah Corning, Member  

Thomas Carle, Member  

 

Staff Present: Kristy Diaz-Trahan, Parks and Recreation Director 

                     Mary Snider, Councilmember 

                     Michael Spaeth, Senior Planner 

                     Jeanna Ancona, Senior Office Specialist 

 

CALL TO AUDIENCE - At this time, any member of the public is allowed to address the 

Parks & Recreation Advisory Board on any issue not listed on today’s agenda.  Pursuant to 

the Arizona Open Meeting Law, individual Board members may ask Town staff to review 

the matter, ask that the matter be placed on a future agenda, or respond to criticism made 

by speakers.  However, the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board may not discuss or take 

legal action on matters raised during "Call to Audience."  In order to speak during "Call 

to Audience" please specify what you wish to discuss when completing the blue speaker 

card. 

 

2. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE THE PROPOSED RANCHO 

VISTOSO NEIGHBORHOOD 5 COMMUNITY PARK, LOCATED NEAR THE 

FUTURE MOORE ROAD LOOP EXTENSION, APPROXIMATELY ¼-MILE EAST 

OF RANCHO VISTOSO BOULEVARD  

 

Click here for report 

 

 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=9&clip_id=2322&meta_id=188868
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=9&clip_id=2322&meta_id=188869
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=9&clip_id=2322&meta_id=188870
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=9&clip_id=2322&meta_id=188870
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=9&clip_id=2322&meta_id=188870
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=9&clip_id=2322&meta_id=188870
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=9&clip_id=2322&meta_id=188870
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=9&clip_id=2322&meta_id=188870
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=9&clip_id=2322&meta_id=188870
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=9&clip_id=2322&meta_id=188870
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=9&clip_id=2322&meta_id=188873
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=9&clip_id=2322&meta_id=188873
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=9&clip_id=2322&meta_id=188873
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=9&clip_id=2322&meta_id=188873
http://orovalley.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=9&clip_id=2322&meta_id=188874


Michael Spaeth, Senior Planner for the Department of Development and Infrastructure 

Services, presented an overview of the historical background, recreation uses and project 

timeline for the proposed park. Gary Grizzle of The WLB Group, representing Mattamy Homes, 

presented slides of plans for the 6.9 acre park developed in conjunction with the Rancho Vistoso 

HOA. Residents' top five amenities desired: dog park, open play turf area, tot lot, hiking/walking 

trails and ramadas/picnic tables. Developed master plan based on resident feedback. Work will 

be completed in two phases. Restrooms will be completed in Phase Two. Concerns were raised 

regarding the restrooms being needed sooner. Pat Straney, president of the Ranch Vistoso HOA 

explained the cost of building and maintaining the restrooms versus the beginning slower use of 

this private community park. Dennis Ottley, Rancho Vistoso HOA Treasurer stated that 

homeowner dues would increase in order to pay for cost of building and maintaining. Kristy 

Diaz-Trahan, Parks and Recreation Director stated that building a restroom in Phase One would 

take away some of the amenities to offset the cost. 

 

MOTION: A motion was made by Member Bishop and seconded by Member Danker approve 

the master plan as presented.  

 

MOTION carried, 4-0.  

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Chair Wade adjourned the meeting at 8:29 p.m. 

 

 

  

  
 

http://orovalley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=9&clip_id=2322&meta_id=188887


   
Town Council Regular Session Item #   3.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2016  
Requested by: Bayer Vella 
Submitted By: Michael Spaeth, Development Infrastructure Services
Department: Development Infrastructure Services

Information
SUBJECT:
PUBLIC HEARING: DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING A
PROPOSED GRADING EXCEPTION FOR THE SANCTUARY AT SILVERHAWKE
SUBDIVISION, LOCATED NEAR THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 1ST AVENUE AND
NARANJA DRIVE

RECOMMENDATION:
The Conceptual Design Review Board will consider the applicant's request during the
November 10, 2016 meeting. The Board's recommendation will be forwarded to Town
Council following the meeting.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The applicant’s request (Attachment 2) is for a grading exception for parts of the
proposed subdivision, to allow cuts in excess of the 6 feet currently allowed by the
zoning code. The subject property (Attachment 3) is located near the northeast corner of
1st Avenue and Naranja Drive. An application to develop 44 single-family homes on the
property is currently under final review by staff.
 
The existing intersection at 1st Avenue and Naranja Drive established where access
would be provided for any future subdivision on the property. As such, there is a
substantial grade difference between the existing intersection and the surrounding grade
where the access point is to be located. The applicant’s request to exceed the cut
limitations will permit the roadway to be designed in a safe and efficient manner as
required by the Town’s Subdivision Street Standards.

The applicant’s proposal is consistent with the grading exception review criteria of the
Zoning Code and is supported by staff, subject to the condition listed in Attachment 1.

The Conceptual Design Review Board will consider the applicant's request on November
10, 2016. The Board's recommendation will be forwarded to Town Council following the
meeting.



BACKGROUND OR DETAILED INFORMATION:
Current Site Conditions 

The property encompasses approximately 131 acres
Currently vacant

The General Plan and Zoning designations for the property are Master Planned
Community and R1-144 respectively. Maps of the subject property and the surrounding
area are provided in Attachments 4 and 5.
 
Approvals to Date 

1994:            Property annexed into the Town
2015:            Conceptual Site Plan and Landscape Plan approved by Town Council

DISCUSSION / ANALYSIS:

Grading Exception:
 
A Final Site Plan is currently under final review for a 44-lot single-family residential
subdivision (Attachment 6). Subdivision access is provided by a connection to the
existing intersection at 1st Avenue and Naranja Drive. This existing intersection was
designed to serve a future subdivision on the subject property.
 
This entry is one of two access points for the subdivision, the other serving two lots
located off Palisades Road, and will serve as the primary access for a majority of the
subdivision. The 1st Avenue access will also serve as the sole entry point for the future
Lofts at Oro Valley development located east of the subject property.
 
The Zoning Code establishes limitations on the heights of cuts and fills permitted within a
development. The maximum height of any cut or fill cannot exceed 6 feet, unless a
grading exception is granted by Town Council, following recommendation of the
Conceptual Design Review Board. The applicant has submitted a grading exception
application, which is provided as Attachment 2.
 
The grading exception is necessary for the following reasons: 

There is a substantial grade difference (approximately 12 to 15 feet) between the
existing road profile for the intersection and the area of the proposed access point
(Exhibit “C” in Attachment 2).
Without the grading exception, a less safe and desirable road design would be built.

The Zoning Code provides evaluative criteria for the review of a grading exception. The
applicant's request, with conditions, is consistent with the review criteria. A summary of
the proposals conformance with the criteria is provided in Attachment 7.
  
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

Neighborhood Meeting
 



A neighborhood meeting is not required by the Zoning Code. Public notice was provided
to surrounding property owners and all Home Owners Associations. To date, no public
comment has been provided.

 
Conceptual Design Review Board

The Conceptual Design Review Board (CDRB) will consider the applicant's request on
November 10, 2016. The Board's recommendation will be forwarded to Town Council
following the meeting. The CDRB staff report is included as Attachments 8.

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION:
I MOVE to approve the grading exception for the Sanctuary at Silverhawke subdivision,
subject to the conditions in Attachment 1.
 
OR
 
I MOVE to deny the grading exception for the Sanctuary at Silverhawke subdivision
finding _______________________________.
 

Attachments
ATTACHMENT 1 - CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
ATTACHMENT 2 - APPLICANT'S PROPOSAL 
ATTACHMENT 3 - LOCATION MAP 
ATTACHMENT 4 - GENERAL PLAN LAND USE MAP 
ATTACHMENT 5 - ZONING MAP 
ATTACHMENT 6 - FINAL SITE PLAN 
ATTACHMENT 7 - GRADING EXCEPTION ANALYSIS 
ATTACHMENT 8 - CDRB STAFF REPORT 



ATTACHMENT 1 
SANCTUARY AT SILVERHAWKE – GRADING EXCEPTION 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 

Planning Conditions 
 
1. The grading exception is limited as described and depicted in Attachment 2. The site 

shall conform to all other requirements relating to grading provided in the Zoning 
Code.  

2. All cut slopes shall be treated with a restorative agent and revegetated to reflect 
existing native vegetation. All areas of disturbance shall be recontoured to mimic 
existing grades. 

 

















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBJECT PROPERTY MAP 
SANCTUARY AT SILVERHAWKE 

 (OV1602831) 
 

 

 

                                                                                               Attachment 3 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL PLAN MAP 
SANCTUARY AT SILVERHAWKE 

 (OV1602831) 
 

 

 

                                                                                               Attachment 4 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ZONING MAP 
SANCTUARY AT SILVERHAWKE 

 (OV1602831) 
 

 

 

                                                                                               Attachment 5 



























ATTACHMENT 7 
SANCTUARY AT SILVERHAWKE – GRADING EXCEPTION 

GRADING EXCEPTION REVIEW CRITERIA ANALYSIS 
 

The Zoning Code provides evaluative criteria for the review of a grading exception. A summary of the 
proposals conformance with the criteria is provided in Attachment 6. 

1. The exception meets the intent and purpose of this code; 
  
The intent of the grading ordinance is summarized below: 

 Avoid adverse visual impacts 

 Blend with the natural contours of the land 

 Restrict the amount of disturbance to the minimum necessary 

 Ensure adequate restorative measures are utilized to minimize visual impacts.  

Staff Comment: A majority of the site is being designed and constructed within the requirements of the 
grading ordinance and standards listed above. Due to the access issues discussed earlier, the exception 
is necessary to provide for reasonable and efficient use of the subject property. Conditions have been 
included in Attachment 1 to require treatment of all impacted areas to minimize any potential visual 
impacts. The applicant’s proposal is consistent with the intent of the grading ordinance. 
  
The purpose of the grading ordinance is as follows: 
  
The purpose of the ordinance is to provide for the public health, safety and welfare and to protect and 
preserve the aesthetics of the natural environment through regulation of all types of excavation and 
earthwork on private and public land. 
  
The grading regulations contained in this ordinance are designed to: 

 Regulate the development of potentially hazardous terrain; and 

 Preserve, where possible, or recreate the natural contours, the native vegetation and the visual 
character of the site in harmony with the surrounding terrain; and 

 Enhance the quality and value of new development; and 

 Maintain property rights and property values of adjacent developed and undeveloped parcels. 

Staff Comment: As discussed previously, the exception is necessary to provide for reasonable and 
efficient use of the subject property. The grade difference between the existing intersection and the 
surrounding topography presents a significant challenge in providing safe and desirable access to the 
subject property. Additionally, conditions have been included in Attachment 1 to require revegetation and 
recontouring of all impacted areas to minimize any potential visual impacts. The applicant’s proposal is 
consistent with the purpose of this ordinance. 

2. Granting the exception constitutes the minimum to allow the improvement; 
   
Staff Comment: The exception is intended to help facilitate construction of an access point to the existing 
intersection of 1st Avenue and Naranja Drive. A condition has been included in Attachment 1, limiting the 
impacted areas to those which help achieve this aim, as depicted on Exhibit “B” in Attachment 3. The 
applicant’s proposal represents the minimum exception necessary to provide safe and efficient access to 
the subdivision. The applicant’s proposal meets this criteria. 

3. The conditions on the property are unique such that strict adherence to this section would cause an 
unnecessary hardship which substantially limits the preservation and enjoyment of property rights; 



  
Staff Comment: As discussed previously, the grade difference between the existing intersection and 
the surrounding topography is substantial (approximately 12 to 15 feet). As a result, without the 
grading exception, a less desirable and potentially less safe road design would be required. The 
grading exception would allow the applicant to construct the access way in a more desirable and safe 
manner. The applicant’s proposal meets this criteria. 

4. The exception imposes conditions so as to not constitute granting of a special privilege; and 

Staff Comment: Conditions have been included in Attachment 1 which (1) limit the area where the 
exception is applicable; and (2) how the impacted areas will be treated to minimize any potential visual 
impacts. The proposal, with conditions, is consistent with this criteria. 

5. That the exception will not be materially detrimental to person’s residing in the vicinity, to adjacent 
property, to the neighborhood or the public welfare in general. 

Staff Comment: The applicant is required to revegetate all exposed slopes and restore them to mimic 
natural conditions. The revegetation of the cut slops and recontouring of the graded areas will ensure the 
engineered slopes have a minimal impact on those residing in the area as well as the greater Oro Valley 
population. The applicant’s request, with the conditions, meets this criteria. 

 



Grading exception  
Conceptual Design Review Board Staff Report 

 
 

CASE NUMBER:  OV1602831 – Sanctuary at Silverhawke grading exception 
 
MEETING DATE:   November 10, 2016 

 
AGENDA ITEM:   
 
STAFF CONTACT:  Michael Spaeth, Senior Planner 
    mspaeth@orovalleyaz.gov (520) 229-4812 

 
 
Applicant:   Paul Oland, The WLB Group Inc  
 
Request: Grading exception for the Sanctuary at Silverhawke 

subdivision.  
 
Location: Northeast corner of 1st Avenue and Naranja Drive 
 
Recommendation: Recommend approval of requested Grading exception, subject to 

the condition listed in Attachment 1. 
 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
The applicant’s request is for a grading exception to allow cuts in excess of the 6 feet currently 
allowed by the zoning code for parts of the proposed subdivision. The subject property 
(Attachment 2) is located near the northeast corner of 1st Avenue and Naranja Drive. An 
application to develop 44 single-family homes on the property is currently under final review by 
staff.  
 
The existing intersection at 1st Avenue and Naranja Drive established where access would be 
provided for any future subdivision on the property (Attachment 3). As such, there is a 
substantial grade difference between the existing intersection and the surrounding grade 
where the proposed access point is to be located. The applicant’s request to exceed the cut 
limitations will permit the access point to be designed in a safe and efficient manner as 
required by the Town’s Subdivision Street Standards.  
 
The zoning code establishes criteria for evaluating grading exception requests. The applicant’s 
proposal is consistent with these criteria and is supported by staff, subject to the condition 
listed in Attachment 1.  
 
BACKGROUND/DETAILED INFORMATION: 
 
Current Site Conditions 

 

 The property encompasses approximately 131 acres 

mailto:mspaeth@orovalleyaz.gov


OV1602831 Sanctuary at Silverhawke – Grading Exception Page 2 of 6 
Conceptual Design Review Board Staff Report 

 
 Currently vacant 

 
The General Plan and Zoning designations for the property are Master Planned Community 
and R1-144 respectively. Maps of the subject property and the surrounding area are provided 
in Attachments 3 and 4 respectively. 
 
Approvals to Date 
 

 1994:  Property annexed into the Town 

 2015:  Conceptual Site Plan and Landscape Plan approved by Town Council  

 
 
DISCUSSION / ANALYSIS: 
 
Grading Exception: 
 
A Final Site Plan is currently under review for a 44-lot single-family residential subdivision 
(Attachment 5). Subdivision access is provided by a connection to the existing intersection at 
1st Avenue and Naranja Drive. This existing intersection was designed to serve a future 
subdivision on the subject property. 

 
This entry is one of two access points for the subdivision, the other serving two lots located off 
Palisades Road, but will serve as the primary access for a majority of the subdivision. The 1st 
Avenue access will also serve as the sole entry point for the future Lofts at Oro Valley 
development located east of the subject property.  

 
The Zoning Code establishes limitations on the heights of cuts and fills proposed within a 
development. The maximum height of any cut or fill cannot exceed 6 feet, unless a grading 
exception is granted by Town Council, following recommendation of the Conceptual Design 
Review Board. The applicant has submitted a grading exception application, which is provided 
as Attachment 3. 
 
The grading exception is necessary for the following reasons: 
 

 There is a substantial grade difference (approximately 12 to 15 feet) between the 
existing road profile for the intersection and the area of the proposed access point 
(Exhibit “C” in Attachment 3). 

 Without the grading exception, a less safe and desirable road design would be built. 
 
The Zoning Code provides evaluative criteria for the review of a grading exception. A 
summary of the proposals conformance with the criteria is provided below.  
 

I. The exception meets the intent and purpose of this code; 
 

 



OV1602831 Sanctuary at Silverhawke – Grading Exception Page 3 of 6 
Conceptual Design Review Board Staff Report 

 
The intent of the grading ordinance is as follows: 
 
The intent of this grading ordinance is to assure that the design and implementation of all 

grading projects shall: 

1. Avoid scarring and other adverse visual impacts resulting from cut, fill and 

any other type of ground disturbance; and 

2. Blend with the natural contours of the land; and 

3. Restrict the areas of disturbance and volume of material displaced to the 

minimum necessary to implement the planned development; and 

4. Limit mass grading to residential subdivisions with an average lot size of 

15,000 square feet or less; and  

5. Employ measures that: 

a. Ensure that graded hillside, slopes or other areas subject to erosion 

are stabilized; and 

b. Reduce the erosion effects of storm water discharge, preserve the 

flood carrying capacity of natural or constructed waterways by 

limiting soil loss, and protect drainageways from siltation; and 

c. Minimize dust pollution and surface water drainage from graded 

areas during grading development; and 

d. Ensure that proposed development activity is designed and 

implemented to avoid adverse impacts and appropriate restorative 

measures; and 

e. Encourage phased projects, to preserve natural contours and 

vegetative communities until such time as grading must be 

necessarily occur on-site. 

Staff Comment: A majority of the site is being designed and constructed within the 
requirements of the grading ordinance and standards listed above. Due to the access 
issues discussed earlier, the exception is necessary to provide for reasonable and 
efficient use of the subject property. Conditions have been included in Attachment 1 to 
require treatment of all impacted areas to minimize any potential visual impacts. The 
applicant’s proposal is consistent with the intent of the grading ordinance.  
 
The purpose of the grading ordinance is as follows: 
 
The purpose of the ordinance is to provide for the public health, safety and welfare and 
to protect and preserve the aesthetics of the natural environment through regulation of all 
types of excavation and earthwork on private and public land. 
 



OV1602831 Sanctuary at Silverhawke – Grading Exception Page 4 of 6 
Conceptual Design Review Board Staff Report 

 
The grading regulations contained in this ordinance are designed to: 

 
1. Regulate the development of potentially hazardous terrain; and 

2. Preserve, where possible, or recreate the natural contours, the native 
vegetation and the visual character of the site in harmony with the 
surrounding terrain; and 

3. Enhance the quality and value of new development; and 

4. Maintain property rights and property values of adjacent developed and 
undeveloped parcels. 

Staff Comment: As discussed previously, the exception is necessary to provide for 
reasonable and efficient use of the subject property. The grade difference between the 
existing intersection and the surrounding topography presents a significant challenge in 
providing safe and desirable access to the subject property. Additionally, conditions have 
been included in Attachment 1 to require revegetation and recontouring of all impacted 
areas to minimize any potential visual impacts. The applicant’s proposal is consistent 
with the purpose of this ordinance.  
 

II. Granting the exception constitutes the minimum to allow the improvement; 
 

Staff Comment: The exception is intended to help facilitate construction of an access 
point to the existing intersection of 1st Avenue and Naranja Drive. A condition has been 
included in Attachment 1, limiting the impacted areas to those which help achieve this 
aim, as depicted on Exhibit “B” in Attachment 3. The applicant’s proposal represents the 
minimum exception necessary to provide safe and efficient access to the subdivision. 
The applicant’s proposal meets this criteria. 
 

III. The conditions on the property are unique such that strict adherence to this 
section would cause an unnecessary hardship which substantially limits the 
preservation and enjoyment of property rights; 
 

Staff Comment: As discussed previously, the grade difference between the existing 
intersection and the surrounding topography is substantial (approximately 12 to 15 feet). 
As a result, without the grading exception, a less desirable and potentially less safe road 
design would be required. The grading exception would allow the applicant to construct 
the access way in a more desirable and safe manner. The applicant’s proposal meets 
this criteria. 
 

IV. The exception imposes conditions so as to not constitute granting of a special 
privilege; and 
 

Staff Comment: Conditions have been included in Attachment 1 which (1) limit the area 
where the exception is applicable; and (2) how the impacted areas will be treated to 
minimize any potential visual impacts. The proposal, with conditions, is consistent with 
this criteria. 



OV1602831 Sanctuary at Silverhawke – Grading Exception Page 5 of 6 
Conceptual Design Review Board Staff Report 

 
 

V. That the exception will not be materially detrimental to person’s residing in the 
vicinity, to adjacent property, to the neighborhood or the public welfare in 
general. 

 
Staff Comment: The applicant is required to revegetate all exposed slopes and restore them 
to mimic natural conditions. The revegetation of the cut slops and recontouring of the graded 
areas will ensure the engineered slopes have a minimal impact on those residing in the area 
as well as the greater Oro Valley population. The applicant’s request, with the conditions, 
meets this criteria.  

 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
Neighborhood Meetings 
 
A neighborhood meeting is not required by the Zoning Code. Public notice was provided to 
surrounding property owners and all Home Owners Associations within the Town.  

 
 
CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the following findings: 
 

 Without the exception, the grade difference between the existing intersection and the 
proposed access road would result in a less safe and less desirable road design.   

 The grading exception is limited in scope to allow for the efficient use of the site given 
the existing topography. 

 The primary intent of the grading ordinance is met, which is to minimize impact to 
adjacent properties. 
 

Recommend approval to Town Council of the grading exception for the Sanctuary at 
Silverhawke subdivision, subject to the conditions in Attachment 1. 

 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
I MOVE to recommend approval of the grading exception for the Sanctuary at Silverhawke 
subdivision, subject to the conditions on Attachment 1. 
 
      OR 
 
I MOVE to recommend denial of the grading exception for the Sanctuary at Silverhawke 
subdivision finding _______________________________. 

 
 



OV1602831 Sanctuary at Silverhawke – Grading Exception Page 6 of 6 
Conceptual Design Review Board Staff Report 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
1. Conditions of approval 
2. Location Map 
3. Grading exception request 
4. General Plan Map 
5. Zoning Map 
6. Conceptual Site Plan. 

       
 
     ___________________________________________ 
     Bayer Vella, Planning Manager 


	Agenda
	1._Minutes - October 19, 2016
	    10-19-16 Draft Minutes
	3._Swearing in of New Councilmembers
	1._Youth Art Program
	2._Proclamation - American Diabetes Month
	    Proclamation
	A._FY 2016_17 Financial Update through September 2016
	    Attachment A - General Fund
	    Attachment B - Highway Fund
	    Attachment C - Bed Tax Fund
	    Attachment D-1 Community Center Fund
	    Attachment D-2 Troon Cash Flow
	    Attachment D-3 Troon FandB
	    Attachment E - Summary All Funds
	    Attachment F - Gen Fund Local Sales Tax
	B._GOHS Grant DUI Overtime and Employee-Related Expenses
	    (R)16-51 DUI Enforcement Overtime
	    Grant Agreement
	C._GOHS Grant Contract DUI Equipment
	    (R)16-52 Grant Contract DUI Equipment
	    Grant Agreement
	D._GOHS Grant Contract funding STEP Equipment
	    (R)16-53 STEP Grant
	    Grant Agreement
	E._Scoreboard Donation at James D. Kriegh Park
	    (R)16-54 JDK Park Scoreboard Donation
	F._Reclaimed Water IGA
	    (R)16-55 Reclaimed Water IGA
	    Amendment
	1.a._General Plan Future Land Use Map Amendment
	    (R)16-48 General Plan Future Land Use Map
	    Attachment 2 - Location Map
	    Attachment 3 - Application
	TABLE OF CONTENTS

	    Attachment 4 - General Plan Future Land Use Map
	    Attachment 5 - Old General Plan Amendment Criteria Analysis
	    Attachment 6 - New General Plan Amendment Criteria Analsysis
	    Attachment 7 - Map of Surrounding Subdivisions
	    Attachment 8 - Map of Commercial Properties
	    Attachment 9 - PZC Staff Report
	2
	1

	    Attachment 10 - PZC Meeting Minutes
	    Attachment 11 - Neighborhood Meeting Summary Notes
	1
	2

	    Attachment 12 - Correspondences
	Memo Style
	Attachment 12 - Correspondences
	Memo Style
	Attachment 12 - Correspondences
	1a
	1b
	1c



	1.b._Rancho Vistoso PAD Amendment
	    (O)16-12 Rancho Vistoso PAD Amendment
	    Attachment 2 - Application
	Introduction
	Part I – Inventory & Analysis
	1. Existing Land Uses
	A. Regional Context
	B. Onsite Uses
	C. Project Vicinity
	C: Number of Stories of Surrounding Structures

	2. Environmentally Sensitive Lands
	A. ESL Categories Onsite
	B. Additional ESL Characteristics
	C. Total acreage present on-site for each Conservation Category.

	3. Topography
	A. Topographic Character & Features

	4.  Cultural / Archaeological / Historic Resources
	A. Archaeological Survey Status / Results

	5.  Hydrology
	A. Offsite Watersheds
	B. Balanced / Critical Basins
	C. Offsite Features Affecting or Affected by the Property
	D. Area of Upstream Watersheds Greater than 100 CFS
	E. Location / Ownership of Well Sites within 100’ of Site
	F. Onsite Hydrology Characteristics
	G. Existing Drainage Conditions along the Downstream Property Boundary

	6. Wildlife
	A. Arizona Game & Fish Dept. Letter

	7. Viewsheds
	8. Traffic
	A. Connection to Arterial Roadway Network
	B. Arterial Roadways within One Mile of the Property

	9. Recreation / Trails
	A. Trails, Parks and Recreation Areas within One Mile of the Property

	10. Schools
	A. Schools within One Mile of the Property
	B. Schools Expected to Serve the Project

	11. Water
	A. Water Service Provider

	12. Wastewater
	A. Sewer Service Connection

	13. Exhibits
	Exhibit I-1-A: Site Location Map
	Exhibit I-1-B: Aerial Photograph
	Exhibit I-1-C: Existing General Plan Future Land Use Designations
	Exhibit I-1-D: Existing Zoning
	Exhibit I-1-E: Existing Land Uses
	Exhibit I-2-A: Environmentally Sensitive Lands
	Exhibit I-3-A: Topography
	Exhibit I-5-A: Offsite Watersheds
	Exhibit I-5-B: Onsite Hydrology Characteristics
	Exhibit I-8-A: Transportation
	Exhibit I-9-A: Trails, Parks & Recreation
	Exhibit I-10-A: Existing & Proposed Schools
	Exhibit I-12-A: Sewer Service
	Exhibit I-13-A: McHarg Composite Map


	Part II – Land Use Plan
	1. Land Uses
	A. Project Description
	B. General Plan Conformance
	C. Flexible Design Options / Conservation Subdivision Design
	D. Effect on Existing Land Uses

	2. Environmentally Sensitive Lands
	A. ESOS Selection & Preservation Methods

	3. Topography
	A. Design Response to Site Topography
	B. Slope Encroachment
	C. Hillside Conservation Areas
	D. Quantified Site Disturbance

	4. Cultural / Archaeological / Historic Resources
	A. Resource Protection
	B. Treatment Plan

	5. Hydrology
	A. Design Response to Site Hydrology
	B. Modifications of Drainage Patterns
	C. Mitigation
	D. Town Policy Conformance

	6. Wildlife
	A. Mitigation

	7. Viewsheds
	A. Design Response to Site Viewsheds
	B. ORSCOD / TRCOD Conformance

	8. Traffic
	A. Traffic Impact Analysis
	B. Proposed Rights-of-Way
	C. Proposed Pedestrian / Bicycle Circulation

	9. Recreation / Trails
	A. Offsite Trail Access
	B. Open Space Ownership

	10. Schools
	A. Student Generation
	B. School Capacity

	11. Water
	A. Water Demand
	B. Water Service Provider & Capacity

	12. Wastewater
	A. Sewer Service Method

	13. Bufferyards
	A. Mitigation (if applicable)

	14. Exhibits
	Exhibit II-1-A: Tentative Development Plan
	Exhibit II-2-A: Proposed ESOS Map
	Exhibit II-3-A: Proposed Grading Limits
	Exhibit II-4-A: Proposed Zoning


	Part III – Appendices
	Appendix A: Traffic Report
	Appendix B: Archaeological Report

	20160713 SWTE TIA.pdf
	Existing Conditions
	Figure 1 – Vicinity Map
	Figure 2 – Site Plan
	Existing Traffic Data
	Figure 3 – Existing Weekday Intersection Approach Traffic Volumes
	Trip Generation
	Table 1 – Weekday Project Site Generated Trips
	Access
	Multi-Way Stop Analysis
	Table 2 – Multi-Way STOP Warrant Analysis–Hidden Springs Drive/Vistoso Highlands Drive
	hidden springs dr vistoso highlands dr wd aph.pdf
	Day 1

	rv10j vhhs mwsw ex 160711.pdf
	existing
	2017 without
	2017 with



	    Attachment 3 - Location Map
	    Attachment 4 - Tentative Development Plan
	    Attachment 5 - Zoning Map
	    Attachment 6 - General Plan Analysis
	    Attachment 6 - General Plan Analysis
	    Attachment 7 - PZC Staff Reports
	1
	2

	    Attachment 8 - PZC Minutes
	    Attachment 9 - Neighborhood Meeting Summary Notes
	1
	2

	    Attachment 10 - Letters of Concern
	Memo Style
	Attachment 12 - Correspondences
	Memo Style
	Attachment 12 - Correspondences
	1a
	1b
	1c



	2._Conceptual Plans Alterra at Vistoso Trails Subdivision
	    ATTACHMENT 1 - CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	    ATTACHMENT 2 - CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN AND LANDSCAPE PLAN
	    ATTACHMENT 3 - MASTER RECREATION AREA PLAN
	    ATTACHMENT 4 - LOCATION MAP
	    ATTACHMENT 5 - GENERAL PLAN AND ZONING MAPS
	    ATTACHMENT 6 - NEIGHBORHOOD 5 HISTORY
	    ATTACHMENT 7 - 2009 MGPA MAP
	    ATTACHMENT 8 - CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN, LANDSCAPE PLAN AND MASTER RECREATION AREA PLAN ANALYSIS
	    ATTACHMENT 9 - RANCHO VISTOSO PAD ANALYSIS
	    ATTACHMENT 10 - NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING SUMMARY
	    ATTACHMENT 11 - CDRB STAFF REPORT
	    ATTACHMENT 12 - DRAFT CDRB MEETING MINUTES
	    ATTACHMENT 13 - PRAB STAFF REPORT
	    ATTACHMENT 14 - PRAB MEETING MINUTES
	3._Grading Exception Sanctuary at Silverhawke
	    ATTACHMENT 1 - CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	    ATTACHMENT 2 - APPLICANT'S PROPOSAL
	    ATTACHMENT 3 - LOCATION MAP
	    ATTACHMENT 4 - GENERAL PLAN LAND USE MAP
	    ATTACHMENT 5 - ZONING MAP
	    ATTACHMENT 6 - FINAL SITE PLAN
	    ATTACHMENT 7 - GRADING EXCEPTION ANALYSIS
	    ATTACHMENT 8 - CDRB STAFF REPORT

